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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of Hope Life International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, the revenue of the Group increased by HK$102.5 million
from HK$190.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to HK$293.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
overall gross profit increased by HK$26.3 million from HK$34.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to HK$60.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023. The increase in revenue
and gross profit was mainly due to the increase in revenue and
gross profit from consumer goods business.

The Group recorded the loss for the year of HK$0.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$0.5 million as compared with the loss for the
year of HK$1.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
decrease in loss for the year was mainly due to the combine effect
of the increase in gross profit from consumer goods business and
increase in selling and distribution expenses and administrative
expenses.

PROSPECT

In 2023, the economic environment in Hong Kong, Macau and the
PRC, as well as around the world, is recovering and a rebound
of business activities and economic conditions is expected.
We anticipate that the aforesaid expected recovery is likely to
enhance our business performance, and the Group looks forward
to commencing more construction projects and works ancillary
to such projects in Hong Kong and Macau, which will help the
Group to maintain a stable revenue stream in 2024.

The Group will continue to dedicate itself to maximise value for
the Shareholders by adhering to its pragmatic and enterprising
approach in executing its business strategies, and continuously
searching for fresh business opportunities with exploration made
in the consumer goods business and other businesses to broaden
the revenue and profit base of the Group.

BRE

AAERERESS([EF2])RAZEELR
BEERBERAR(TARE ] EREHK B
RNE GBI AR DEBEE_T-_=F+=A
- BIEFEZFR-

R¥ O

RZZFEZ=F AFEREHEBEE_T ==
F+ZA=Z+—BLEFEZ190768E L
m12sEEE LEHE T _=F+_A
—+—RIEFEZ29832H BB - BEEF
HEBEE-_T-—HF#+-_A=+—HIEE>
AEEBAILIENGIEEBTEHE T
TZF+ A=t HBHItFEZ608EHEE
TC o W R EFEMEZ AR REHBEE®R
152 Was TR TR ©

KREBREE T -_=F+_-_A=+—HIF
EHBTFERIBE0IEERT  BHET =
F+Z A=+ HIEFEHSTFERE1488
BITRAH0SEERT - FEEBERISETER
MRREEBEEMES CEFIG I RIEE
RO HAST RITHRATIE N GEFE -

RE

RIZ-=F  FEF  BFIRFEARERE
WV IR IEAIRE - BN X R LR
ARG & 58 - HFITRET LR TREIE R aE S
RARPINEBRR - AERERENEE MR
FIRAEZEEBEARZFHANEETRER -
BPAREER - T~ IFRIFIBERARIR

AEBBEBER N BBIRAVERABE - BF
PATS B R R E TR TSRS - TE SR
B RRBBEEMEGLEMER - UiE
RAER B A A Fs FI R o

Hope Life International Holdings Limited U&&EISIZRHRA S



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESE S

APPRECIATION
We would like to thank our committed staff for their contributions,

our customers, business partners and shareholders of the
Company for their continued support to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

LIANG Zhichao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W AT

The Board is pleased to present the results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (“FY2023”), together with
the comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2022
(“FY2022”).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During FY2023, the revenue of the Group increased by HK$102.5
million to HK$293.2 million (FY2022: HK$190.7 million) and the
overall gross profit of the Group increased by HK$26.3 million to
HK$60.8 million (FY2022: HK$34.5 million). The Group recorded
loss for the year of HK$0.9 million (FY2022: HK$1.4 million) mainly
due to the combine effect of the increase in gross profit from
consumer goods business and increase in selling and distribution
expenses and administrative expenses.

BUSINESS REVIEW
The Group has two major segments for continuing operations,
namely construction and ancillary services and consumer goods

business.

A breakdown of the revenue was listed below:
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
BE-Z-=E BE_T__F
Continuing operations BEESEE +ZR=+—HLEE +ZA=+—HItEFE
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
FTi#n THET
(Re-presented)  (Re-presented)
(&g=751) (f=51)
Construction and ancillary services BRREERE 83,246 28.4 106,344 55.8
Consumer goods business HEBEEMES 209,905 71.6 84,308 442
Revenue g 293,151 100.0 190,652 100.0
Construction and ancillary services BERREERS
Construction and ancillary services which include design, fitting R-Z-_=BIHEE 2R EEERK(HS

out, decoration, alteration and addition, construction and other
related business were the focus among our business segments
in FY2023. During FY2023, the revenue from construction and
ancillary services decreased by HK$23.1 million to HK$83.2
million (FY2022: HK$106.3 million). The decrease in revenue
from this segment was mainly due to the decrease in revenue
contributed from the construction and ancillary services of
commercial projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W AT

Consumer goods business

The Company commenced the consumer goods business since
the beginning of 2021. The Group’s consumer goods business
is principally engaged in the production and sales of yellow wine
products in the PRC which comprises yellow wines from medium
to high grade with different flavors and modern-packaging
designs to target young and middle-aged middle class to high
class consumers. The Group’s consumer goods business has
chosen to base in Jiangxi, which is one of the most popular areas
in the PRC in respect of Chinese yellow wine, and operates a wine
production plant in Jiangxi with yellow wine production capacity of
approximately 3,000 tons per annum.

The Group’s yellow wine products are sold mainly under the
brand labels “Minyue Hong” (BI#4T), “Tan Shishan” (24 14) and
“Xingyun Zhi Guang” (3818 Z ). To continuously improve product
quality and launch new products to cater for the demand of the
market, the Group has a research and development department
responsible for quality advancement as well as the development
of new wine products.

The Group’s yellow wine products are sold mainly to wine dealers
and distributors such as food wholesalers, supermarkets and
department stores based in Fujian.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from the
consumer goods business amounted to approximately HK$209.9
million, representing an increase by 149.0% compared to the
HK$84.3 million revenue generated during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Discontinued operation - financial services
Money lending business

The money lending business was discontinued in FY2023 due
to disposal of the subsidiary holding a money lenders license in
Hong Kong in FY2023. Before the disposal of the subsidiary, the
Group provides loan facilities to prospective customers including
enterprises and individuals.

Revenue from money lending business amounted to nil (FY2022:
HK$0.3 million). As at 31 December 2023, the gross loans and
interest receivable amounted to nil (31 December 2022: HK$10.0
million) and allowance for expected credit loss of nil (FY2022:
HK$10.0 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W AT

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses for consumer goods business
increased by HK$19.9 million from HK$7.0 million in FY2022 to
HK$26.9 million in FY2023, which is mainly due to the further
development of the consumer goods business and more
advertisement required compared to FY2022.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by HK$2.6 million from
HK$14.6 million in FY2022 to HK$17.2 million in FY2023.
The increase was mainly due to the increase in administrative
expenses for consumer goods business.

Finance costs

The finance costs increased by HK$1.4 million from HK$5.0
million in FY2022 to HK$6.4 million in FY2023. The increase was
mainly due to the increase of other borrowings from HK$41.7
million in FY2022 to HK$73.7 million in FY2023.

Loss for the year

The Group recorded loss for the year of HK$0.9 million in FY2023
as compared to the loss for the year of HK$1.4 million in FY2022
mainly due to the combine effect of the increase in gross profit
from consumer goods business and increase in selling and
distribution expenses and administrative expenses.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 64 employees (31
December 2022: 66) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The total
remuneration paid by the Group to its employees (including
Directors) for FY2023 was HK$12.1 million (FY2022: HK$9.1
million).

The objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements
and industry practice. In order to determine the level of
remuneration paid to its employees (including Directors and senior
management), the following factors are considered:

° workload, responsibility and job complexity;

° business requirements;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W AT

° individual performance and contribution to results;

° company performance and profitability;

o retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

° corporate goals and objectives;

° market rates and changes in relevant markets, including

supply and demand fluctuations and changes in
competitive conditions; and

° general economic situation.

In addition to salaries, provident fund scheme, medical insurance
coverage and discretionary bonuses are available to employees.
Level of remuneration is reviewed annually. During the review
process, no individual director is involved in decisions relating to
his/her own remuneration.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total cash and bank
balances of HK$40.4 million (31 December 2022: HK$52.5
million) mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

The Group continued to maintain a healthy liquidity position.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current assets of
HK$338.5 million (31 December 2022: HK$219.1 million). The
Group had current ratio of approximately 3.9 times as at 31
December 2023 compared to that of approximately 3.4 times at
31 December 2022.

The gearing ratio of the Group is defined as a percentage
of interest-bearing liabilities divided by total equity. As at 31
December 2023, the gearing ratio was approximately 20.3%
(81 December 2022: 16.8%). The Group’s was working capital
requirements were mainly financed by internal resources.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W AT

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi and also incurs cost in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
with respect mainly to Renminbi which may affect the Group’s
performance. The management is aware of the possible exchange
rate exposure due to the continuing fluctuation of Renminbi and
will closely monitor its impact on the performance of the Group to
see if any hedging policy is necessary. The Group currently does
not have any foreign currency hedging policy.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

There was no pledged asset as at 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: nil).

PLACING OF NEW SHARES

On 21 July 2022, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with CNI Securities Group Limited, pursuant to
which the Company appointed CNI Securities Group Limited as
its placing agent to procure not less than six placees who are
independent third parties to subscribe for up to 144,000,000
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.145 per placing share
on a best effort basis in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the placing agreement. The Company carried out the placing
offers since it offered a good opportunity to raise further capital
for broaden the shareholders base of the Company thereby
increasing the liquidity of the Shares as well as strengthening the
financial position of the Group.

The placing was completed on 5 August 2022. An aggregate of
144,000,000 placing shares have been successfully placed to not
less than six placees. The net proceeds from the placing were
approximately HK$20.6 million. The net proceeds were used as
disclosed below.

Details of the placing have been set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 21 July 2022 and 5 August 2022,
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W AT

The proposed use of net proceeds from the placing of new
shares, and details of the original allocation of the net proceeds,
and the utilization of the net proceeds up to 31 December 2023
had been applied as below:

Intended use
as stated in the

FeEFM DTSR IBFRRTRE - TGN
TEFRER R T 2 B 5 = KT
—E-=F+-A=+—HHNFABRAT

SRRFREE

announcements
of the Company Utilised amount
dated for the year Unutilised
21 July ended amount as at
and 31 December 31 December
5 August 2022 2022 2022
E NG E]
- oot -
tAZ+—-A #E-BZZE
RNBREHZ +=A=+-H R-BZZf
L&t t¥EE +ZRA=+-H
Use of proceeds FRBRIERE BERE BHEEH *BALE
Approximately Approximately Approximately
HKS$ (million) HKS$ (million) HK$ (million)
goEr(as) #Hotn(e8) #HHEx(aE)
The net proceeds from the share placing are  RVECEFTEHIEFRE BB FINT
intended to be used for
- as to approximately HK$15.9 million forthe  — #)15. 9B B8 RN A ERE
operation and development of the Group’s BEEEMFBNEERER
consumer goods business 15.9 15.9 -
- as to the remaining balance of — FIBRERN4TEBATRE
approximately HK$4.7 million for the AEE—HREEED
general working capital of the Group 4.7 4.7 -
Total ozt 206 206 -

As at 31 December 2023, the net proceeds of HK$20.6 milion RZ-ZTZ=F+ZA=+—H  FIEE8HM

raised have been utilised as intended for the year ended 31
December 2023. There is no material change between the
intended use of proceeds and the actual use of proceeds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W AT

RIGHTS ISSUE

On 9 December 2022, the Board proposed to implement the
Share Consolidation, pursuant to which every two (2) issued and
unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each before the Share
Consolidation (“Existing Share(s)”) will be consolidated into one (1)
ordinary share of HK$0.02 each (“Consolidated Share(s)”). Also,
the Board proposed to increase the authorised share capital of
the Company from HK$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000
Existing Shares to HK$60,000,000 divided into 6,000,000,000
Existing Shares (or 3,000,000,000 Consolidated Shares after the
Share Consolidation becoming effective) (“Increase in Authorised
Share Capital”). Subject to the Share Consolidation and the
Increase in Authorised Share Capital having become effective,
the Board proposed to offer for subscription of the Consolidated
Shares to be allotted and issued (“Rights Share(s)”) on the basis of
two (2) Rights Shares for every one (1) Consolidated Share held as
at the date by reference to which provisional allotments under the
Rights Issue were expected to be determined (the “Record Date”)
, at the subscription price (the “Subscription Price”) of HK$0.140
per Rights Share (the “Rights Issue”), to raise up to approximately
HK$120.96 million before expenses by way of issuing up to
864,000,000 Rights Shares.

On 9 December 2022, the Company and the placing agent (the
“Placing Agent”), CNI Securities Group Limited, entered into the
placing agreement (“Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Company conditionally appointed the Placing Agent and the
Placing Agent conditionally agreed to act as the placing agent
for the Company to procure, on a best effort basis, placees to
subscribe for the Placing Shares (i.e. the number of unsubscribed
Rights Shares(s) not taken up by the shareholders whose name(s)
appeared on the register of members of the Company on the
Record Date other than the overseas shareholders whom the
Board considered necessary or expedient to exclude (“NQS”)
from the Rights Issue (“Unsold Shares”) and/or the NQS Unsold
Share(s) during the Rights Issue) on the terms and subject to the
conditions set out in the Placing Agreement (the “Placing”). If all
the Right Shares are already fully taken up in the Rights Issue
through the provisional allotment letter(s), the Placing will not
proceed.

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting on 14 February
2023, the proposed Increase in Authorized Share Capital, Share
Consolidation and the Rights Issue have been duly passed by the
shareholders by way of poll. The proposed Share Consolidation
has taken effect on 16 February 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W AT

On 21 March 2023, the Company announced that a total of 21
valid acceptances and applications had been received for a total
of 52,457,089 Rights Shares, representing approximately 6.07%
of the total number of Rights Shares offered under the Rights
Issue.

On 13 April 2023, the Company announced that all the
811,542,911 Untaken Shares were successfully placed at the
price of HK$0.140 per Share, which is equal to the Subscription
Price, under the Placing. Therefore, there is no Net Gain available
for distribution to the No Action Shareholders under the Placing.
As all the conditions with respect to the Rights Issue and the
Placing as set out in the Prospectus have been fuffilled, the Rights
Issue and the Placing became unconditional on 30 March 2023.
Based on the results of acceptance of the Rights Issue and the
results of the Placing, the Rights Shares to be allotted and issued
amounted to 864,000,000 Rights Shares, representing 100% of
the total number of Rights Shares offered for subscription under
the Rights Issue.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 9 December 2022, 15 December 2022, 20 January 2023,
14 February 2023, 16 February 2023, 21 March 2023 and 14
April 2023 respectively, and the prospectus of the Company
regarding the Rights Issue dated 28 February 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W AT

The proposed use of net proceeds from the Rights Issue, and
details of the original allocation of the net proceeds, and the
utilisation of the net proceeds up to 31 December 2023 had been
applied as below:

HENFTEFUEFERE AR - SR F58
MEESEARNULRAEREFEEE T
T=FE+-A=1t—BRNBHABRNT :

Intended use
as stated in the

prospectus Utilised amount
of the Company for the year Unutilised
dated ended amount as at
28 February 31 December 31 December
2023 2023 2023
XNFRME
- ol HEZEZZ=
ZB=+NBZ +=R=t+-H R-EZZH
B EERT LE¥EE +=A=+-H
Use of proceeds RERERE RERE BHeH *BALE
Approximately Approximately Approximately
HK$ (million) HKS$ (million) HK$ (million)
BgaEr(BE) HaEn(BE) HHEx(EE)
The net proceeds from the share placing are I3 B SIS B FEREBMT
intended to be used for
- as to approximately HK$45.0 milion for the  — 445,08 B8 TR EEAE
repayment of the Group’s interest-bearing BB ERRE RS
borrowing and its accrued interest 45.0 45.0 -
— as to approximately HK$50.0 million for — 50 0FBATANAEEE
the development of the Group’s consumer BEERELNER
goods business 50.0 50.0 -
- as to approximately HK$15.0 million to — 5. 0EBATLARYHEAE
support the Group’s construction and its ER R RARERE
ancillary services 15.0 15.0 -
- as to the remaining balance of — FIBRERLN.0EBETHIE
approximately HK$9.0 million towards the AEE—HREEES
general working capital of the Group 9.0 9.0 -
Total @5t 119.0 119.0 -

As at 31 December 2023, the net proceeds of HK$119.0 million
raised have been fully utilised as intended for the year ended
31 December 2023. There is no material change between the
intended use of proceeds and the actual use of proceeds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W AT

PLACING OF NEW SHARES

On 19 January 2024, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with CNI Securities Group Limited, pursuant to
which the Company appointed CNI Securities Group Limited as
its placing agent to procure not less than six placees who are
independent third parties to subscribe for up to 259,200,000
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.105 per placing share
on a best effort basis in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the placing agreement. The Company carried out the placing
offers since it offered a good opportunity to raise further capital
for broaden the shareholders base of the Company thereby
increasing the liquidity of the Shares as well as strengthening the
financial position of the Group.

The placing was completed on 15 March 2024. An aggregate of
259,200,000 placing shares have been successfully placed to not
less than six placees. The net proceeds from the placing were
approximately HK$26.8 million. The net proceeds were used as
disclosed below.

Details of the placing have been set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 19 January 2024 and 15 March 2024,
respectively.

As at the date of this report, nil of the net proceeds raised have
been utilised.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no significant outstanding capital commitment as
at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: nil).

BC &5 ¥ Bx {7

RZZFBEZWF—A+NH  ARFEFABRIS
BHEEEERARG LS WE - Bt - AR
AZAFEIL T ESFSEBRAFAERER
12 - IRIEACE 19k ARG R 58 D B R
FERLRRNBERA(BEBLE=H)RERS
259,200,000 R L E %D - L EB R EBRALE
[&170.105% 7T « N R BHETRMOEE MR A
BEREESE—PESUBEBRTRRREER
MR RM - eI Mk iREmE - WhndAS
B 8B # ko
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TESRE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in construction and ancillary
services which include design, fitting-out, decoration, alteration
and addition, construction and other related businesses,
and consumer goods business. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group and an analysis of the
Group’s performance during the year ended 31 December
2023 are provided in “Chairman’s Statement” on page 4 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 6. Description of
the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group is facing can
be found in “Chairman’s Statement” on page 4. Also, the financial
risk management objectives and policies of the Group can be
found in note 29(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
The environmental policies and performance are provided in
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on page 40.

The Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations that
have significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Save as disclosed in “Chairman’s Statement”, no important
events affecting the Group have occurred since the end of the
financial year ended 31 December 2023. The Group’s future
business development is set out in “Chairman’s Statement” on
page 4.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for FY2023 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income on page 80.

The Directors do not recommend any payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FERHE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five years is set out on page 184.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2023,
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
amounted to approximately HK$128.0 million (as at 31 December
2022: HK$47.6 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement’s in the share capital of the Company
during FY2023 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
FY2023.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TESRE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LIANG Zhichao
Mr. XIAQ Yi (appointed on 21 August 2023)
Ms. CHEN Wuyou (resigned on 28 April 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHEN Jian

Ms. ZHAO Honggin

Ms. CHAN Wai Yan (appointed on 17 October 2023)
Mr. CHEUNG Ting Pong (resigned on 17 October 2023)

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his or her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company considered all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

In accordance with articles 83(3) & 84(1) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. XIAO Yi and Ms. CHAN Wai Yan shall retire from
office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EF
REERBERARE BPIEAAREEOT :

PTEE

REBLAE
ikt (RNZE_=FEN\A_+—HEZF)
LBt (R-E-=F 8 =+ /\HEHT)
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gkt
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TESRE

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors’ Position Held

On 28 April 2023, Ms. CHEN Wuyou has resigned from as the
executive Director of the Company.

On 21 August 2023, Mr. XIAO Yi has been appointed as the
executive Director of the Company.

On 17 October 2023:

- Mr. CHEUNG Ting Pong has resigned as the independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company; and

- Ms. CHAN Wai Yan has been appointed as the independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

Director’s Emoluments

The Board approved (as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee) the following:

- The remuneration of Mr. LIANG Zhichao would be
recommended by the remuneration committee, effective
from 22 October 2020. A discretionary bonus of
HK$3,120,000 has been approved during the year ended
31 December 2023 for the performance since 22 October
2020.

- The remuneration of Mr. XIAO Yi was fixed at HK$240,000
per annum with a discretionary bonus, effective from 21
August 2028.

- The remuneration of Mr. ZHEN Jian was fixed at
HK$120,000 per annum effect from 25 October 2021.

- The remuneration of Ms. ZHAO Honggin was fixed at
HK$120,000 per annum effective from 11 October 2022.

- The remuneration of Ms. CHAN Wai Yan was fixed
HK$120,000 per annum with effective from 17 October
2023.

Saved as disclosed above, there is no other information required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2023.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors
and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Profile of Directors
and Senior Management” on page 27.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provision
of the SFO) or which were required to be recorded in the register

EFEREREEEEEXTS

AEBEENSREREREABHNE2TE
[BERSREREBER]|— -

EFREETHRARREG RIEMAR
ficERREE

RZEBE_=ZF+_A=+—H BEERESTT
BAERARGBREEBLE(EERESFR
HIEEBIZEXVER) M%) ~ HBRERR (D RESHF
A REESMAEENE XV4|3%7&%8"4
AHME AR MBRETNEREIAR (BIER
EE %&HﬁiﬂlﬂﬁﬂE‘Jﬂmi%ﬁi&ﬁ%iﬁﬁ%ﬁz
AR ) ¢ SRBREFE S MEREEN 352
BB RN BEFE ELMANERIAR + &

required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise  ARIFIZAEST BIZE BT A A 7] M B 22 o g 42
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the — ZmSAB AT :
Model Code as follows:
The Company b 3/
Approximate
percentage of
Capacity/ Long/Short Number of shareholding in
Name of Director Nature of Interest position shares held the Company
{EF L F R ER
EFRE 57 #anE e ke FiEERnEE BHhEaL
Mr. XIAO Yi Beneficial owner Long position 512,000 0.04%
kA BEREEA e
Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, B EXFTHBEEIN - RAFRAH @ HEZES

none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had not been notified of
any other persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which would be required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 13 August 2015
(“Share Option Scheme”), the Company may grant share options
to any directors, employees, consultants, customers, suppliers
of goods or services to any member of the Group or any entity
in which the Group holds any equity interests (“Invested Entity”)
who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group so as to
provide incentives or rewards for their contribution to the success
of the Group’s operation. During the year ended 31 December
2023, no share option was granted by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme.

Summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

(@) Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to enable
the Group to grant options to the eligible participants to
(i) motivate them to optimise their performance efficiently
for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attract and retain or
maintain on-going business relationship with the eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to
the long-term growth of the Group.

(b) Eligible Participants

Any employees (whether full time or part time), directors
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiary of the
Group or any Invested Entity, any customers, suppliers of
goods and services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity and such other persons or entities (“Eligible
Participants”) who, in the sole discretion of the Board,
have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any Invested Entity.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number
of Shares in issue from time to time. The total number of
Shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of listing of the
Shares unless the Company obtains the approval of the
Shareholders in general meeting for refreshment.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding)
granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Participant must not exceed 1.0% of the
total number of Shares in issue; and

(i)  a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-
executive director must not exceed 0.1% of the total
number of Shares in issue and not exceed HK$5.0
million in aggregate value.

Period within which the Shares must be taken
up under an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date
on which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board
may specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held

No minimum period for which the option has to be held
before it can be exercised is specified in the Share Option
Scheme.

Period open for acceptable of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an
Eligible Participant within 21 days from the date of the
offer of grant of the option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is
payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)
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(h) Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option

The exercise price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the
nominal value of a Share.

(i) Validity of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 12 August 2025 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASES SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the FY2023.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s five
largest group customers by related groups in aggregate
accounted for approximately 87.1% of the Group’s total turnover.
The largest group customer accounted for approximately 26.2%
of the Group’s total turnover.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 92.5%
of the Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier accounted for
approximately 25.8% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective associates or any Shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers
or customers.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance has
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and the then controlling Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries,
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, there was no other significant subsequent event
undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31 December 2023 and
up to the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, details of the
significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Corporate Governance Report are set out on page
28.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for FY2023 have been
audited by KTC Partners CPA Limited, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

LIANG Zhichao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEERR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIANG Zhichao, aged 34, obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Electrical Engineering from Auckland University of Technology.
Mr. Liang is the Vice President of Royston Securities Limited. He
has over 8 years of experience in project management, business
operation and equity research in HK and PRC.

Mr. XIAO Yi (“Mr. Xiao”), aged 34, obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Marine Resources and Environment from Shanghai
Ocean University. He has over 8 years of experience in hotel
management in PRC.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. ZHEN Jian, aged 53, has over 25 years of experience in
banking and securities investment in PRC and worked as senior
management in several renowned financial institutions. He is
currently the Chairman and Investment Director of an investment
management company in Shanghai. He was graduated from
Correspondence College of the Central Party School of the
Communist Party of China with an undergraduate degree in
Economics and Management.

Ms. ZHAO Hongqin, aged 54, obtained a bachelor degree in
accounting from Anhui University in China. Ms. Zhao has over 25
years of experience in financial reporting and investment analysis.

Ms. CHAN Wai Yan (“Ms. Chan”), aged 28, obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Accounting from University of Hull in
England. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Chan has over 8 years of financial and
accounting experiences.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YAU Yan Yuen, aged 36, obtained a degree of Bachelor
of Business Administration in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Yau is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yau has 10 years
of experience in financial management, corporate finance and
auditing. Mr. Yau is currently an independent non-executive
director of Creative China Holdings Limited (stock code: 8368),
company secretary of Windmill Group Limited (stock code: 1850)
and executive director of Royal Century Resources Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8125). Mr. Yau had been the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Wai Hung Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3321), since its listing in April 2019 to May
2021.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Company and to enhance corporate value
and responsibility. The Board comprises two executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. The Board has
adopted the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. During
the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report, the Company has complied with the code provisions under
the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that it continues to meet the requirements
under the Code Provisions.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in dealing in the Company’s securities. Specific
enquiries have been made to all Directors and all Directors have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established three
board committees, being the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (each a “Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee
different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, namely
Mr. LIANG Zhichao and Mr. XIAO Yi and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. ZHEN Jian, Ms. ZHAO Hongqin
and Ms. Chan Wai Yan.

Their biographical details are set out in the section headed “Profile
of Directors and Senior Management” on page 27 in this annual
report. A list of the Directors identifying their roles and functions is
available on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.
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The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group.
[t also decides on matters such as annual and interim results,
major transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
investment policy, dividend and accounting policies. The Board
has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the
Group’s businesses to the executive Directors and members
of senior management. The functions and power that are so
delegated are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain
appropriate.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which
include (a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make recommendations
to the board; (b) to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and
senior management of the Group; (c) to review and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the annual report of the
Company.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Regular board meetings are held at quarterly intervals with
additional meetings convened as and when necessary to discuss
the overall strategic directions, the Group’s operations, financial
performance, and to approve interim and annual results and other
significant matters. For regular meetings, Board members are
given at least 14 days prior notice and agenda with supporting
papers are sent to Directors not less than 3 days before the
relevant meeting is held. Directors may propose to the Chairman
or the Company Secretary to include matters in the agenda for
regular board meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at board meetings and abstain from voting on the related
board resolutions as appropriate.
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Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees are
kept by the Company Secretary in sufficient details of the matters
considered and decisions reached, including dissenting views
expressed, and are open for inspection on reasonable notice by
any Director. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively within a
reasonable time after the board meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures
are followed.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board held 10 Board meetings during the year ended 31
December 2023. The attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings is set out in the paragraph headed “Board Committees”
below. During the year under review, the Board reviewed the
disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report to ensure
compliance.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance coverage has been arranged in respect
of indemnification against costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities that may be incurred by the Directors and officers of the
Company in the execution and discharge of their duties.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the Shareholders
and have exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence, in
pursuit of the development of the Group. They have to participate
in continuous professional development through internal or
external training organised by the Company. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Company organised a training
session relating to the Listing Rules to each of the Directors. All
directors attended the training and complied with the requirement
of the CG Code on continuous professional development during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction to
ensure that he has a proper understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his duties
and responsibilities as a director under applicable rules and
requirements.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests
of the Shareholders and the Group. They serve actively on the
Board and its committees to provide their independent and
objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One of
the independent non-executive Directors namely, Ms. Chan Wai
Yan, has the appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of his/her independence
and has satisfied itself of such independence in accordance with
the independent guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined and written
terms of reference approved by the Board covering its duties,
powers and functions. Their terms of reference are available on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.

(i) Audit committee

As at 31 December 2023 and the date of this report,
the Audit Committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. CHAN Wai Yan, Mr. ZHEN
Jian, and Ms. ZHAO Hongqin. Ms. CHAN Wai Yan was the
chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. CHEUNG Ting Pong
resigned as an independent non-executive Director and
chairman of the Audit Committee on 17 October 2023. Ms.
CHAN Wai Yan has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and chairman of the Audit Committee on
17 October 2023.
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The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
make recommendation to the Board on the appointment
and removal of external auditors, review the financial
statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting at least at half-year intervals, and oversee the risk
management policies and internal control procedures of the
Group constantly.

There were 2 meetings of the Audit Committee held during
the year ended 31 December 20283. The attendance of each
member at the Audit Committee meetings is set out on
page 34. During the year under review, the members of the
Audit Committee reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2023, and for the year ended 31 December 2023
and discussed the internal controls together with the
management.

Remuneration committee

As at 31 December 2023 and the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprised two independent non-
executive Directors and one executive Director, namely Mr.
ZHEN Jian, Ms. ZHAO Hongqin and Mr. LIANG Zhichao. Mr.
ZHEN Jian is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations
to the Board on, among other matters, our Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
senior managements, and the remuneration packages for all
executive Directors and senior management.

There was 3 meeting of the Remuneration Committee held
during the year ended 31 December 2023. The attendance
of each member at the Remuneration Committee meeting
is set out on page 34. During the year under review, the
members of the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
existing remuneration policy and package of all existing
Directors and senior management.

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 11
and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination committee

As at 31 December 2023 and the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee comprised two independent non-
executive Directors and one executive Director, namely
Mr. LIANG Zhichao, Mr. ZHEN Jian and Ms. CHAN Wai
Yan. Mr. LIANG Zhichao is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. CHEUNG Ting Pong resigned as an
independent non-executive Director and the member of
the Nomination Committee on 17 October 2023. Ms.
CHAN Wai Yan has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and the member of the Nomination
Committee on 17 October 2023.

The Nomination Committee has the responsibility to review
the structure, size and composition (including the skKills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board in accordance with the board
diversity policy. It is also responsible for assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors and
making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors.

There was 3 meeting of the Nomination Committee held
during the year ended 31 December 2023. The attendance
of each member at the Nomination Committee meeting is
set out below. During the year under review, the members
of the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board and reviewed the objectives
set for implementing the board diversity policy.
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The individual attendance records of each Director at
the physical meetings of the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and
at the general meeting of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out below:

REBE-FT_=—F+_A=1+—HLF

¢

E

REFHFEESRE BEHRZBEE

FINZBeRRLZBRERERUL

ZIK

_|

AR A G 2 85! H s 8% 51 4D

Number of physical meetings attended/held during the year under review

ROBEEALE BTzEREEBE

Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors (Note) ESE() EFE EUERE FHERE REERE BEXE
Mr. LIANG Zhichao ARETE 1010 NA NG 33 3/3 202
Mr. XIAO Y] BREE 33 NA NG N/A TER NA TR NANER
Ms. CHEN Wuyou BLELL 5/5 NA MR N/A T ER NA TR 1/1
Mr. CHEUNG Ting Pong RERLE 9/9 212 il 212 212
Mr. ZHEN Jian gL 1010 202 33 33 202
Ms. ZHAO Hongain S G 1010 202 313 NA B 202
Ms. CHAN Wai Yan REALL NA A N/A N NATNBA N/A & NA NG

Notes: Hiat -

Mr. LIANG Zhichao has been appointed as chairman of the Board,
a member of the Remuneration Committee and the chairman of
Nomination Committee of the Company on 14 December 2021.

Mr. XIAO Yi has been appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 21 August 2023.

Ms. CHEN Wuyou has resigned as an executive Director of the
Company on 28 April 2023.

Mr. ZHEN Jian has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, chairman of Remuneration Committee, and a member
of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company on 15 October 2021.

Ms. ZHAO Honggin has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, member of Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee of the Company on 11 October 2022. And Ms.
Xie Yanbin has resigned as an independent non-executive Director,
member of Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee of the
Company on 11 October 2022.

Ms. CHAN Wai Yan has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee and member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company on 17 October 2023. Mr.
CHEUNG Ting Pong has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 17 October 2023.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from the date of appointment and will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has entered into an appointment letter
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from the date of appointment. Each of the Directors will be
subject to retirement and re-election at annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, a
person may be appointed as a director either by the Shareholders
in general meeting or by the Board. Any directors appointed by
the Board as additional directors or to fill casual vacancies shall
hold office until the next following general meeting, and are eligible
for re-election by the Shareholders. In addition, all directors are
required to retire by rotation at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting of the Company, and are eligible for re-
election by the Shareholders.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance and
adopted a board diversity policy. The board diversity policy sets
out that the Company should endeavour to ensure that its Board
members have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the execution
of its business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YAU Yan Yuen has been appointed as company secretary
of the Company since October 2021. He fulfills the requirement
under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. He is responsible for advisory
the Board on corporate governance matters. During FY2023, he
has taken over 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the Group’s financial position, financial performance and
cash flows for the year and in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Group has selected
appropriate accounting policies and has applied them consistently
based on prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates.
The Board considers that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future and not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
affect the business of the Group or cast doubts on its ability to
continue as going concern.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors with
respect to financial reporting are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Internal controls and risk management

The Board is of the opinion that sound internal control and risk
management systems will contribute the effectiveness and
efficiency of the operations of the Group and to the safeguard of
the Group’s assets as well as Shareholders’ investments.

The Company improves its business and operational activities
by identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular
review and taking appropriate measures to control and migrate
these risks. The management of the Company reviews all
significant control policies and procedures and highlights all
significant matters to the Board and Audit Committee annually.

The Board is responsible for overall ensuring, maintaining and
overseeing the internal control systems of the Group. The Audit
Committee helps the Board to discharge its responsibilities
of ensuring and maintaining sound internal control functions
by reviewing and monitoring the internal control systems and
processes annually so as to ensure that they can provide
reasonable assurance against material errors of the Group. The
Group has an internal audit function.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and considers the risks management
and internal control systems effective and adequate.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

KTC Partners CPA Limited has been appointed as the external
auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to KTC
Partners CPA Limited is set out as below:

ShEBRL B

MEGMEBAERAREEZEIRAR
BE_ZT_-—F1+-_A=1+— EIM:EfZé’I\%
TZERED o

RAFEE @ BN RENTFNEGTMERHRE
RABZHMEIIAT

FY2023
==
P e
HK$’000

FExT

=R

Audit services

1,000

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditors during the year ended 31 December 2023.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations. It is
committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its Shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual
and interim reports. The corporate website of the Company
(www.hopelife.hk) has provided an effective communication
platform to the public and the Shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION

The Company has adopted Shareholders communication policy
with objective to provide our Shareholders with accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information about the Company so
that they can exercise their rights in an informed manner. The
Company would review the Shareholders communication policy
on a regular basis.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure
its Shareholders are kept well informed of key business
development. These include annual general meeting, annual
report, various notices, announcements and circulars. The annual
general meeting and other general meetings of the Company are
primary forum for communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The members of the Board, Board committees
and the external auditors are present to answer shareholders’
questions at the annual general meeting of the Company. The
Company shall provide Shareholders with relevant information on
the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely manner
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided
shall be reasonably necessary to enable Shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s). As a channel to
promote effective communication, the Group maintains a website
where information on the Company’s announcements, financial
information and other information are posted. Shareholders and
investors may write directly to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong with any inquiries.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. However, shareholders are requested to follow
Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election
as a Director of the Company are laid down in Article 85 of the
Company’s Articles of Association. No person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the directors for election, be eligible for election as a director at
any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by
the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the registration office
provided that the minimum length of the period, during which
such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that
(if the notices are submitted after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of company secretary, by mail to Flat 1703, 17th Floor,
Wanchai Commercial Centre, Nos. 194-204 Johnston Road,
Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has not made any change to its constitutional
documents. A consolidated version of the Company’s
constitutional documents is available on the Company’s website
and the website of the Stock Exchange.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure
is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling
Shareholders, investors as well as the public to make rational and
informed decisions.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Hope Life International Holdings Limited (“Hope Life”, the
“Group” or “We”") recognizes the importance of incorporating
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) factors into its
business operation. We are pleased to present the ESG Report
(the “Report”) for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023 (the “Reporting Period”). It aims to disclose the Group’s
ESG policies, measures and performance for our stakeholders
to understand and evaluate our sustainability efforts. The Report
is prepared in both Chinese and English, and is available on the
websites of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the
“HKEX”) (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Group (www.hopelife.hk).

Reporting Boundary

In line with the previous ESG report, this Report covers the core
business operations of the Group, namely the construction and
ancillary services business in Hong Kong. The disclosure of
environmental data is further limited to the Group’s operations of
corporate offices in Hong Kong given the difficulties in collecting
data from areas handled by property owners. We will continue
to review the reporting boundary according to the principle of
materiality and improve our data collection to promote transparent
disclosure, where appropriate.

Reporting Principles

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules
by the HKEX. It has complied with the mandatory disclosure
requirements and “comply or explain” provisions and applied the
following reporting principles stated in the ESG Guide:
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e The Report presents

e The Report was

conducted a
questionnaire survey
with its internal and
external stakeholders
to identify material
ESG issues, and
thereby, define the
disclosure focus of
the Report.
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specified, the Group
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consistent reporting
and calculation
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meaningful
comparison.
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quantitative
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available, including
the standards,
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assumptions used
and comparative
data.
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prepared in an
objective and
impartial manner that
discloses both
positive and negative
impacts of the
Group’s business
operations.

RRENRE LR
MRS - HE

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I &ERR =R ERA S



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B B REARE

Opinions and Feedback

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback and opinion to help
improve our ESG performance and sustainable development. If
you have any questions or suggestions regarding the Report or
other ESG initiatives, please contact us via info@hopelife.hk.

OUR APPROACH TO ESG

The Group is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its stakeholders and to
enhance corporate value and responsibility. We strive to integrate
ESG factors into our business operations and strategical decisions
to demonstrate our commitment to sustainable development.
Through practical actions, we endeavour to sustain our business
operations in an environmentally friendly, people-oriented and
responsible manner.

ESG Governance

The Board has the overall responsibility for the oversights of our
ESG matters, including reviewing and monitoring ESG strategies,
policies and measures, goals and targets, performances and
reporting, on a regular basis to ensure effective ESG governance.
Under the leadership of the Board, we have established an ESG
Working Group (the “Working Group”) to promote comprehensive
ESG management. Chaired by the company secretary, the
Working Group is responsible for reviewing policies and measures,
identifying key ESG issues, communicating with stakeholders
and responding to their feedback and expectations. With regular
communication, it also assists the Board in evaluating the Group’s
ESG performance and progress against ESG-related goals and
targets.

BERRRER

AEBBRDFNENRBENRER - UBHES
HPIMESGRBELAIFAERR - 0 W THAX

RE SN HEMESGHE A MR R - B
info@hopelife.nkE& 3 9B 22 o
EMAESGH &
REEBN@FRRKENLEES  REE

FOENRRRACEEBEREE - HMAM
NHEESGH F A B AT H 275 2 18 K B AGIR
B MERRIEMAEAIFERRNAG - B8E
K178 - RABHARR - UARKRAEE

ESGEA

EFEErHAREERMMESGEE - BT
HEE NERESGRE - BERMEK - BIER
IR - RELWmE - ABERBERHESGER °
EEFEENEET - RPIEKIZESGT1E/ME

(TTtENMARD - MEEZERESGEIE - T1F
NEBARMEREEER RAERABRRK
Eht - EERRESGEE - B EBBIAR
Ol SR E R AL - BRTEHER  HITH

BEZSNEAEBMNESGRIR LESGHER B
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The Board
ESY

e Oversee the ESG Working Group
ESEESGIE/A
e Review and monitor ESG strategies, policies and measures, goals
and targets, and performances
EH KL ERESCRRE - BUR MiEM - BRENIER - KB
e Approve the ESG Report
BEESGHR &

Audit Committee ESG Working Group

ERE=RE ESGI {4
e  Assist the Board in supervising the Group’s e Review ESG policies and measures
risk management and internal control system ERIESGHUR MIEHE
M EEGEEAEENREREIERAEE * ldentify key ESG issues
EFRS B RIBBRESGHERE
e Make recommendations on risk control e Communicate with stakeholders
measures B BB
YRR I R * Respond to stakeholders’ feedbacks and
expectations
. y, Bl 10 & B [ B8 I B 22
. J

Departments and division

EBFI R 53 8B

e Assist the ESG Working Group for
implementation of ESG policies and
measures
M BNESGI{E/MAE BESGHBUER M i

N\ J

The Group will continue to review and advance its ESG ANEEGHEES M HEHRESGAHRE @ 8%
governance, including strategies, policies and target-setting, B ~ iR M BAZRTE  Hm#E— */F}H—Hé'fitﬁé
thereby further embedding sustainability into its business decision- EBAAEFERENL AEIES -

making and daily operations.
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ESG Framework

As a responsible service provider, we have identified our ESG
responsibilities in striving to foster our ESG performance and

business development.

Environmental
Responsibility

BERE

e Encouraging
environmentally friendly
business operations

BEIRREBEE

e Reducing unnecessary use
of resources

AT BB ERER

e Establishing measures to
diminish climate-related
impacts

ﬁ%llTTa TR A R IEAE

e Minimizing the negative
impacts of business

operations
giﬁ@%ﬁ%‘@a@ﬁﬁ%
. J . J

=

ESGIEZ

ERBEENRBREE - BB RERFIN
ESGRIEREHER - RAISHAI KR PIMESG

Bffe

Social
Responsibility

e RE

e Enriching stakeholder
communication through
different communication
channels
FRTRIABREE IR E
&R

e Protecting the benefits and
welfare of employees

RIERE MR RAER

e Contributing to building a
harmonious society

RERMFELSEL AR

Governance
Responsibility

EARE

o Complying with laws and
regulations

BTREER

e Developing and reviewing
policies and measures as
well as monitoring their
implementation
?EIJ B R ARE BUR MBIt &
RHEEM

e Maintaining a fair and ethical
business and working
environment
HRQF - AT ERHAE
NITERE
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ESG Risk Management ESGR\f% EHE

The Board is responsible for ensuring and maintaining the

ERSEERZESNHE T B ERRIER

effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control A= @R B IR K A SPESIE RGBT - 7
systems, with the assistance of the Audit Committee. During the k& EifE - EE BRI RARSGARXEFR

Reporting Period, the Board has reviewed and considered the
systems are effective and adequate. For more details, please refer
to the Corporate Governance Report.

7o BREZFHIE  B2HLCEE WS -

The integration of our ESG framework in our enterprise risk T FIIGESGIEZR M A = F MR 2 RS B 12
management (“ERM”) processes enables us to identify ESG- ([ ¥R EJ"EJ)ET EH M AIESGAE

related risks and establish and monitor appropriate risk control & -

W HIE RERG B RRIZHIER - T

measures. The major ESG-related risk in the Reporting Period is ﬁ(%ﬁ’ﬂﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬂf‘aﬁE’]EEESG*HE@J—WA’? :

stated below:

Risk description

R B AR B

Extreme weather events The risk of loss of assets and ceasing
business operations and construction
projects due to extreme weather
events, such as severe rainstorms and
typhoons, caused by climate change.

RImRREL RIRBCEHHRE - BRAFEmAR
EMEYEERK  EBEENER
RAF AR -

Risk control measures

TR B 22 ) 45 58

e Storing the important documents in
secure area away from windows and
keep electronic copies to prevent the
loss of assets; and

¢ Developing contingency plans before
the start of projects and maintain an
active communication with clients.

o BEEXHEFHNEMEFPNZEE
- WREBEFRIRNUIEEES
xRk

o RIERRKEH] %HEEE%%%UE‘EE@%:)E
RIFTER BB
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Compliance Management anER

RE R BT EROAREARNIT /RS
BEE] - SRAAR EMRR - A HERFEL R
BEELTHEE - AERZBESNXHT
EEQEERBEN RS ARKRRMARNESL
NamBERERMAEBNERER - 117
ERERITA - RAIRIREEE R 71T A
BWHRBVAE G

The Group acknowledges that any violations of laws and
regulations may lead to penalties, litigation and other
consequences, which may have an adverse impact on its
business operations and reputation. With the support of the Audit
Committee, the Board supervises the internal control systems to
ensure that we operate in compliance with high ethical standards
and all applicable laws and regulations. In case of any violations,
we will implement detailed investigation and appropriate measures
according to the established procedures.

Aspects
Em

Emissions

BERR

Laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group

HESEAEXRENZRER

e Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Cap. 311)

e Motor Vehicle Idling (Fixed Penalty)
Ordinance (Cap. 611)

e Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400)

e Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Cap. 354)

o FEINEBZERGREHIED

o FONERHIIE=E(ERIF) K

{5
o SBA00FBREZ B HIGMI
o SE3LAEREEYIRE R

Compliance

an

Not aware of any violations of relevant
laws and regulations

MM RAAERERNIER

Employment and Labor
standards
BB M5 TIRE

e Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57)

o FEETEREED

Not aware of any violations of relevant
laws and regulations

TFHEERBBERERNEBER

Health and safety

fEErzE

e QOccupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Cap. 509)
o FL09EREL T MIERRIKA

Not aware of any violations of relevant
laws and regulations

PFEERBBERERNEBER

Product responsibility

EmEE

e |Intellectual Property (Miscellaneous
Amendments) Ordinance

e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486)

o AR CEIRIERT) IEHI

o F486EAAE R (FLE) 15 H

Not aware of any violations of relevant
laws and regulations

TFREERBBERERNEBER

Anti-corruption

e Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap. 201)

e Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-

Terrorist Financing (Financial
Institutions) Ordinance (Cap. 615)
o F201E[ I-FEER L

o FoIbEITEXABRERMOD TESSE

S (ERERE) IR0

Not aware of any violations of relevant
laws and regulations nor any
concluded legal cases against the
Group or its employees

P EE AR EREROIT R AL
HEHAEERHE THDEERREN

Annual Report 2023 3



46

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BIE - B RS ARE

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Group believes close stakeholder communication is crucial
to continuously promote its ESG performance and business
development. We have established and maintained open
and effective communication channels with our significant
stakeholders, including employees, shareholders and investors,
customers, suppliers, etc. to foster long-term collaboration.
To understand and respond to their needs and expectations,
the Group has engaged its stakeholders to identify and assess
material ESG issues during the Reporting Period.

Identification Prioritization

L3l BREEF

With reference to reporting

0 HiliE

AEEBEEFOENRIDBRENFERTT
HESGRIMEBEREMER - AT RE
2R E(BEREE  BREREKREE TP -
R %) B AR 5 R B B R R
B MEERMAE - BERENOEGMANT

KRHE - ARED N REHEANBBEERSD
E2EBH| NHEEAESGHERE

Validation

standards, market trends
and benchmarking, 14
ESG issues were selected,
covering 4 aspects of
“Environmental
Protection”, “Employment
and Labor Practices”,
“Operating Practices” and
“Community Investment”.

REREIZE MHBE
MEAE - BRNE 14
ESGwrE ' EFRE IR
Rl - [EERSTIER
I T8EEN] & [+
RI%E | MEHmE o

\

J

Different stakeholders Aft(ajar thef.Boa;d’s rﬁview
were invited to conduct an 3.n lcon |rrrr1]a |otr)1  KEY d
online questionnaire and disclosure nas been macie
rate the importance of in response to the material
each issue to stakeholders BEL lesues,
and the Group’s business. IR :
Based on the materiality ﬁii;sﬁ”ﬁ E?’; m %gg
assessment, a priority list %ﬁ .
of ESG issues was =
formed.
BEE TR EHEITHE
FEBRAE - W EZE
BERMHERNEBES
ME ST - RIE
B2MEHE - HIFTESGH
EHBIRTIRK »
. J . J
W3R IR - A BB B RI7 6 S KESGH

The Group has identified 7 material ESG issues during the
Reporting Period, mainly concerning “Employment and Labor
Practices” and “Operating Practices” aspects. Striving to balance
the opinions and interests of different stakeholders, we will
continue to enhance our stakeholder communication and expand
the number of participants.

B ITESRERRETIER IR EEED]
JIMH e R%ﬂﬁiﬁiT\ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ’Jﬁ%&ﬁW
B EENRITNERR  LHEA2E
g
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Watt
KE

Climate change

RiRE(

HEEWRYLEE
sJepjoyayels o0} asuenodwy]

.

Community
investment

HERERE

Waste
BEY a

.

Prevention of child
and forced labor

FriEET &
SRHIST
Energy
eﬁ\\\

er

R Supply chain
management
g E R

and air pollutants
/ﬂn:l:ﬁgm
Training and  Z=5R)5 2%
development
'\ IR R
Green
procurement

RERE

\ Greenhouse gas

Anti-corruption
&E el

\ Occupational

health and safety
Employment
system

R

Product
responsibility
EmEE

Very Important Issue
FEEEEE

Very important issues

FRERRE

Importance to the Group’s B

HERERBHERY

usiness

Moderate issues

— RS

e Anti-corruption e Water
RES KEIR
e QOccupational health and safety
BEERET D

e Prevention of child and forced labor
FribE T RagH4 T

e Employment system
EREHE

e Supply chain management
HEEER

e Energy
EEVA

e Product responsibility
EmEE

Greenhouse gas and air pollutants
/ml:t:ﬁ'g';& ﬁ/‘q%%
Training and development
o) B R

Waste

REEY)

Climate change

RIREb

Green procurement
FERE

Community investment

HERRE
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ETHICAL OPERATION

The Group treats business ethics and quality of service as the
first priority in all business activities to drive its stable and long-
term business development. To promote quality services, we
have implemented our stringent quality assurance, supplier
management and advanced technology application. The Group
has developed the Sustainability Policy, the Code of Conduct
and the Internal Control Policies and Procedures Manual, to
strengthen its compliant operation. Our robust management and
monitoring mechanism also ensure strict compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations.

Anti-corruption

The Group is fully committed to the principle of honesty, integrity
and fair play in all its businesses and activities, striving to maintain
the highest level of business ethics. Any forms of unethical
practices, including but not limited to bribery, fraud, money
laundering and corruption, are strictly prohibited.

We have established a series of internal policies, guidelines and
measures to ensure ethical practices and prevent non-compliance
or legal violations. For example, our tender policy has clearly
specified employees’ obligations, duties and responsibilities in
preventing conflicts of interest. During the procurement process,
employees are required to submit a written declaration to
supervisor and CEO in the events of actual or potential conflict of
interest, which work re-assignment will be arranged to safeguard
corporate integrity. To operate our businesses in an open and fair
manner, we also provide a copy of the tender policy with verbal
explanation to our suppliers and contractors.

To ensure our accountability, the Group has a whistle-blowing
policy in place to encourage reporting any misconducts,
malpractices or irregularities through confidential channels,
including our whistle-blower hotline or in-writing to the Audit
Committee. All received cases and personal information are kept
confidential to protect whistle-blower from any risk of termination.
The Group will immediately carry out serious investigation and
take proper follow-up actions, including reporting to relevant
regulatory authorities when necessary.

The Group provides regular training to employees to enhance
their anti-corruption awareness. Anti-money laundering training
is arranged to new employees and directors within 6 months of
joining the Group to reinforce their understanding on relevant
regulations and internal policies and measures. During the
Reporting Period, we have provided 1 hour of anti-corruption
training to our employees and the Board respectively.

EREEE

AEEKHRBENMRBEEERIAEBE
BNEECLH  UHEPEXBRERERHRE
& - REEREERY  RACBERBENEE
RiE - HEBBELTERMER - ARED
HIE AT A BRI - BT T AA K A ED R
BRI IR E A RE S - Hifii2
EHVETE N BT I MR BIR B ST E A AR
R

R&EH

AEBGCEMEEBEST2HRTHE
BERXFHEFORE - EHRFRSKFH
BEREE - BEEAUEANTBETR B
BTRNAER - BFF - HERBERES °

B HIE—FRIIARBEEK - 1551 RIEHE - A
BREBREBYHIETARIBIETS - O
- HAAIRHRRBRET 8 TRy L FIaR &R
TENED BENREE - NRBBEET - 0
BAEBRREENNEER  BETARNEER
TTHRAEFHEMRE - WP THERES - A
HMELEHNE - RUAHAFHTALEE
% - BRI E R KA ERE— O BIER
SREBIANI D SRARRE o

REREMANEES - AEED HE R |RIK
B NEEEBRMANBRARIASELA
AEZZEESREREBRETMIETR
BRI RUERITR - FTAREMNERREA
ERBERE - ARERFARZETEER
[ o ANER B BB K SR B 1T 78 2 X BRER
BENRETE  BERCERMABEER
B o

AEEFH/E TRHEEI - RESHMNKR
BEEEH -  BA/ARKEARNHFETR
EERHROREEN - LINREEBRER K
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RETIREESRHE T/ NROREFEI -
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Supply Chain Management

To ensure our service quality and sustainability performance,
the Group has placed considerable attention to supply chain
management. In the selection process, we have developed a set
of standardized assessment criteria, including industry credentials,
business scale, financial stability and work quality, to determine
supplier’s eligibility in the list of approved partners. Annual review
and evaluation will be conducted to ensure performance of all
suppliers and contractors has met our requirements. Those with
sub-standard performance or incompliance with the established
criteria will be disqualified and removed from our list.

Through close monitoring on environmental and social risks in
the supply chain, the Group regularly review and revise relevant
requirements for risk minimization, facilitating the long-term and
sustainable cooperation with our suppliers and contractors. We
also have incorporated environmental requirements in tender
documents, such as timber with environmental labels, paints and
sealants with low volatile organic compound (“VOC”) content,
etc., which higher preference will be granted to suppliers and
contractors with environmentally responsible performance, in
order to promote sustainable supply chain. We will continue to
review and update the relevant requirements to minimize the
environmental and social risks associated with our supply chain.

HERTE

RERBMANREEERAIFEERER - K
SEFFERHEEERE - MERBEED - R
PIEHIE —EFRELNHEFRE - BRETRE
B XBRE BBREERTIEEE - UE
EHEFEEEERINAZENGIERE - }
e ETERERN LT - AERAEHIER
FABENRBATERMOER - ZFERR
TG BEE AR R SR B R
WEOHER AR IR EPRS -

BRTYERHEETNREIEERAR - A
SEEHEE MERTRARERERAFTE KR
K - REERMNEERABRRNRD
RAIFHE AR o PR BERE A IARR
23R PR SRERENOAN - SEEENE
BRIEM([ERICEY]) BmE kBB
o RAHEEEEARHREARRANOMH
FER SR B - IMEE R FEHRERE - RS
HEESNEFEBRER  URERDERM
R ESEAENRE AL RS -

2023 Number of suppliers
—E-=F fiErE e
By geographical regions Hong Kong 127
L IR 5 B aBH
Other regions 3
Hibih|&
By nature Services 67
BMEED AR5
Hardware 63
B

Product Responsibility

The Group strives to maintain high standard of quality and
reliability for our services to align with customers’ expectation.
With active communication with customers, contractors, suppliers
and other parties, we closely manage and monitor service quality
and compliance of regulations. For instance, clear specifications
for materials are stated in the contracts to ensure fulfilling the
requirements for environmentally friendly operation. For quality
control, managers are responsible for regular inspections during
the construction while the top management and customers will
conduct final check to assure the quality of works. Additionally,
we generally grant 3-month post-delivery service to promote
customer satisfaction.

ERRE

AEEZNERFINRBERSTENDGER
AN URAEPHME - BREEP - &
B HERMEMSTOERER - HMAE
DEERERRBEERERERME - flan
KA ETAMERE - UBERHERFRES
MEF - A ERHIME - EEABREANE
ERETETERRSES  MESEEEMER
PETREBEABRIELE - thoh - B
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To secure good reputation and sustainable business development,
the Group emphasizes the importance of cybersecurity and
data privacy. We have formulated policies and regulations for
confidentiality to minimize the risk of information leakage and
cyber-attack, including but not limited to:

- Employees are prohibited from divulging any confidential
information to third party without prior consent;

- Employees should ensure the safe keeping of all confidential
documents;

- Employees shall access the internet through connections
approved by the outsourced information technology
company and the Executive Director;

- Employees shall not download or install any unauthorized
software;

- Passwords are required for access to computer, network
and server;

Pursuant to laws and regulations, the Group’s administration
department will conduct proper investigation and handling for any
violation.

The Group values and protects the intellectual property rights of
all parties. Our policies and regulations have clearly stipulated that
employees are not allowed to use, download, upload or replicate
any material of the Group or other parties without authorization.
We will undergo investigation in case of copyright infringement,
which summary dismissal, legal and criminal action may be taken.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not received any
complaint relating to our services, intellectual property rights
or customer and data privacy. When received any complaint,
the Group will communicate with the relevant employees and
customers to promptly and properly handle the case. Corrective
and preventive actions will also be implemented to improve our
quality.

PEOPLE-ORIENTED

The Group believes employees are the key driving force to our
sustainable development, it is therefore committed to maintaining
a fair, healthy and safe working environment for our employees.
We have the Employee Handbook, the Internal Control Policies
and Procedures Manual and Sustainability Policy in place to
reinforce our human resources management.
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REBRIOER - UEREREESIRE PR
WEHER - BRETRR

- KEFERE
EAETES

BIEETRAFE=7TRE
- BIRERZEREMAMEXT

- BIRBBINEBEEERMA
EHOERER T B

AIRHITE

M ARERENE

— HEEZBIHEEN B8 NIR%R

RIBERER - AEBWTREFIBERTT
RETEENHEREIE -

REBERIL RES 7 HFBERE - LIV
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Occupational Health and Safety

Occupational health and safety is the top priority of the Group.
We are committed to creating and maintaining a safe and
healthy working environment for our employees. To this end, we
have established stringent measures and internal guidelines to
strengthen our safety management.

To ensure the safety standards and awareness of our employees,
the Group requires all employees to attend safety training
courses provided by verified organizations and confirms their
working eligibility with a valid Construction Industry Safety
Training Certificate (Green Card). Employees are required to use
the personal protective equipment provided to promote safe
operation.

The Group provides comprehensive protection for workplace
and personal safety. Apart from implementing safety rules and

REBRAZZ

BERFERZE2AASENE RIS - RAXK
7]#7%5\IEUL&”&F?%&KE’JI{’EL@R °
At - A BIE AR A G R ARSI
MRRFNLZEERE -

BERETINLZ2ZERER  AEETRA
BETIZ2NERERBIRENLZZHEIFRE
WAB MR EEL 2 IRERES (L) E
RETEER - ETWAFREERENEA
PrEREAREL B -

AEEBRTIESMEAFZE2RHEERE
BREMNIER MR AEERLT 2R R NEE

measures at both our projects and offices, we ensure adequate ¥ * TFITMFERIEZH RN T 2RME - NEY
safety equipment is available for instant response to any  {E{a]E&IE 0 E B S MEH BN = E
emergency situation or potential incident.

Workplace safety Personal safety

IERFRR2 EHAZZ

e Offering first-aid kits on sites and at office; e Arranging annual body check for all employees; and

I8 B 5 R E R IR SoRAE
e Scheduling regular fire drill; and °
EHRHNEERE &
e Posting evacuation plan at prominent locations.
B IREORAN A FRAR

RFIEEBLHFESBRE &
Providing accidental insurance, medical insurance
and travel insurance to all employees.

REAREEREE

SMRER - BEERRER R IREERER o

The Group regularly reviews and updates our occupational health
and safety-related measures and performance to foster effective
monitoring and management, enhance hazard prevention, and
cultivate a healthy and safe corporate culture.

In the past three years, including the Reporting Period, the
Group had zero work-related injuries or fatalities. In the event of
work-related accidents, we will provide immediate support and
thoroughly investigate the cause to formulate enhancement and
corrective measures for risk minimization and prevention.

Employment System

The Group strives to promote the well-being and development
of our employees. We have established a comprehensive
employment system to ensure all employment practices are
in strict compliance with relevant laws and regulations. For
implementation, our Employee Handbook, Internal Control
Policies and Procedures Manual have stipulated employment-
related guidelines and measures related to recruitment and
compensation, retention and benefits, promotion, working hours,
etc., to facilitate stringent management and monitoring. With that,
the Group sustains a fair and efficient working environment to
safeguard employees’ legitimate rights and interests.

AEBTHRT R EHEBEEREL 2
BHE N R  DMREAREIE N ERE - NEe
=38 - WEERREMEZEMNTEE -

RBE=ZFR(BRBEHHE)  ARETER
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IR RN Iy RS MUK AERE - ABIFT 2R
EREITAER - ARSRRE LRI RS -
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Recruitment and dismissal
BERRE

* Employees are recruited based on their working ability, working performance and other objective
indicators. Responsible department and personnel will undergo recruitment procedures through legal
channels to avoid |Ilegal employment.

BEREENTIER Y - TIERREREAMBTEERETHRE - BEMFIRAS BB EZRBEERE
By BeIEERER -

» Whenever there are dismissals of employees, the Group will provide corresponding compensation and
review based on their career perspective.

REEBRER  ASESREEBEMNSEHERNHERES -

. J
Retention and compensation
RERMR

* The Group conducts an annual review of employees’ remuneration packages. According to their
working performance, ability, local salary indices and relevant indicators, adjustment to salary, welfare
and benefits will be made when appropriate.

REBEESNFMESETEREREN - RMRBIERR - 82 - EMFIEERERAER - &
RéEe  BARFBIELAE -

» Employees are provided with insurances, statutory holidays and paid and non-paid leaves, as well as
short-term courses or training recommended by their managers or upon request.

EEESRE  EEBRAANEHLEHEANE LR EES R E R HNEHRE -

Diversity, equal opportunity and anti-discrimination

Bt FERE R RIFR

* The Group remains zero tolerance to any violation of regulations in relation to diversity, equal
opportunity and anti-discrimination, and encoura%es the report of violations. .
FEESEUERABZ T TERERRINERTNTAREADEE - THHERERTA -

* Fair employment and recruitment procedures are in place to safeguard the rights of equal opportunity
for candidates and employees in all age group, gender, race, nationality, region, sexual orientations and
other aspects.

i A WE{J%&?EHJEF“ REEFTA EleER - 1R - Bk - B£E - & - ERmEH ENREE RE
B2 TPEREER -

Diversity, equal opportunity and anti-discrimination

SRt - FHFBERRULHR

 The Group discourages and prohibits forcing employees to work overtime in all forms. If there is any
forced labor discovered, thorough investigation will be carried out and violators will be subject to
disciplinary action.
fj%gégﬁbiﬁi—%twﬂﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%Iﬂufﬁ c MNBMAARALT - BETREAS  EREBX
BB RED ©

* The use of child labor is strictly forbidden. During the recruitment process, the Human Resources
Department is responsible for checking the identity documents to verify their eligibility to work.
BERAET - £HREBEY - AVBERBEERHSIHEN  UMRBETIEER -

* When illegal workers or child labor is discovered, their application will be rejected and report will be
made to relevant department.

WMBFIDEBTHET - HAFHEIER - WiKABRBEFIHRE
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During the Reporting Period, the Group employed 15 employees, R &EHIRE @ AEERAB15%EE - 75
including 7 male and 8 female employees, all of whom are M &8ZZL M - TEREHANEBRPEA
full-time employees in Hong Kong and China. The overall tumover  2BEE ° @RAE 526.67% ° RIIEFHT

rate was 26.67%. Our employment profile is detailed as follows: EFBIT
Total employees by age group Total employees by gender
REFBREREISHESE RUEBIBSHES A
55-64 years old: 1 Over 64 years old: 0 Malo: 7
55-645% 1 14 B4pRIA L 0% ae:
Bt 74

Under 35 years old: 2

45-54 years old: 5
35EIA T 1 2%

45-B4%5% : 5%

35-44 years old: 7

35-445% : T4 F;Ea!eé%
Turnover rate by gender Turnover rate by age group
RIERIEI SRR R BRERARE 2 RKE

100% 100%

90% 90%

80% 80%

70% 70%

60% 60% | 50.00%

50% 50%

40% 40%

30% 25.57% 25.00% 30% 20.00%

20% I I 0% 14.29% WA
10% 10% . I 0.00% iEA

0% 0%

'gﬁﬁ'ie F%&'e Under 35-44 45-54 55-64 Over 64

35 years old yearsold years old years old years old
35pRPAN  35F44p%  45EBARL  55%64B%  64EUAL
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Training and Development

The Group considers the continual education and development
of employees as imperative to its business development. Guided
by our internal policies and procedures, the Human Resources
Department formulates different training plans according to
employees’ needs, equipping them with adequate knowledge and
skills to perform their duties in a competent and capable manner.
In particular, the Group provides sufficient safety training to our
employees at project sites, including skilled worker training and
Construction Industry Safety Training, to uphold construction
safety.

We support upskilling and personal development of our
employees with short-term courses and training recommended
by managers or upon request. Additional to internal training,
the Group also provides financial support to employees for
taking external training and courses, so as to enhance their
work performance and encourage career progression. For
the long-term development of employees and the Group, we
conduct annual appraisal to review and assess the working ability
and performance of employees. Accordingly, we will provide
promotion opportunity or an adjusted remuneration package to
outstanding employees in demonstrating our appreciation to their
contribution.

During the Reporting Period, the Group provided training for
a total of 7 (46.67%) new employees and the overall average
training hours per employee was 0.57 hour.

RN R
AEBERAREENHEHE LERBHEERR
REMER - ERMNVABERLEFHIES]
T ANWERBRIEE TR RHET T RAVE
AETE - EHMIABRANMBMZREE - AR
ELRBRENMETRE ZIKE@%EU?%IE HT
e B TIRERMNRZ2ZI - BREEMTIA
B g R L 2 A%ﬁ?%ﬁmlﬁif’

BB BRI R SR 2RI HIRIE &
BAIIA R B THORGBERTT R AAERE - BA
AREEBISN - AR E IR E BhE B 2 IR
RIE  UIRTHRE M TIERIN RSB H B %
‘- REHE T MAKENRERE - RFAE
TEENZ  BELFHE TN TR RE
Mo At - BAIHAESE TIRESAHEK
HEEHGE - URERPEBPIMERR
HY KL o

RREIRE - AEB K A7H(46.67%)FE Tik
MR BT EUA0.57/ N\ ©
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ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group strives to minimize the
negative impact of its business operation to the environment. We
have established the Sustainability Policy to develop policies and
measures in order to promote environmental conservation and
minimize potential environmental risks.

Use of Resources

Aiming to accelerate the transition to a circular economy in its
sustainable development, the Group is committed to optimizing
the use and management of natural resources. We foster
effective resources utilization in our business operations through
minimizing resource consumption and maximizing recycling. We
have therefore developed energy and water efficiency targets
and implemented a series of management measures to promote
efficient use of energy, water and other resources, as well as to
lower and avoid wastage. By enhancing environmental awareness
of our employees and providing facility support, the Group has
created a favorable working environment for green practices and
environmental conservation.

Facility Support

B RE

ER—RABETNEE  AEERNKEER
LEHRBEEKNEBEAFERERE - B
HEREEREE  RRERFEREVEE
D B BRR R B RR MR b o

WikfEH

BINEARBREBEERNAFHERR - A5H
BHEBICBRERNERRER - HMEEHR
ERADERBFER IR EWFIA - REFNE
BELZRREARNEREM - Bt - B2
HERREAKEERR XY EE—RIIEE
EHE - AR BEIR K R E AL B IR E = A
A AR R RRE - BiRiEE 8 THMIRR
BRLEHEESR - ARESEEREER
FIRFREANE R I TR -

Employee Awareness

B

e Adopting energy-efficient equipment and lighting
system with Grade 1 energy labels; and

&
e Setting up plantation in offices.
ERAERERER -

RAEA - RERAERHNERERE L RBRES

&R =&

Encouraging employees to switch off the lighting
system and electronic appliances after used or
before leaving the office;

X B TE (R 12 SRR T A = Al B HE PR A R 4t )
Maintaining office air conditioning at 25.5 degrees
Celsius;

BRI AETERRRNE25.5F

Using natural light where appropriate;

B R B AR

Switching off idling engines;

BifE =S| E

Posting energy-saving and water-saving reminders
in office areas;

TEP N RALE B SR BRI

Purchasing stationery and office supplies in bulk;
and

HERBXARM L AM : &

Prioritizing the use of less or zero packaging
materials.

BhEREORTOEOME -
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During the Reporting Period, total energy consumption of the R ¥k B - AEE R BLRE 48 £ 536.89
Group accounted for 36.89 MWh with an intensity of 2.46 MWh/  JKFLE - 2 A2 46K L B8 » & E—4F
employee, which have decreased by 14% and 2% respectively  E2 Bl A 14%K2% e

when compared to the previous year.

2023 2022 Unit
Energy consumption BEiREFE =5 —E-= =R v
Direct energy consumption: BB  UE 17.34 19.02 MWh
Petrol JKEL R
Indirect energy consumption:  FEZERERERE : BN 19.55 23.83 MWh
Electricity JKELBF
Total energy consumption LR EREEE 36.89 42.84 MWh
JKELES
Energy intensity (by employee) fEIRZE (AEERTE 2.46 2.52  MWh/employee
KER B8

In terms of water resources, we did not encounter any difficulties ~ Fi/KERM 5 * BT SLEUCR I 8 38 5| (£ (7]
in sourcing water. Our water supply is provided the property — E% - HFINEKAREB P A=Y EESIE
management of the Group’s office, therefore accurate water — J73eft - E I XESEBMAKEEIE - K
consumption data is not available. The Group will continue to S B # & e =T Rk E RN BRI E R E R
review and improve our data collection and information disclosure  #E * MAKRKZIRE L AEARIEHE -

to present a more comprehensive performance overview in the

future.

Carbon and Air Emissions Tk R T8 % B3 SR BRI

Despite the Group generates limited emissions from its office- BEAEBHNBRAETLEMEENENRESR
based operation, it strives to reduce its environmental footprint R+ DB D EEIRBHE T - AEYER
in contribution to combating climate change and protecting  {R&EL RIRERBIEH BB - ZEB RN T
the environment. Considering our major emissions sources are  ZHEHUR AT R KB HARRERE -
electricity use and fuel consumption from vehicle use, the Group ~ AEBEE ANEBHIFTRIEBZ - B3R KE
has devoted effort to decarbonize our business through the E1R2BR=RE(CAEERE DHREE @ B
establishment of emission reduction targets, including reducing — F{MIZEBAIARBERN o FEERENZ IHE 15 J158 BE IR
scope 1 and 2 greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions intensities.  REFHEIZMN R - NEB IR E =P
While various measures have been introduced to enhance our 1 » ABEFTREE M ©

energy and vehicle management, the Group also maintains

continuous monitoring on the emissions data for evaluation and

improvement.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
IRIE - e &M;m MR

TN

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total GHG emissions W& HIM - KAEEN LA ERBHINAEE 5
was 19.09 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent and the intensity ~ 19.00W8 &bk E & @ BE H1.27H8 — &bk
was 1.27 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/employee. EE&,/BE - 88T~ —F# - HEPEsE
Compared to 2022, the total emissions and intensity have REZEDBIEA14%K%2% °

reduced by 14% and 2% respectively.

2023 2022 Unit
GHG emissions BE RN —E-=HF —E-o—F Ef
Scope 1 Direct emissions! gENEEHER 4.69 5.22  tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent
—EtiEE
Scope 2 Energy indirect & B 288 R M ke 14.40 16.92 tonnes of carbon
emissions? dioxide equivalent
“SftixE=
Total GHG emissions AEREHINBE 19.09 22.14 tonries of carbon
dioxide equivalent
“EREE
GHG intensity (by employee) RERBEZRE(AES 1.27 1.30 tonnes of
FTE) carbon dioxide
equivalent/
employee
E—EtimEsE
(3=
The air emissions generated by the Group during the Reporting R SR & HAR - 25 B & 4 /) B R/ HE S R a0
Period were as follows: ™
2023 2022 Unit
Air pollutants emissions® 2RISR k- Sl 2 —F--F EBf
NO, A&ty 1.38 1.42 kg
T
S0, maty 0.03 0.03 kg
T
RSP AR ASRF LT 0.09 0.10 kg
T
1 Includes direct emissions from combustion of gasoline from vehicles. ! BIEREWRGETVRE EEEY -
2 Includes energy indirect emissions of electricity purchased from power 2 BERENRFEENE NHREETR
companies.
3 Includes gasoline combustion from vehicles. 8 BRI Th ©
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Wastes

The Group advocates responsible and sustainable waste
management to reduce its environmental impacts. We ensure
proper waste handling and disposal to avoid pollution while
minimizing waste generation to enhance resources utilization.
To reinforce waste management, the Group has developed
corresponding measures based on 3R principles (Reduce, Reuse
and Recycle), to align with our established waste reduction
targets.

Reduce .
products;

BExM

AEBREBEERAIFSENEDER DA)W
DHERBENTE - RABRZZRIERE
BEEVMARELISR - RSRERD f%?ib(
REERMAX - BINREYNER  AEECD
RIFSRRACOR A - AR EIY) 6 7E 18 EHE
e AERARMEHEARREB R o

Prioritizing the use of less packaging and environmentally friendly

e Advocating the use of reusable tableware and containers;
e Encouraging double-sided printing; and

Promoting the use of electronic documents and communication.

Recycling non-reusable paper, plastic and metals; and

e Recycling compact fluorescent lamps, toners and cartridges.

L o EAGARIBRENRRER:
o REFRAFEANBEARARS:
o HENEMITH : &
o HEEATFXER °
Reuse e Reusing printed paper; and
e Reusing used plastic and metals as containers.
EH o HAEHIRIAR : &
e ERCAZERBLTEBIEDSS -
Recycle .
El4x o MO RAIERAMAK ZBREE : &

o [EIKEREHE - HHLER -

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not generate any
hazardous waste. Meanwhile, it produced a total of 1.38 tonnes
of non-hazardous waste, with an intensity of 0.07 tonnes/
employee, which was general waste from office operation and
was appropriately handled by the property management. It has
resulted in a 3% drop of total non-hazardous waste compared to
the previous year.

RIEHE  AEETEELETNEEEE
W o R EHEA1ICEREREEY  BE
BOOTHE /BT BRPABLELN—RE
EY) o THYESBEISERE -BIE—FF
M EEEEYBE TE3% °

Non-hazardous 2023 2022 Unit
waste generation EBEBREDESE ZE=F —ET-_-F BHfi
Total non-hazardous waste EEEBEYEE 1.38 1.42  tonnes
S
Non-hazardous waste intensity EEREZYRE (LAMES 0.07 0.08  tonnes/employee
(by employee) FTE) (1=
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Climate Change

The Group recognizes the severe impacts of climate change are
increasingly threatening its business operations and development.
[t regards the identification and management of climate-related
risks and opportunities important to enhance its ability to adapt
and mitigate climate change. On the decision-making level, the
Group regularly evaluates and assesses the potential risk and
opportunities to formulate targeted management strategies and
action plans. We have also incorporated climate-related risks
into our ERM processes, which foster the implementation and
monitoring of relevant risk control measures.

In view of the increasing extreme weather, including heavy
rainstorms and super typhoons, the Group has secured important
documents in safe area away from windows and has saved
electronic copies to prevent asset losses. We also will formulate
contingency plan at the initial stage of projects and maintain active
communication with clients when extreme weather is anticipated,
in order to minimize disruption and damage to construction
facilities and operations as well as to avoid project delay.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group takes careful consideration of the environmental
impacts caused by our construction projects to ensure operating
our business in an environmentally responsible manner. Through
systematic control and management, we strive to minimize
construction waste and noise generated during our construction,
in order to limit our impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

Construction waste management o

mixEqL

AEEEHIIREECNEEZELADRERE
HEBELRBR - ARERSHA LEER
RARMARIR AR R & B IE e FUB FE MUR AR
RECNEENIEREE - WARER - A58
EHFHERAHEBERR RS - PABIE R
UM EIRRE RTEEE - AT RIEAE
BARRAARPNEXRARERREF - e
FER R E B e B S B -

ERNERMERBRAS TR RAREBHE - K~
SECKEBXHEREMEFPN L 2RI
WRFEFRIRNAG IEEERK - BTSN
BEMHGIET RSN R - WERFHBREGGRX
REFREPRFBEREE  UEERDEET
RSB TR RIEEAN B RIA BT

BREXAREER

Zli'ilﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁﬂ’ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ‘%“Tiﬁfﬁ%_}ﬂ?ﬁ’]
FHE - UERNUHREA AT ALERFIN
RS o BBAGCHOEHI RER - RARNH
L@ EE R REREN KR T F iﬂ—ﬂ;ﬁ
A B RER BAEROZE

Hiring licensed and registered suppliers for handling construction waste;

* Requiring contractors to be responsible for managing waste disposal
onsite in accordance with relevant laws and regulations; and
e Failure in compliance will result in termination of business partnership.

BREEHER .

RISFFIE & O A M e p pE IR s SRR KL
o ENRBRARBEMEMEEEIAAR

REBEMEENER &

o BEFAERMEBRHELAERREK -

Noise management .

Conducting construction activities mainly during daytime to lower noise

disruption to the surrounding neighborhood and environment;

* Arranging operation of low noise level when nighttime construction is
necessary and collecting feedback and suggestions from residents
nearby to facilitate understanding and improvement; and

e When received a complaint, reviewing the construction arrangement
and carrying out communication to reach a consensus.

EERE/\E' RETHR /AR - MURDH B R MIRERRE TE

o FERMBLE ZHERSEER  WRENIERNREER ME
 (RHEIR AR SR ¢ [

. 5%&%@

BB T RERETAR

 LABERK A o
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COMMUNITY CARING

In devotion to its social responsibility, the Group has been
actively seeking opportunities to give back to the society, as
outlined in the Sustainability Policy. We concern the needs and
development of communities where we operate and help those in
need through community services and charity donations. Our key
focus areas include elderly, orphans, chronic patients, disabled,
unprivileged families and victim from natural disasters. The Group
also encourages our employees to participate in our community
initiatives in contribution to building a harmonious society.

In the future, we will continue to refine the relevant policy and
explore ways to create positive impact to the society.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I &ERR =R ERA S

iRt E

RETHEEL  AEE-—HREESKHEER
A o MMA AR RBR A - BRAIBTE
EECEBENFRNER - BB EREEE
EZRBEBARENA - BANERATEY
BREEFA R - BERESE  BKRA B
REERBARLEREE - NAEETZEIEER
2EMRED  RERMBELSIELER -

A& - RS EETS BB - RRET
ELXFEZENFE -
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PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW RUEE
Environmental BIR
Environmental Key 2023 2022 2021 Unit
Performance Indicators* RERBRNER —EC= “E-CF —T-F EfI
Air Pollutant emissions® BERERYHN
NO, FE=Hld) 1.38 1.42 151 kg
T
S0, el 0.03 0.03 003 kg
T
RSP AR ARRZRLF 0.09 0.10 011 kg
TR
GHG emissions BEREFT
Scope 1 Direct emissions' HEVEEH 4.69 5.22 6.31  tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent
B_fiREE
Scope 2 Energy indirect HE28 R A 14.40 16.92 2411 tonnes of carbon dioxide
emissions? equivalent
B_AiEE
Total GHG emissions RERBHNAS 19.09 2214 30.42  tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent
M-SlREE
GHG intensity (by employee) BERERE(NMEER 1.27 1.30 1.60  tonnes of carbon dioxide
iE) equivalent/employes
M—EiEE/EE
Non-hazardous waste BEEEY
Total non-hazardous waste BEEEYGE 1.38 1.42 145  tonnes
14
Non-hazardous waste intensity ~ EEEENZE (MES 0.07 0.08 0.08  tonnes/employee
(by employes) #E) /B8
Energy consumption BEiFEFRE
Direct energy consumption: Petrol - BIRALRIARE /M 17.34 19.02 21.84  MWh
KRB
Indirect energy consumption: EE V)| 19.55 23.83 3395 MWh
Flectricity KRB
Total energy consumption R EERE 36.89 42.84 55.79  MWh
KR
Energy intensity (oy employee) R E (AEERTE) 2.46 2.52 2.94  MWh/employee
KRE/EE
4 The calculation of air emissions and GHG emissions were with reference to 4 R A ERENENTE IR EBHMI M

HKEx’s “How to prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs”.

ARERE B RERREME—

RIRERIES]]

IRIBRASRAEN
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SOCIAL ite
Social Key Performance Indicators It ERARIENEE
Total employees 2023 2022
ERE8 —E—= T4
By gender Male 7 8
RIERIE D S
Female 8 9
peqid
Be age group Under 35 years old 2 3
RFERE D 35ERIA T
35-44 years old 7 7
35-445%
45-54 years old 5 6
45-547%,
55-64 years old 1 1
55-645%
Over 64 years old 0 0
B4BRIA L
By employment type Full time 15 17
ZEEENE S S
Part time 0 0
By geographical region Hong Kong 12 14
LR R E 5 BB
China (PRC) 3 3
aa
By employment level General staff 0 0
RERBARS D EWmET
Supervisor 7 7
B3
Middle management 1 1
FEEEAE
Senior management 7 9
SREEAB
Total
Gy 15 17

Hope Life International Holdings Limited U&&EISIZRHRA S
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Employee turnover rate 2023 2022
ERRKE —z-= T F
By gender Male 28.57% 12.50%
ZMRIE D St
Female 25.00% 44.44%
g
By age group Under 35 years old 50.00% 0.00%
RFhED 35T
35-44 years old 14.29% 42.86%
35-44%%
45-54 years old 20.00% 33.33%
45-545%
55-64 years old 0.00% 0.00%
55-645%
Over 64 years old Not applicable  Not applicable
B4ERA L ~EH TEA
By employment type Full time 26.67% 29.41%
ZEEENE S £
Part time Not applicable Not applicable
FH AEHR TiEA
By geographical region Hong Kong 25.00% 28.57%
ZIR R E 5 B
China (PRC) 33.33% 33.33%
e
By employment level General staff Not applicable  Not applicable
ZEERRE S TWMET ~EH ANiE
Supervisor 0.00% 21.05%
Ea=,
Middle management 0.00% 15.79%
FEEEAER
Senior management 57.14% 36.84%
SREEAE
Total
st 26.67% 29.41%
Health and safety 2023 2022 2021
REERZ -BZ= —ZT-F %
Work-related injuries (employees) ITEAB(RE) 0 0 0
Lost days due to work-related injuries TEEXTIERY 0 0 0
Work-related fatalities (employees) IrH(EE) 0 0 0
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Percentage Average
of employees training hours
Employee training® trained per employee
ZAMET BURTH
BTl B FIYEIIGR
(hours)
(%) (/N )
By gender Male 57.1% 0.50
BIERIE S B
Female 42.9% 0.67
i
By employment level General staff Not applicable  Not applicable
ZEEERE S TWMET N3 R N3 A
Supervisor 0.00% 0.00
B3
Middle management 100.00% 0.50
FEEEAE
Senior management 85.71% 0.58
SHREEAE
Total
et 46.67% 0.57
Supply chain 2023 2022
friEsE = B
By geographical region Hong Kong 127 109
IR [R5 5 BB
Other regions 3 2
HAbib[=
By supplier nature Services 67 61
BHEREEE S PR 75
Hardware 63 50
W
Total
st 130 111
5 Employee training statistics include existing employees of the Group and ~ © B TIEgst AN EEER B T MR B R
those who have resigned during the Reporting Period. MET -
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX BRXESGESINB RS
Aspects Description Page/Remark
i={:] fiiik HR ik

A1 Emissions

A1EER

General Disclosure Information on: 45, 55-57

—RIKE

A1.3

A14

A1.6

A2 Use of Resources
A2EF{ER
General Disclosure

— R EE
A2.1

A2.2

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRBERMEERBEN - FKRLDHOEES - BF

LBEBREMNEESH
(@ BK: &

(o) ETHEITABERZEEREE KRN
BB R} o

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

e iR A AR R BB -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)

greenhouse gas emissions and intensity.

B (EE1) MREE (BE2) AERBHREEE -

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

FEXEEREENMHEERTE °

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

FESEREREENEERTE -

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to

achieve them.

HRIFTRI M EE B IE R AERIEER

HBE

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous

wastes are handled, and a description of reduction

target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

R ERIE R E NEEEEMN L - LEMPTEI I

R B AR R RED|E L B R ERER A PR o

RFTEREREY

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.
ERERAER(BIEGR - KEREAMEME) BB
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in
total and intensity.
REREIDHERERSHEEEREEERTE
Water consumption in total and intensity.

RIEKENBE -

57, 61

57, 61

58
58, 61

556-67

58

55

56, 61

56
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
=i} fiii i HR i
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and 55

steps taken to achieve them.

P RT LBV REIRIE A e B IR R RE RS L B 1RPT

EREREY A BE -
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 55-56

water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)

set and steps taken to achieve them.

FEIUSKEGE AR LRI AR - ARPIET A

K B IR R AERE L B AR PAEREREY 28R -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and  The topic is immaterial to

per unit produced.

MR BEMHNEENBEEBMNE -

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

ASRIE R X ARE

General Disclosure

— AR R
A3.1

A4 Climate Change
AdFEE{L

General Disclosure

—RIKE

A4

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.

B EIT ABIRIERAARERENERZERBUR -
Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions

taken to manage them.
il SR IRFENRARERNERZE R DRI
EREMATENTH -

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

IS IREINE ﬁ%é%ﬁé‘ﬁ)xéi%’i“ﬂ@iﬁﬁ
IR B EHIBUR

Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

R E G R AT e H BT AEETENERRIZIEH
BEH - MEHTE-

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

the Group as its businesses
do not involve any use of
packaging materials for
finished products.

R E BT R A ER
XM BEME - hEE

HAKEMSLRERK
55, 59

59

55, 59
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
=i} fiii i HR i
B1 Employment
B1{E (&
General Disclosure Information on: 45, 50-52
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
— MR ER EAGNRRE - MEREA - TERE - R T
Ee - Zlh - RIBRUAREMAFSREN
@ BE: K
(o) ETHEITABEAZENERER KA
EVE R} o
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age 53, 62
group and geographical region.
MR - EFEER - FRAER RMEEI D MES B -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 53, 63
geographical region.
MR FheAR R EBI S HEERAE o
B2 Health and Safety
B2@RERZ
General Disclosure Information on: 45, 50-51
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
— MR ER FEAREZ 2 TIERERREREES#HEBENLREZN
@ BE: K
(o) ETHEITABEAZENEERZ AN
BYER o
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred 51, 63
in each of the past three years including the reporting
year.
BEZF(AEREFRE)BFRENRITHNAR
Kb o
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 51,63
EITEEAXTIERE -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 51

adopted, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

L PTER AN B R R B 2 Fa e - AT
BERTE
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
=i} fiii i HR i
B3 Development and Training
B35 & B i&all
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills 50, 54
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
—ARBER BRERTEE BT IERE N AE MR RIBGR - 16
AMIFFEE o
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 54, 64
employee category.
RIERIRESEEIDNZIEEBSL -
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 54, 64
gender and employee category.
RUERIREEERNE S - BEEETHZ TR
B o
B4 Labor Standards
B4% T #H|
General Disclosure Information on: 45, 50-52
(@  the policies; and
(o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labor.
—ARBEE BN IEE T oI55 TH)
(a BER: &
(o) ETHEITABERZEOERERE KA
BIERL o
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment 51-52
practices to avoid child and forced labor.
e BB fIe e AR £ B T og k|45 T
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices 51-52
when discovered.
R AE IR B R IE R ER B BB ST EREE 28 -
B5 Supply Chain Management
B5ERER
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of 49
the supply chain.
— MR ER EIRHEENIRE Rt RREBR
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 49, 64
i@ E o H R R -
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 49

number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

A FEREREEEES - mERNITAERIEMMH
JERIERE - ARMBRAFNITREESIA o
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
Em §ili st HR fwsE
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 49
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
LA AR M R T IR 8RR A g A B
Bl - A RAERAEIT REEE A o
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 49
environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
R RRE HEE R (R Z B RRE M RREAIE
Bl - ARAERAEIT REES VA o
B6 Product Responsibility
B6ERFIE
General Disclosure Information on: 45, 49-50

—RRIREE

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.

BHEPRMHERNRBOREEEZS - BE - REK

TLEEEARMEROTED

@ BX%:k

(o) BETHEITABEAZEEBERE KA
HEF -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons.

EEXDEXERBET R 2 REFE R MA@
WBEDH °

Number of products and service-related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

BN Em MRS HIZER BB LA R B 770% o
Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

fe it B AR B RN B E B RA VB
Description of quality assurance process and recall
prooedures

i E B0 E BIR REMEIKIEF

Description of consumer data protection and privacy

policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.

i E B & ERRERALBBER - A RARBERT R E
BRITE °

The Group’s businesses do
not involve any advertising
and labelling.

REEEHLIY AR
= B -

The topic is immaterial to the
Group as it is not relevant to
its businesses.

A It 58 B EL ZE 7S AR
B IR HAEE S I
TERX -

50

50

49

50
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
=i} §ili st HR i
B7 Anti-corruption
B7TRE5
General Disclosure Information on: 45, 48
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
—ARHEER BRI ILERES - 9% - HGFROERER
@ B X
(o) BFHBETAGEAZENBEBER KR
BVE R o
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 45
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RIREBRAHEITAREEERE T EEENETH
IR BE AR FAR
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 48
procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
Fa iy FrE e R IE T - AR T RER A -
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to 48
directors and staff.
HtmEE R E TIRHORETE -
B8 Community Investment
B8 EHRE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the 60
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
— AR HEER BN E2ERTREEMEMLRTEEMBRELE
BEBEZE Rt R =R o
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 60
ﬁ/EEE Eﬁ$ﬁm °
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 60

EEIHRERBAER
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B A2 BEN RS

KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

MESGHMEBMAERLF]

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOPE LIFE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hope
Life International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 82 to 171, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

bR B PRIEBR AR AR
71044 3
(RASRSEMKLZBERRF)

BR

EEEERERHNEREEFITIANER
BERZERERAR(TERAR ) MEKB LA
(R ERE ) ZEAUBHRE - BER=
T =F+_A=+t—HOEEFBRRE -
BEZALFENSABaMEtEE RS
R EABDEPHREIGARSERER UK
FEVBHRERNT  BREAGHBRERR
HAibEiHER

ERR REFAMBHREREBER B S
7N

fr S5 o

SB[ BT HRELE DAEEMP SR
BT SEER-_Z=-_=F+-_A=+—HH
GBAPBRRANEEZB FFENGATBE
BRGEEESRE  WEREBREALIENZ
WERTELARE -

BRHEEE

BEECREEASHMASRHNEEERX
R (TBEEZENDETERZ - BFEZX
FEANTHAENE TS EANREZBEIE
AR AWM BRRAEZEE | ST EE—F
Mt - RIBB B SFEIASEMHCEREGF
hEET R (AT FA]) - BEEBY
K BEKE - YEETTRTHEMERER
B - B50E  BEEMESNERERRER
RMEEWAESNEZE RRHEE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current year. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters

RREERER
Revenue recognition

Refer to the accounting policies in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

We identified recognition of revenue from the construction
and ancillary services as a key audit matter due to
significant judgments involved in the management’s
assessment process.

The revenue of construction and ancillary services
amounting to approximately HK$83,246,000 were
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Revenue from construction and ancillary services, which
are fixed price contract work, is recognised progressively
over time using the input method in accordance with
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. It
is based on Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction
of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation. The revenue and profit recognised in a year
on these projects is dependent, amongst others, on
the assessment of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
projects (i.e. contract cost incurred for work performed)
relative to the total expected inputs to the projects (i.e.
estimated total budgeted contract cost committed for
the projects).

FE2 R A MR M OB @ FT IR

BEEBERMEERSE 2 Wa R B REREX
FE - REASEE L FHB2HR S RE AN -

BE-T_—F+ A=+ HLEFEIZRK
MEME2MBERNESERREERSE
83,246,000/ 7T

HLEERS (RETEESATRE) 2 W HRIEE
BB IRE LR TSR E S A ANz B BI—RAT EME
E%F'Eﬁ@ﬂLfﬁﬂ@ﬁ@% o WHER BEREMNENHNETT

BHEEREBENEHEENATERIR AR ARIERIL
/\°lit T8 B 45— IR R R FIBURR (K B
&) EE@EEEFET’EE’J”ﬂﬂz&)\E’]pﬂﬁ(EHEE
1T TYRFTERAS A AR 1R 10 IE B AR TE RIS A(BD
AEEAE G REEAORE) -

BB

Y 78 49

MEFXER

PR EZ SR RIEEFHE X HE E{Jﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%iﬁf
DUBHRANBEZERERNTH - ELFTHELES
EREBGAVBHRAMIAEEZBEARKE ﬁJ‘EEE
B BEETEHELERREHEBNER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEMERNMEER@FERER
Eog=1 10

Our procedures in relation to the recognition of revenue
of construction and ancillary services and contract assets
and contract liabilities included:

o obtained an understanding of the Group’s controls
and processes over the revenue recognition,
include projects approval, invoicing and journal
entry approval;

o assessed the Group’s revenue recognition
practice to determine that they are in compliance
with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, including the assessment of the
Group’s efforts or inputs to the projects (i.e.
contract cost incurred for work performed) relative
to the total expected inputs to the projects (i.e.
estimated total budgeted contract cost committed
for the projects);

agreed projects contract sum to signed contracts
and variation orders on sample basis;

EEAMERERNEERBRENRENEERER
BENEFETE

e TR E%@EH&Z SHERR T E EV IR MoBiE - B
EEEL ERLARRSEEL
o iMh BEEMWEERIED - UEBEENSAEL

MBREENENSREL M BREY &
SESEBFENS WS ARFHE (BIEEIT T
TERTERIS YA KR AN ) N 1R B MR TEHRER A (BT
AEBAENBEFHEEEAOKA)

o  HERBEASHNESRECDKEITNANNEERE

TR @Zv
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

MREZER

Variations in contract work are recognised as contract
revenue to the extent that the modification has been
approved by the parties to the contracts and it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

The uncertainty and subjectivity involved in determining
the cost to complete and foreseeable losses may have a
significant impact on the revenue and profit of the Group.

MEMFTHTCHIEER] MR TRESHERSEH
Yeas - MERRB R KD BOEABEIBA LG
Koo

ﬁéi?—a&ﬁi$ﬂ7ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ}$&EﬁTﬁﬁﬁ
ApeY EREMRGEMENELRETE

AEEE

MREZER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNMEEREEZER

o obtained contracts from management and
reviewed for any specific or special performance
obligations and conditions during the financial
period;

° vouched the actual cost incurred during the year to
details of supplier invoices and subcontractors on
sample basis to check the validity and accuracy of
the costs;

° performed cut-off testing to verify contract costs
were taken up in the appropriate financial year;

° performed retrospective review by comparing the
total actual contract costs incurred at completion
against the total budgeted contract costs to assess
the reasonableness of the estimates used by the
management;

o for projects in progress, we further recomputed
the percentage of the progress of the contract
based on input method to test the accuracy of
the percentage of the progress to determine the
revenue; and

° compared total contract revenue to actual cost
incurred plus estimated cost to complete, and
assessed for foreseeable losses.

o  WREEEMBSAONFERMBHEANTASTEX
R IR B 4 B AT S AGRA

o B RA  REBHEEND
FRNEFSNERRAREER
BRI

BEBERNFBERE
SE - DARER AR

o  HEEENMRFEETELARMZEA LKA
o BBHESERRRENAERS ORARGEES
Z’WZ$ EITEYES - A SREE AN 2

BIE
o HRGETTPIER  TEE— *Fﬁi%ﬁx)\;ii%i”r*
AREENENLL LHH?*EH&Z SHEREESD
EERENE K
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

MREZER

Provision for impairment loss under expected
credit losses (“ECL”) model of trade receivables
and contract assets

Refer to Notes 18, 19 and 29(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had gross trade
receivables and contract assets of approximately
HK$112,760,000 and HK$45,895,000 respectively, and
allowance for ECL of approximately HK$1,530,000 and
HK$1,008,000 had been recognised, respectively.

ECL for trade receivables and contract assets are based
on management’s estimate of the lifetime ECL to be
incurred, which is estimated by taking into account
the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue trade
receivables and contract assets, debtors’ repayment
history and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions, all of which involve
a significant degree of management judgment.

E2 R A M RAMEE18 - 19K29() °

RIEBE-=F+-A=+—"H AEENBIEKRX
HBEMNAGHNEERED R4 H112,760,0007%8 7T &
45,895,000/ 7T - WE D RIEREHEEEEREED
1,530,000/ 7T & 1,008,000/ 7T °

BIRRFENRANEENTRREEERDEREEE
HELNEHRBEREERNMGER - ZA R K
FEBRLR BARESRIARENEENRE
1R A B0 22 SRR 52 A N 3 8 A I FEDRI A0 B RS A RS
&t A RIRKIZE R E TR E FIE -

MREZER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFHERNMERMRBEXER

HABERRARAVNRERMERGER(TARERES
D RER TR ER R

Our procedures in relation to management’s ECL
assessment on trade receivables and contract assets
included:

° Reviewing and assessing the application of the
Group’s policy for calculating the ECL;

o Evaluating the techniques and methodology
adopted by the management in the ECL model
against the requirements of HKFRS 9;

° Assessing the reasonableness of management’s
loss allowance estimates by examining the
information used by management to form such
judgements, including the reasonableness of the
estimated loss rates applied on each debtor in
the ECL assessment with reference to historical
default rates and forward-looking information
and assessing whether there was an indication
of management bias when recognising loss
allowances;

EEERNEEEHEIREFALENEENTAMER
BEHEiEF e

EH AR EEF BRI EREBEBERAER

RESFEMBHREERFERATEFEEEBRE
HEE BRI R P R A AR R I7%

o  GIHEEEBBEREEGAFOSEMN  BBAKREEE
EBEDILBAHERMERNER - BRERANSES
ARHETEERY 2 EERELN R RBIEEER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) REFEEIE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNMEEREEZER

Key audit matters

MREZER

We have identified ECL assessment of trade receivables
and contract assets as a key audit matter because
assessing ECL of trade receivables and contract
assets is a subjective area which requires the exercise
of significant judgment by management and uses of
estimates.

EEREHRUFALANEENTAREEE BRI GH
MRERETFE SHRTHEZIRRFERENE
ENBEHEEREA—EXTHEE  FREEEERSE
RHE R AERfERT -

Inquiring management for the status of each of the
material trade receivables and contract assets past
due as at year end and corroborating explanations
from management with supporting evidence, such
as understanding on-going business relationship
with the customers and debtors based on trade
and transaction records, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records of and other
correspondence with the customers and debtors;
and

Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of
the trade receivables and contract assets as at 31
December 2023 to the underlying financial records
and post year-end settlement to bank receipts.

AEEENRRFREHRNSRERNE 5 RUGIR
REHWEENRR  WRBXFHEEEEEEEN
RE(NMRBEESIRRSTHTHETP REBA
MREXBRR)  RERPREBANESL RE
BREECBANEMBE &

MERER T _=F+_-_A=1+—HEFRU

AREREERREEIR - ARSI 5Ce -
WRFRGEERGEESRITIIE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon
(“Other information”).

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concemn.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B A2 BEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

KTC Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Kwok Chi Kwong
Audit Engagement Director

Practicing Certificate Number: PO1911

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Are B A E A 2 W R 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

2023 2022
—E-= —EoF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
s T#T FHEIT
(Re-presented)
(ES)
Continuing operations BEEEES
Revenue Weas 5 293,151 190,652
Cost of sales SHER (232,328) (156,128)
Gross profit EA 60,823 34,524
Other income and gains HABA FomF 6 27 171
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERY (26,854) (6,966)
Impairment losses under expected credit FEEE EEBEN T~
loss model, net of reversal JEEE - IR 9 (1,887) (4,200)
Administrative expenses THAX (19,021) (14,629)
Finance costs &R AR 7 (6,398) (5,003)
Profit before taxation B AR B & A 9 6,690 3,897
Income tax expenses e 10 (5,490) (3,080)
Profit for the year from continuing REBBEEBEBEZER
operations aF 1,200 817
Discontinued operation BRIEBEER
Loss for the year from discontinued REDKILEEER 2
operation FAEE 8 (2,121) (2,198)
Loss for the year FREE (921) (1,381)
Other comprehensive loss for FREMBEESE -
the year, net of income tax: HMEXFRSIA -
Items that may be reclassified AJGER AR ER 7 IE 2
subsequently to profit or loss: f,siﬁuZ HEHA -
Exchange differences on translation of BMEINHETE 2
foreign operations fEH =58 (1,163) (755)
Exchange differences on inter-company &R & FEE—3 D 2 b
loans to subsidiaries that form part of net Bl 2 A B A B{ELH
investment in foreign operations SERRRIEERE
HER (1,821) (14,081)
Other comprehensive loss for FRHMPEEE
the year (2,984) (14,836)
Total comprehensive loss for FRZEGRESHE
the year (3,905) (16,217)
Loss for the year attributable to EAFEEABLER
owners of the Company -]
— from continuing operations —REFREEEES (3,514) (1,974)
— from discontinued operation —REBRIEEER (2,121) (2,198)
Loss for the year attributable EATREEABLER
to owners of the Company &8 (5,635) 4,172)

Hope Life International Holdings Limited U&&EISIZRHRA S



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Are B A E A 2 W R 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

2023 2022
—E-= —EoF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
PiEE THET FET
(Re-presented)
(F&=E5)
Profit for the year attributable to JEIEBEE R EIEER
non-controlling interests B F
— from continuing operations —REFECEER 4,714 2,791
— from discontinued operation —REERIEEET - -
Profit for the year attributable to JEIEBEIE R EEER
non-controlling interests =2 ]l 4,174 2,791
(921) (1,381)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2E(BR), WasE
attributable to: FEALIRER -
Owners of the Company KABER A (8,495) (18,780)
Non-controlling interests IR A 4,590 2,563
(3,905) (16,217)
Total comprehensive loss attributable ZFATHEBAEGZE
to owners of the Company: BISHE :
— from continuing operations —REFEKEER (6,374) (16,582)
— from discontinued operation —REERIEEET (2,121) (2,198)
(8,495) (18,780)
Loss per share: =19
From continuing and discontinued REFERDKRIES
operations 7%
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EAR NS GBI 14 (0.50) (0.99)
From continuing operations REAEFEEEES
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARREE B 14 (0.31) (0.47)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

iRE ISR
As at 31 December 2023
R-ZF-=F+-A=+—H

2023 2022
== T CF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
MIE FExT FHET
Non-current assets ERBDEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BE KRB 15 24,153 27,980
Right-of-use assets TREEE 16 842 2,175
24,995 30,155
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 17 98,846 144,775
Trade receivables H 5 W GIA 18 111,230 29,017
Contract assets AHEE 19 44,887 8,660
Deposits, prepayments and other e ENFRER
receivables EAtbfEUGRIA 20 160,510 75,106
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTH & 21 40,434 52,490
455,907 310,048
Current liabilities AR
Trade payables B S e FRIE 22 26,648 36,853
Other borrowings HAfa 24 73,651 41,736
Contract liabilities BHERE 19 135 599
Lease liabilities HEBE 25 885 1,370
Income tax payable FERTPTISHR 1 740
Accrued expenses and other payables FEETFAZ REAMERNKIE 23 16,111 9,604
117,431 90,902
Net current assets mBEERE 338,476 219,146
Total assets less current liabilities wEERREARE 363,471 249,301
Non-current liabilities ERBIARE
Lease liabilities HEBE 25 - 885
- 885
Net assets HERE 363,471 248,416
Capital and reserves BERER
Share capital f&As 26 25,920 8,640
Reserves 1 328,501 235,316
Equity attributable to owners of PAYNEIE PEWN TR £y
the Company 354,421 243,956
Non-controlling interests IR A 9,050 4,460
Total equity BiEs 363,471 248,416

FREITIEZGAMBHRER S _NF =
A+ N \BEZE=EgHERIERZELHNAT
BEEREREE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 171 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

XIAO Yi LIANG Zhichao
& ZER

Director Director

EE 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—H— N7 Z_

/ N\ /g
AT

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE_ZT-_=—F+-_A=t+—RHILFE

EH)R

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN DN
Statutory Non-
Share Share  Exchange Other surplus  Retained Sub-  controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  eamings total interests Total
EERB
ks  ROAE ERRE  AUERE i GEEY gt FREER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tt ThI ThL T ThL Th T
(Note 26) (Note (i) (Note (i)
(W29 zp) (W)
Asat1 January 2022 S
-A-H 7,200 213,133 2,766 401 628 17,937 242,065 1,897 243,962
[Lossyprofitfortheyear ~ ER(EE) /47| - - - - - (4172 (4172 2791 (1,381)
Other comprehensive EREMEE
income for the year, Wi - 1%
net of income tax; Fifshi -
Exchange differenceson ~~ HESEEH 7[E

translation of foreign AEE

operations - - (527) - - - (527) (228 (755)
Exchange differenceson ~~ BRAEFE—H

inter-company loans to DNEEER

subsidiaries that formpart B ATEHE

of net investment inforeign ~ ERAZHER

operations JELER - - (14,081) - - - (14,081) - (14,081)
Total comprehensive FRRE(BE)/

(loss)/profit for the year Pyt - - (14,608) - - @172 (18780) 2,563 (16217)
lssue of shares (note 26 E{1RIA(H26) 1440 19,440 - - - - 20880 - 20880
Share issue costs ORI - (209) - - - - (209 - 209)
Aopropriation to statutory  BAZERBHE

surplus reserve - - - - 930 (930) - - -
Asat 31 December 2022 and MZZ=Z

1 January 2023 TZA=1+-H

R-Z-c%
-A-H 8,640 232,364 (11,842 40 1,558 12,835 243,956 4,460 248,416
[Lossyprofitfortheyear ~ ER(EE) /47| - - - - - (5,635) (5,635) 4714 (921)
Other comprehensive EREMEE
income for the year, el
net of income tax; &
Exchange differenceson ~~ BESEEK7[E

tranglation of foreign REB

operations - - (1,039) - - - (1,089) (124) (1,163)
Exchange differenceson AR EFE—1

inter-company loans to Z?\\%M

subsidiaries thatformpart~~ IWBATELE

of netinvestment inforeign ~ BIRVAFIRER

operations LERER - - (1,821) - - - (1,821) - (1,621)
Total comprehensive FRRE(BE)/

(loss)/profit for the year Pyl - - (2,860) - - (5,635) (8,495) 4,590 (3,905)
lssue of shares fnote 26) BTk (A7i26) 17,80 103,680 - - - - 120960 - 120,960
Share ssue costs OEGIE - (2,000 - - - - (2,000 - (2,000
Appropriation o statutory  BEAETRBEE

SUrplus reserve - - - - 1,572 (1,512 - - -
Asat 31 December 2023  RZBZZF

+ZA=+-H 25,920 334,044 (14,702) 401 3,130 5,628 354,421 9,050 363,471

Annual Report 2023 3§




84

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

nﬂ:

j[ ")’\%a,.\éjjil%

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE
Notes:
(i) Other reserve

(ii)

Other reserve represented (i) the difference between the Group’s share of
nominal values of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the
Group’s cost of acquisition of the subsidiaries under common control upon
the completion of the Group’s corporate re-organisation in the preparation
of the Company’s listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited; and (i) the changes in the Group’s ownership interests in its
subsidiaries that do not result in the loss of control.

Statutory surplus reserve

The Articles of Association of the Company’s subsidiaries established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) require the appropriation of
10% of their profit after income tax determined under the PRC accounting
standards each year to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance
reaches 50% of the registered share capital. According to the provision of
the PRC subsidiaries’ Articles of Association, under normal circumstances,
the statutory surplus reserve shall only be used for making up losses,
capitalisation into share capital and expansion of the Company’s production
and operation. For the capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share
capital, the remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25% of
the registered share capital.

Hist

@

(ii)

Hope Life International Holdings Limited U&&EISIZRHRA S
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=AN D E
,Z\vT\ S ® //IL.E%%
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

2023 2022
—B_= —E_—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FiBT
(Re-presented)
(ge&:5)
Cash flows from operating activities EEFHELZRERE
Profit before taxation FRIERTR A
From continuing operations REFECEES 6,690 3,897
From discontinued operation REDKIHEEET (2,121) (2,198)
Adjustments for: FLATIEB (EHAZ -
Provision for allowance for expected FHETEHE B EIERME - Bk
credit losses, net of reversal £l 1,887 3,263
Provision for impairment loss on R EERENEOEVERIET st
prepayment to suppliers 1,807 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB A F S (24) -
Bank interest income RITFBUA (3) 1
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - BB RERETE
equipment 3,174 3,334
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 1,333 1,193
Finance cost BB 6,410 5,046
Operating cash flows before SEREREENZ
movements in working capital EEHaRE 19,153 14,534
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERD,/(380) 45,929 (22,589)
Decrease in loan receivables FEWE RO - 58,647
Increase in trade receivables H 5 e WAL N (83,108) (15,491)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and e~ B RE R H A BRI
other receivables )i (87,306) (28,414)
Increase in contract assets BHEEE (37,219) (5,270)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B 5 RAFRIBECRD) /1N (10,205) 18,924
Decrease in contract liabilities aHBaERLD (464) (5,697)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses AR 2 K2 E b fE < 7B
and other payables #n, O 5,135 (1,043)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations #&% (FTH), /EL 2R E (148,085) 13,601
Income tax paid AN (6,229) (1,989)
Net cash (used in)/generated from EEEH(FRA) EEfZ
operating activities B&asH (154,314) 11,612
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CeRemEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

2023 2022
—z=—= T F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T#T FHEIT
(Re-presented)
(ES)
Cash flows from investing activities RETDEENHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  WERREE
equipment = (303)
Bank interest received EHERTTHE 3 1
Net cash outflow from disposal of HENBAREARNRES ML
a subsidiary THER (67) -
Net cash used in investing activities RE;EFEHMANRAELRH (64) (302)
Cash flows from financing activities MEITHELENRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BRI FTS5RIE 120,960 20,880
Share issuance costs related to issue of  FE{TRRID B RAIR (5 31 TR A
shares (2,000) (209)
Capital element of lease liabilities paid ENHERECZERTE (1,370) (1,128)
Interest element of lease liabilities paid ENfREaEzMETE (68) (113)
Increase in other borrowings H A famag 31,915 1,736
Interest paid on other borrowings HipERE AHE (4,772) (1,445)
Net cash generated from financing MEFITBHEENRSBHE
activities 144,665 19,721
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HeRASEEM(RD) 18
and cash equivalents b ] (9,713) 31,031
Cash and cash equivalents at the FPMZHRERBLEEY
beginning of the year 52,490 21,920
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes — JNEFE R & B)5/ 2 (2,343) (461)
Total cash and cash equivalents at the EXZIRERF &S Ehi@s - B
end of the year, represented by 40,434 52,490
Cash and cash equivalents HeRA&SEY 40,434 52,490
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B9 MY ot

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B
1.

E-T-CFE+-A=+—HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hope Life International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Cayman Islands on 19 January 2015
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman lIslands. The Company’s
registered office is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The principal place of business of the Company
is located at Flat 1703, 17th Floor, Wanchai Commercial
Centre, Nos. 194-204 Johnston Road, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred hereafter
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in construction
and ancillary services, which include design, fitting-out,
decoration, alteration and addition, construction and other
related businesses, and consumer goods business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise stated.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and February

Insurance Contracts

2022 Amendments to
HKFRS 17)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar

Two Model Rules
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies

—REH
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=% KR ERMER_E—hF—H
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FRAR) o AN R) 2 sk 28 55 (i 7 Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands © HEZ & EHE U N ESH TH
B194-2045F 2R O17H1703%E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B9 MY ot

For the year ended 31 December 2023

#
2.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I &ERR =R ERA S

E-T-CFE+-A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies
The Group has applied the amendments for the
first time in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements is amended to replace all
instances of the term “significant accounting policies”
with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.

ERHIEEMEREEN(E
RMEREEN ) RERMBE
HHERZIEET(48)
REFERFENDMETERMBGE
HEARFEMBREENZERT
(#®)
BT3RS - MAFERBHHETE
BB RELENREBMBREEL
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M BRRRRER,HEBLSEEE
M RERTEBREEREATE -

21 ERFEEHENSRREEM
BREEARBEEASESREH &
FHRBEORE
AEECRAFEERERER
Ko BB ERFIRETHF
WL ZZIANERGTERERER
BMRTERNSABRINABER -
W& HRRE R BB B R
RRTE R M E S — L B
AAEBEMeTE - RAEMER
REBGEAERBEZSHHREA
HEVRE - RIS ERRENBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ ﬁﬁ% $|§ i‘% M]L u_lI_

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS

1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies (Continued)
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to the
Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance but has affected the disclosure of the
Group’s accounting policies set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements. In accordance with
the guidance set out in the amendments, accounting
policy information that is standardised information,
or information that only duplicates or summarises
the requirements of the IFRSs, is considered
immaterial accounting policy information and is no
longer disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements so as not to obscure the material
accounting policy information disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B9 MY ot

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FER#MIIEEMBEREEN(IE

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)
2.2 Change in accounting policy as a result of

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism
in Hong Kong

The Group has several subsidiaries operating in Hong
Kong which are obliged to pay LSP to employees
under certain circumstances. Meanwhile, the Group
makes mandatory MPF contributions to the trustee
who administers the assets held in a trust solely for
the retirement benefits of each individual employee.
Offsetting of LSP against an employee’s accrued
retirement benefits derived from employers’ MPF
contributions was allowed under the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57). In June 2022, the Government of
the HKSAR gazetted the Employment and Retirement
Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment
Ordinance”) which abolishes the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers’ mandatory MPF
contributions to offset severance payment and LSP
(the “Aboalition”). The Abolition will officially take effect
on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). In addition,
under the Amendment Ordinance, the last month’s
salary immediately preceding the Transition Date
(instead of the date of termination of employment) is
used to calculate the portion of LSP in respect of the
employment period before the Transition Date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” which provides guidance
for the accounting for the offsetting mechanism and
the impact arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong. In light of this,
the Group has implemented the guidance published
by the HKICPA in connection with the LSP obligation
retrospectively so as to provide more reliable and
more relevant information about the effects of the
offsetting mechanism and the Abolition.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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TN\

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FEA#MIIEEMEREEN([E
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BMBHREEYN ) REEMBE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) HHERAZERT(E)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet CEMGERKRENHEEMBRESE
effective Az fERT

AREE W M F EA T IS EME R
EREEBHEHRE LR ZER]

The Group has not early applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BRI BRE2ER BB E A ENE]
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FI0RREBER FEELE RN

Associate or Joint Venture' KRI85k 2 85T BEHESHEAN

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and BB HREER ERMERTNEES
Leaseback? E16% 2 (27] f&2

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as EREHENEIR BEIEARINIE
Current or Non-current and 157 MEREARER
related amendments to Hong BESHR2BRI(Z
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) TZEF)([=ZF
(the “2020 Amendments”) ZEFERT])

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with ERGIENFEIR . HEZHENIERDE
Covenants (the “2022 EET B ZEZ=F1B
Amendments”) #11)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements? ERGIENETRR HERRE L

and HKFRS 7 BANBEE
HRIET7HR 7 BT
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability® BRgRT LA Rz A H e
E21H 2 EE]
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be ! REE B #isk .2 & A 2 FE BRI -
determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. 2 RZZ-_WF—A—Bskz2®BRAR 2 FEH
Faﬁi?& °
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. 8 RZE-RF—A—BR2EFABZFER
FEIAERR ©

AREEERREMMAELME BN
FEERNZAERTA A A 2 T & B4R
BUMBHRIEREATE -

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nﬂ:

B BRERMITE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

#
3.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I &ERR =R ERA S

BT

FHZA=+t—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

(a)

Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“CO").

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nﬂ:

B BRERMITE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

#
3.

BT

FHZA=+t—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique.

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting
policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

#
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Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

Y=

=FE+RA=+—RIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the statement
of financial position of the Company at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Revenue from contracts with customers
Information about the Group’s accounting policies
relating to contracts with customers is provided in
Notes 5 and 19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset

for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising
from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the

lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the

lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received,

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;

and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the

lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/T\ 7”%% i& i‘% Fﬁ uf

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Material accounting policy information
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)
Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments represented fixed lease payments
(including in-substance fixed payments), less any

lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The lease liabilities is presented as a separate line on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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FHZA=+t—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current
and deferred income tax expense.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
each reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
each of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. The
Group recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease
liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised and a deferred
tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes. Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include: (a)
cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and cash equivalents as defined above.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets
are allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any gooduwiill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but as
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

REMBRRENEEREXS

B E ()
(b) EXEEBIREE(E)

MR BERRMLURERAEEE
Zim{E ()
RARARSELBETRRER - i
ARVAE-HWNOEELE AR
REENEKZHBRESELET -
INEERSELETRARILE
B —Z B EEM R/ AR o AT
CleBRAREEMBRESELE
THRASELETARNETE - YR
HRRSELETHREERET
AR M ARE EAETTELER -

AJ Y (a2 B8 A SRR B AR I
EREEMER ZESE - N
EREER At RERRSREN
BRI AR IR RAIREHIR(E - AR
K[ RS IR PTG 2 £ 86 ]
BRI AL EFBBTRAIRER
%Zﬁ&(ﬁﬁ@&tﬂ%ﬁ)%fﬁ@k

Tl
N

WEE(FREELET) 2 H&r7
WesEENEEREE: IIEE
(KBEELET) ZREERKS
IKEE A RO S EE o 10 BR EE
1B OBEEBERE DR D
EREENREEGUER) - R
REBEETHBEEENKREERL
PIDEEEREMEE - BEMNKEE
AR EERE R FER S K
A(fHAErE) - EEREE (A
BE)RE=FEPNESE - BRAX
ENETHEENREBRSER
BEPIDEETZETHEMBEE -
RER B RN RB R -

WEREBEBENERERD &
(HREERET) 2 REES AT
EELEF 2 At AT KRB -
IR 2 BREE NS EBIMEZE
E(XRSELE L) FREFET
ERADBEBER KRR ZRE
18 - BEERZ RO RN EE

7o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

X

/T\

B BRERMITE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B

3.

BT

FHZA=+t—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sole and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of each reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) on financial assets which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables, contract assets, deposits,
other receivables and cash and bank balances). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting period to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting period as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting period with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

U

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) thelender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over 1 year past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and
contract assets are considered on individual
basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such
as forward looking macroeconomic information.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRENEEREXE
EHRUREE ()

Hope Life International Holdings Limited U&&EISIZRHRA S

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Material accounting policy information EXEHBREE ()
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SMTR(1E)
Financial assets (Continueq) THEE (&)

W)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or

W)
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loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments Eem T ERIBIETPRERR
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the B zckEE - EEBREBIE

exception of trade receivables, contract assets,

BiBREREEARNES

deposits and other receivables where the JEWFIE - GHEE - &2
corresponding adjustment is recognised through &Efﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁklﬁﬁff\ﬂ\\ °

a loss allowance account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses b H e N &1

The carrying amount of financial assets that are
denominated in a foreign currency is determined
in that foreign currency and translated at the
spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
Specifically, for financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.
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On derecognition of a financial asset measured REUE fERIZ# S ARNFT 2
at amortised cost, the difference between TEMEBEE  AEEEME

the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, accrued
expenses and other payables and other borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a
foreign currency and are measured at amortised
cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign
exchange gains and losses are determined based on
the amortised cost of the instrument. These foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss for financial liabilities that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a
foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liabilities derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform

For changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial
liability to which the amortised cost measurement
applies as a result of interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the practical expedient to account
for these changes by updating the effective interest
rate, such change in effective interest rate normally
has no significant effect on the carrying amount of the
relevant financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark
reform if and only if, both these conditions are met:

° the change is necessary as a direct consequence
of interest rate benchmark reform; and

° the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis (i.e. the basis immediately
preceding the change).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Employee benefits

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Obligation to pay LSP under Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57)

For the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong,
pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57,
the Group has the obligation to pay LSP to qualifying
employees in Hong Kong under certain circumstances
(e.g. dismissal by employers or upon retirement),
subject to a minimum of 5 years employment period,
based on the following formula:

Last monthly wages (before termination of
employment) X 2/3 X Years of service.

Last monthly wages are capped at HK$22,500 while
the amount of long service payment shall not exceed
HK$390,000. This obligation is accounted for as a
post-employment defined benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise
the Group’s mandatory MPF contributions, plus/
minus any positive/negative returns thereof, for the
purpose of offsetting LSP payable to an employee (the
“Offsetting Arrangement”).
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3.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I &ERR =R ERA S

BAS

IS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution retirement plan (Continueq)
Obligation to pay LSP under Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57) (Continued)

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17 June
2022, which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits
derived from employers’ mandatory MPF contributions
to offset the LSP. The Abolition will officially take effect
on the Transition Date (i.e., 1 May 2025). Separately,
the Government of the HKSAR is also expected to
introduce a subsidy scheme to assist employers for
a period of 25 years after the Transition Date on the
LSP payable by employers up to a certain amount per
employee per year.

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group’s
mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any
positive/negative returns, after the Transition Date
can continue to be applied to offset the pre-Transition
Date LSP obligation but are not eligible to offset the
post-Transition Date LSP obligation. Furthermore,
the LSP obligation before the Transition Date will
be grandfathered and calculated based on the Last
monthly wages immediately preceding the Transition
Date and the years of service up to that date. The
Group does not consider the Amendment Ordinance
to have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Principal versus agent consideration (principal)
The Group engages in provision of design, fitting-out and
decoration services. The Group concluded that the Group
acts as the principal for such transactions as it controls
the specified good before it is transferred to the customer
after taking into consideration indicators such as the Group
is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide
the construction assets. The Group has latitude on service
specification and price-setting of the services rendered.
When the Group satisfies the performance obligation, the
Group recognises service revenue in the gross amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled as
specified in the contracts.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recognised revenue relating to provision of design, fitting-
out and decoration services amounted to HK$83,246,000
(2022: HK$106,344,000).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(a)

Revenue recognition of contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue and profit
of a contract for the provision of (i) design, fitting-
out and decoration services; and (ii) design and
decoration services by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction at the end of the
reporting period. Progress towards complete
satisfaction is measured based on input method.
Estimated revenue is determined with reference to
the terms of the relevant contracts. Contract costs
which mainly comprise sub-contracting charges
and costs of materials and labour are estimated by
the management on the basis of quotations from
time to time provided by the major subcontractors
or suppliers involved and the experience of the
management. Notwithstanding that management
reviews and revises the estimates of both contract
revenue and costs for the contract as the contract
progresses, the actual outcome of the contract in
terms of its total revenue and costs may be higher
or lower than the estimates and this will affect the
revenue and profit recognised.

Management reviews the contracts for foreseeable
losses whenever there is an indication that the
estimated contract revenue is lower than the estimated
total contract costs. The actual outcomes in terms
of total contract costs or contract revenue may be
higher or lower than estimated at the end of each of
the reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and profit recognised in future years as an adjustment
to the amounts recorded to date.

The carrying amounts of contract assets and contract
liabilities arising from contracts are disclosed in Note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, and contract assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based
on assumption about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group use judgment in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the debtor’s past
due status, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and
the Group’s trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, and contract assets are disclosed in
Notes 18, 20 and 19 respectively.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KERSBEH
Revenue Bz
(a) Analysis of revenue (a) WP
Continuing operations TR
2023 2022
ot Sl TETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
(Re-presented)
€ ==x7))
Revenue from contracts with BB IR ERE 155
customers within the scope of FERZ B A AN
HKFRS 15
Recognised on over time basis: B 2 TR A O HE RS TSR

Design and/or decoration service BEt RS E AR AR AU A
income = 432
Design, fitting-out and decoration ~ #&&t + & R EHARISIA

service income 83,246 105,912
83,246 106,344
Recognised on point in time basis: R EZHER
Sales of wine products HERBEER 209,905 84,308
Total revenue recognised during FERFERIREEE
the year 293,151 190,652
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Revenue from provision of (i) design anad/or decoration
service income, and (i) design, fitting-out and
decoration service income

Revenue from the provision of (i) design and/or
decoration service income, and (i) design, fitting-out
and decoration service income are recognised on an
over time basis, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
services, because the Group’s performance creates
or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced. The input
method adopted by the Group recognises revenue
based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred
relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction
of the services. The input method provides a faithful
depiction of the Group’s performance where reliable
information is available to the Group to apply the
method.

A 2.32% of payments (2022: 2.32%) is retained by
customers until the end of the retention period as the
Group’s entitlerment to the final payment is conditional
on the satisfaction of the service quality, including
repairing for any leakage, damages, works ratifying
that unsatisfied by architects and the customers over
a certain period as stipulated in the contracts.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Revenue from provision of (i) design anad/or decoration
service income, and (i) design, fitting-out and
decoration service income (Continueq)

For revenue from provision of design and/or
decoration service and design, fitting-out and
decoration service that contain variable consideration
such as variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payment, the Group estimates the amount
of consideration to which it will be entitled using either
(@) the expected value method or (b) the most likely
amount, depending on which method better predicts
the amount of consideration to which the Group will
be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transactions price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future
when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances
during the reporting period.

Kaka3EEE (&)

()

(b) EFRAHIZEHIRME(HE)
KE R (ERAT R I RSN
A ﬁ(ll)ﬁXﬁ - HAE G R AR
AWz (4E)

XQ&T#&J&/%%%H%&&
+ KiERkE %HE%HK@. BE |:| ’]
Ty RELREBHSEAUER
B ANEBEEFFEBRKEHRE
TREMAE@FEMEEEK(O)ZFAEE
TE  HURRBBE AR s Bl AR
SESARKBHNRERE -

AIERENGFTSRENR]ZR
BAE R A 1 TE MERE 1R 15 2 AR R
B AR TR E R REAW
ABLRWERT - FIARZER
o

MEBRERR - AEBEFHEFR
ZER(BREMEYERER
u-l_ i‘ﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬁ) J/AQDE\&@&
HREHRNER L REHAIER
B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

B

5.
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= —F —

=

=FT-A=t—RLFE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

(b)

()

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Revenue from sales of wine products

Revenue from sales of wine products is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being
when the goods have been shipped to the customer’s
specific location (i.e. upon delivery). Following the
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has
the primary responsibility when on selling the goods
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods.

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for
faulty products are under the standard warranty
terms. Accumulated experience is used to estimate
such returns at the time of sale. It is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur. Therefore, no refund liability
for goods return was recognised. The validity of this
assumption and estimate is reassessed at each
reporting date.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its contracts for
production and sales of wine products, provision for
design and/or decoration service and design, fitting-
out and declaration service such that the above
information does not include information about
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it
satisfies the remaining performance obligations under
the aforesaid contracts that had an original expected
duration of one year or less.

KRB SR (E)

sz (#8)

(b) EFRAHIZEHIRME(HE)
KB # T EE i< Wan
BEMIETIECDER  EREE
KERPIETE B (A1 TT1§)

()

FERK BN E B EEm 2 et o
ﬁﬁ%&'%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%\%%
TRAREREEZERBE - L5
EERBAIREM  UWAERE
miERE R ERE R E KA o

REBERBREREGERRERE
MEmMRBHERFINER - RFHER
BRMEETIHERNZERR - B
REBRAWMARAETGEEEXN
E@ -Jit EEELLEL?kg
£ o ZRFRAGFTEE BRI

& B EREERT AT o

SEEEFEVZBRTRORESD
xHE

AEEERBEEVHRELENE5
FEIRIRNEREEFRARE

ERHEERER  RHUKR
SR A RIS IA KR AT - FKAE R

REzaK W ERERRIBRE
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B

5.

BT

F+A=t+—HIER
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment information

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision-makers (“CODM”), review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Information reported to the chief
operating decision marker, for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment, focuses on the
types of goods or services delivered or provided.

For the segment reporting purpose to the CODM, the Group
is currently organised into the followings two operating and
reportable segments:

(@  Construction and ancillary services — design, fitting-
out, decoration, alteration and addition, construction
and other related businesses.

(b)  Consumer goods business — production and sales of
wine products.

An operating segment regarding the financial business was
presented as discontinued operation the current year.

The segment information reported on the next pages does
not include any amounts for this discontinued operation,
which are described in more detail in note 8.

5.

W B 5 BB ER # (4R)

SR #E
RRABRTESEREIENEERRE
(TEBREREE D EHAEE NI
BE - AFERBERDEER - BRTE
Rl hRBFEMAETREERRE
BEMNERZEERMRNRIRHAE M
SKARFFAVRREL -

RBATBLERREEIBRE A&
BIRE D A T IIMELE R ATRE DB

(@) ERMEERM &R KE K
&~ EREARN - 2R R E AR ERE
ESv

b) EEEEMER—LENMH
i °

EEAR

FRSREBNREOHCRAFESR

DI I ERRE TS o
EBRZNHERLTBEZEKILE

?<“M¥i‘5zﬁ']{ff—]§§§ ﬁ'ﬁ;}{aﬁ.\gt%«M
FTER I FE8F A ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KRB EE(E)
(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) DEEE(HE)
Segment revenue and results SEBU R R R
Construction Consumer
and ancillary goods
services business Total
BER HEE
RERS EREE gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHT FHET
Year ended BEC2C=
31 December 2023 +=R=+—H
LLEE
Continuing operations BEGEES
Segment revenue DM 83,246 209,905 293,151
Segment results DEfELE (878) 22,409 21,531
Unallocated corporate income ROBEERA 26
Unallocated corporate expenses KA B X (14,867)
Profit before taxation AR Al F 6,690
Income tax expenses FriS TR (5,490)
Profit for the year FN A 1,200
Construction Consumer
and ancillary goods
services business Total
Bk HEE
R ERR EmER fmEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAL FEL FHL
(Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(4 E7) (= E5) (&&E7)
Year ended BE-_E-—
31 December 2022 +Z-A=+—H
LEE
Continuing operations BEEBER
Segment revenue o EpU R 106,344 84,308 190,652
Segment results DEEE 4,072 12,276 16,348
Unallocated corporate income AOBEERA 75
Unallocated corporate expenses AN ERY (12,526)
Profit before taxation BB Al A 3,897
Income tax expenses FTSRiF S (3,080)
Profit for the year FRRF 817
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KRB EE(E)
(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) DEEE(HE)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) SHERRERE)
Unallocated corporate income mainly included certain HE-_Z-_=—F+-H=1T—BHLFE
unallocated bank interest income for the year ended 31 HADEPEMAETEBREAE TROAE
December 2023, and included certain unallocated bank RITHEWA F MBE_E-__F+=
interest income and government subsidies income for the A=+—BUEFERBEETRIER
year ended 31 December 2022. 7T BUA R R AT A BRI o
Unallocated corporate expenses mainly include certain ROBRCERTFTEREET KPR
general office expenses, impairment losses under expected ZERY BHEEBSEBEXTHREE
credit loss model, finance cost on lease liabilities and other B HEaEREMERNT BRI
borrowings and employee benefit expenses. FEERFIME -
Segment results represent the profit earned by or loss from DEEBERRELARDEFAERAS
each segment without allocation of income tax expenses, AOMEERARKRDBEPERAZA -
unallocated corporate income and unallocated corporate %ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁmﬂiﬁ‘ HIE1E o b
expense. This is the measure reported to the CODM for BEFEEBERAREERUMMELERY
the purposes of resource allocation and performance fid R RIFFTEN TR o
assessment.
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue ExmmEzoBRERERKREINAR
generated from external customers. There were no inter- Pz g o RMEFE AL E D 32
segment sales in both years. HYSHE ©
Segment assets and liabilities SHBEERAR
Construction Consumer
and ancillary goods
services business Total
BRR HEE
RERS ERES o H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT FHT FHET
As at 31 December 2023 RZBZZHE
+=A=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 70,281 410,557 480,838
Unallocated assets AOBEE 64
Consolidated total assets RAREERE 480,902
Liabilities fif]
Segment liabilities DEELE 20,665 10,565 31,230
Unallocated liabiliies ROBEE 86,201
Consolidated total liabilities e aEeE 117,431
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KERSBEEGE)

(Continued)

Segment information (Continued) DEEE(HE)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) STHEERARGE)

Construction Consumer

and ancillary goods
services business Total

e HEE
R ERR EmER |t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHL FET FAT

As at 31 December 2022 gt~ - 3
+=RA=+—H

Assets BE

Segment assets DEEE 40,756 298,491 339,247

Unallocated assets ROBEE 228

Assets related to discontinued B SR T

operation BB E 728

Consolidated total assets IREBELE 340,203

Liabilities =1

Segment liabilities DHEEE 35,663 7,311 42,974

Unallocated liabilities AOEEE 48,692

Liabilities related to discontinued ~ EIE 4% 484 375

operation RN aE 121

Consolidated total liabilities meREeRE 91,787

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and HERSBERBAURESBZEASEE

allocating resources between segments: RME :

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other . Fﬁ*ﬁ BEHSETEENE - R
than unallocated corporate assets (mainly comprising DEEEEERINEEZERE TR
certain unallocated property, plant and equipment, DERYE  BELEE FHREE
right-of-use assets, cash and bank balances, and E - Be RIRTTAE R I B fE R
other receivables); and H): &

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments e FEBEAEHASETEESE - X
other than unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly PTRECEEERINEERBESET
comprising certain unallocated accrued expenses and R B RERT R s R B Ath JE <P SRR
other payables, lease liabilities and other borrowings). HEBEREMMER)

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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5.

equipment and right-of-use assets.

BEZNE °

Annual Report 2023 3§

BT =F+-A=+—HILLFE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KRB EE(E)
(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) SEEE ()
Other segment information HthaEHEH
Construction ~ Consumer
and ancillary goods
services business  Unallocated Total
BRR HEE
RERH EREE E 3 @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FTi#ER Fi#n FTER TR
Year ended BE-E-=
31 December 2023 +=B=+-A
LFE
Continuing operations BEREEE
Depreciation of property, 0¥ - BELRETE
plant and equipment - 3,157 - 3,157
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREEENE 186 918 = 1,104
Interest on lease liabilities HEREBEHNE 9 59 - 68
Interest on other borrowings HAfEFHE = = 6,330 6,330
Allowance for expected credit losses, J“E,ﬁ%%l@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%gﬁ
net 805 2,889 - 3,694
Construction Consumer
and ancillary goods
services business  Unallocated Total
B BEE
ERS EmES N et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEL FHT THL
(Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented)
=) (fEE5) (£ E7)) (I E7))
Year ended g§F-_E_—&%
31 December 2022 +=B=+-H
LEE
Continuing operations BEREEE
Capital expenditure (note (a)) BARHY (Wita) - 2,178 - 2,178
Depreciation of property, 0¥ BELEETE
plant and equipment 12 3,310 - 3,322
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREAENE 805 115 - 920
Interest on lease liabilities HEREHNE 61 9 - 70
Interest on other borrowings EffEFFE - - 4,933 4,933
Allowance for expected credit losses, i‘ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
net 555 2 3,643 4,200
Note: VifEa
(@) Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and (@) BRRZBEME - BB KR E AR ERE
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B

5.

E-T-CFE+-A=+—HIEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, Macau
and People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Group’s geographical segments are classified
according to the location of customers. There are three
customer-based geographical segments. Segment revenue

5.

k5 EBEFE ()

SEWRE(R)

R R

AEEMEBHUUINES  RPIRHAE
ARHRE([HRE]) -
AEEREESUBEDHENH - A

ZEARP REREMIE DAL - RFER
?K BINBEPHFEL LR 208K

from continuing operations from external customers by the HUERFUEED)IT ¢
location of customers during the years are as follows:
Revenue from external customers KESNEE Bz
Continuing operations FHBICE T
2023 2022
ot Sl —ECF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
(Re-presented)
(FeE5)
Hong Kong &5 72,296 105,911
The PRC F 177,505 84,741
Macau JBRPT 43,350 -
293,151 190,652

The Group’s geographical segments are also classified by
the location of assets, information about its non-current

AEETREBEEEMEVES DR
B AEEIFFRBEENHBER (Zi

assets by geographical location are detailed below: BAUBED)FBOT
Non-current assets HnBEE

2023 2022
—E-=HF k= =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Hong Kong BB 1,136 2,504
The PRC a3 23,859 27,651
24,995 30,155
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. InRRDEBEIE(E)
(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) DEEE(HE)
Information about major customers FREIEERMEH

Revenue from continuing operations from customers of
the corresponding years contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group is as follows:

RIEEF AR EE R E10% M F
PREFELEEB 2 HBENT

2023 2022
—®-= S S
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Customer A2 BEEA? 76,924 21,843
Customer B? =FEB? 66,353 32,158
Customer C' BFC! 43,350 -
Customer D! =D 34,689 N/ANE A2
Customer E! EPE 34,033 52,670
Customer F2 R 31,939 N/A i@ F @
Customer G' EPG N/AZE B2 25,182
Customer H' ZEH N/AFER? 25172
! Revenue from provision of design, fitting out and decoration service. 1 REFREER - BEREHRGE 2 UG -
2 Revenue from sales of wine products. 2 REHEBIEE M2 W= o
3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of the 3 HER SR EEFEY EEAEE BN R

total revenue of the Group in the respective year.

10%3 A | ©

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. HfugARIE

Continuing operations BHEEEER
2023 2022
—E=F TE-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Re-presented)
(FE5)
Bank interest income HRITALEWA 3 1
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — BB A F e 24 -
Government subsidies (note (i) TRk (B7523)) - 168
Sundry income HIBBUA = 2
27 171

Note: Hiat -

[0} The government subsidies were granted from the Employment (0]
Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Hong Kong
Government which aims to retain employment and combat COVID-19
epidemic.

et BB EIRE

BT AL IR BE BB RNEESTH
[MRFEE IFHEIRE -
HHLCOVID-195&15 °
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Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

On 30 November 2023, the Group entered into a sale
agreement to dispose of a subsidiary, Greater Bay Finance
Limited, which carried out all of the Group’s money lending
business operation. The disposal was effected in order to
generate cash flows for the expansion of the Group’s other
businesses. The disposal was completed on 30 November
20283, on which date control of Greater Bay Finance Limited
passed to the acquirer.

The loss for the year from the discontinued money lending
business is set out below. The comparative figures in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income have been re-presented of the
money lending business as a discontinued operation.

7. FINANCE COSTS MERE
Continuing operations BFIRREEE
2023 2022
= B
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT
(Re-presented)
(i=&E%)
Interest on other borrowings EAbERFE 6,330 4,933
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEIFE 68 70
6,398 5,003
8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS CRILEESER

WNZZE-_=ZF+—B=+H K&EEZ
UHEERE 0 WHEHB AR KENB
BERDR  ZAREITALREMERE
¥% - - HENNEEARERNEENEMD
¥BRERSR  HEBRZZTZ=F
+T—A=1+HZX ' BERXEHEER
NARIEFIECER T UWEE S -

KEERIEEENEXRBNFABERS
I » IREBEMEMEEKERA
MLEBRBFTE TUES - ABREES
P RE RIS R

Period ended Year ended
30 November 31 December
2023 2022

BE_S=F HE-_T-_—F
+—A=+8 +-A=+—H

1EHAR IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET

Loss of money lending business for the 8, RKE X5 E 2
period/year (2,121) (2,198)

Gain on disposal of money lending R S

business 24 _
(2,097) (2,198)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 8. Ef@iﬁ“#ﬁ(ﬁ)

The results of the money lending business for the period M- -_=—F—A—B&E=_2=_=%
from 1 January 2023 to 30 November 2023, which have +— A=+ BHEEFAGZEERNE
been included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss HEERERNMEEBREENT ¢

and other comprehensive income, were as follows:

Period ended Year ended
30 November 31 December
2023 2022

BE_BZ=F HE_T_—F
+—RA=+R +—A=t—H

1EEAR IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Revenue HﬁZJ?EL
Loan interest income B EIRA - 342
Other income HABYA - 985
Administrative expenses THAX (2,109) (3,482)
Finance costs BLE AR (12) (43)
Loss before taxation BRI ARSI (2,121) (2,198)
Income tax expense iR = -
Loss from discontinued operation for the ~ ANA @A ATE(GED, F AR
period/year attributable to owners of the B B4 IHEE EEHEE
Company (2,121) (2,198)
As referred to above, the Group discontinued its money nEFrat  AEEBRHEEMBARK
lending business operation at the time of disposal of its B EAER AR AR IEEREZER -
subsidiary, Greater Bay Finance Limited. The net assets of REEBH  KEVBERARNEE
Greater Bay Finance Limited at the date of disposal were as EWT :
follows:
Analysis of assets and liabilities BERARAIR
HK$’000
T#ET
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - BB R 12
Cash and cash equivalents ReKAEEEY 167
Deposits and other receivables, net e RE MW IR FEE 96
Other payables and accruals Hi N RIEREASER (199)
Net assets disposed of FTHENFEE 76
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation: & DRI B -
Cash consideration receivable FEWIRSRE 100
Net assets disposed of FTHEMFEE (76)
Gain on disposal s 24
Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ENBARMES ML 58
Consideration received BRE 100
Less: cash and bank balance disposal of W BT EMIR S MIRIT (167)
(67)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 8.

Analysis of the cash flow of discontinued operation is as

follows:

ERILESTRE(E)
BRILEEEBNRSREANMT :

Period ended Year ended
30 November 31 December
2023 2022

BE—_B-=F BHE_T-_—F
+—RA=+R +—-A=t—H

1EHARS IEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Net cash used in operating activities LETEEFTAMIR S FE (9,175) (3,737)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEESES, (FTA)N

financing activities I8 & 558 8,839 (306)

Net cash used in discontinued operation 2 4% |F 48 2 FEFTFHY
e FHE (336) (4,043)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

#
9.

E-T-CFE+-A=+—HIEFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

9. FRIRAIAR

Continuing operations BFIRREEE
2023 2022
= B
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
(Re-presented)
(Fg=E5)
Profit before taxation from continuing REFFEEE X < BRRAT
operations has been arrived at after wER TR (GEA)
charging/(crediting): TR EIEBER
Directors’ emoluments (Note 117) =M Maz11) 3,654 612
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMBEF
(excluding directors’ emoluments) (TEEESEHS)
(Note (i) (Htata) 8,446 8,375
Pension scheme contributions RIKRET SR
(excluding directors’ emoluments) (TEREEEHE) 106 106
12,206 9,093
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN BN &
Audit services BRI 1,000 1,085
Cost of inventories of wine products ERAERATHERERTE
recognised as expenses (Note (i) B (B a2i) 154,616 62,993
Cost of materials used for construction FRELERRISETAME
and ancillary services (included in cost AR (G ASEERAR)
of sales) 226 15,673
Sub-contracting charges for construction & REERE D 2 EH
and ancillary services (included in cost (Bt ASHERA)
of sales) 77,486 77,462
Advertisement expenses (included in BERAZ GrABEE RS H
selling and distribution expense) ) 25,008 5,901
Research and development expenses WA (GEATTHFAS)
(included in administrative expenses) 465 514
Depreciation of property, plant and W - WEMEETE
equipment
— Cost of sales —HERNA 3,148 3,301
- Administrative expense —1THRX 9 21
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENEGTATTK
(included in administrative expenses) FisZ) 1,104 920
Expense relating to short-term leases RHHE 2B (GTA
(included in administrative expenses) THFAX) 1,671 2,552
Provision for impairment loss on ) (it P P TE N SUIERERR 2
prepayments to suppliers (included in RERE IR
administration expenses) (FEATTERA) 1,807 -
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment loss ~ FtLA N &IEH AR (= EEIE
under expected credit loss model on: B TR RESE
B (BE) -
— Trade receivables — B S EWFIE 895 582
— Contract assets BMEE 992 ®)
— Deposits and other receivables *TE%&EME&?H&%’XIE
(credit-impaired) (ZERE) = 3,644
- Deposits and other receivables —i&& KA MEYRIE
(not credit-impaired) (WIEEERE) = (18)
1,887 4,200
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

9.

10.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Total staff costs amounting to approximately HK$1,851,000
(2022: HK$1,765,000) are included in cost of sales; amounting to
approximately HK$5,979,000 (2022: HK$7,465,000 (re-presented))
are included in administrative expenses, amounting to approximately
HK$390,000 (2022: HK$409,000) are included in research and
development expenses and amounting to approximately HK$212,000
(2022: HK$222,000) are included in selling and distribution expenses.

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2023, included in the cost of
inventories of wine products recognised as expense is cost of
materials of approximately HK$119,655,000 (2022: HK$57,363,000)
used for production of wine products.

FRIRAUEFI(3&)

Bt -

0] B TR A#1,851,0008 L (Z T4
1,765,000/ 7T ) 7H ASHE A ¢ £95,979,000
BIL(ZE =4 : 7,465,000 T (K& &
7)) st AT X - £9390,000/ T (=&
Z 4 : 409,000 7T ) 5t AR R ARAL
212,000/ 70 (=2 =~ — 4 : 222,000 T ) &t
AHERDHAX

(i) BE-ZZ-_=F+-A=+—HBLEFE 5

ANERABAZNBEEERTFERATARE

BB AR EE o B9 M REK AR 49 119,655,000 7T

(Z=Z == : 57,363,000/ L) °

INCOME TAX EXPENSES PR RB
Continuing operations IJFIEREEE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
(Re-presented)
(geE5)
Current tax: BNEATRIA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH
— Over-provision in previous year — P FERRERE = (20)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) B EEAMISE
(TEEFEHED)
— Current income tax —BNEAFF1S 5,490 3,100
Current tax expenses BNEATR IR R 52 5,490 3,080

Hong Kong Profit Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
BVI both years.

Under the Law of the EIT and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

No deferred tax assets has been recognised as it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the deferred tax can be utilised.

BBMNEHARETEIRATERM
S FEI16.5%5tE -

RERSHELREBRAES ([REBR
RS AR BN AR - A5 B {E
FEEHEREREBRIEEEAY
TIPS -

RIBECEMERERDEMSHEAER
&5 - A BRI B R R R E 4F E O R
B25% °

REAM RDAE SR A E LTI TIIZAR
R EERMRITHETE -

AR R 3N KR BE A FE SR A s A AT AR 4
HIHETEHRE QAU EBEDELEHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)
Continuing operations (Continued)
The income tax expense from continuing operations for

the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation
per consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

10. FRIGIRBASZ(18)

IFREERB (W)
FRREFHEREEB 2 FrEHFRXA
REGEBENHEMEEARERFENR
BRUADE R - BT

comprehensive income as follows:

2023 2022
=== B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Re-presented)
(ggE5)
Profit before taxation REFELEEBRBRAT
from continuing operations ikl 6,690 3,897
Tax expense at the Hong Kong Profits Tax 2 & /B F1SH L 16.5%5T &
rate of 16.5% E’ﬁﬂlﬁ_ﬁﬂfi 1,104 643
Tax effect of income not taxable for EERTRA TS 2&
tax purpose (92) (28)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR 2 B 5 2
for tax purpose 882 1,560
Tax effect of temporary differences TR ERNNEEE 1 ©®)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHIBEEOB BT E 2,533 249
Previously unrecognised tax loss utiised  JcHI A MR E B 2 FIAKE (282) (870)
Over-provision in previous year EFEERERE - (20)
Tax effect of different tax rates of REMEEEEELCED
subsidiaries operating in other HB AR TR ER
jurisdictions W E 1,344 1,054
Income tax expense for the year FRPSHIRX 5,490 3,080

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has estimated
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$36,037,000 (2022: approximately HK$27,965,000).
Tax losses arising in Hong Kong are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to retained earnings of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$2,358,000 (2022: HK$1,335,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RZEBEZ=%+ZA=+—H0 &K
CEEREBEEAZHABEEBBEY
/36,087,000 L (Z T ZZ2F + 4
27,965,000/ L) - REBELZHIEE
BRATER A AN EEEE BB
PR AR R ERFLGEF o

REBEFBECEMSRE AT N\F
—A—H  hENBERAR ARG
AMERZBEBEEBEHMMATBEIOH - A&
B3 &S W E A T%m%ﬂﬁm
HRFZ 52,358,000 L (— ==
1%5m@ww%TAﬁﬁﬁimﬁkL
EFATB R - 7Y A A AN 5 B ] 428 )
EEREE MR MBEREEA] L
TR R REE -
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134 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
l\\/T\ = /\ﬁf%i&%'z{T D_II_

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HIEE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EFE<
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to RBE AR ETARR BB R RGO #
the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies BRNFNESEHMAOT
Ordinance, is as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2023 gE_=E_=F+-A=1+—HILEE
Performance Pension
Salaries and related scheme Total
Fees allowances bonuses  contributions  remuneration
fiek 3] il ¥
g - 13 HETEL by {4 b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TET TER
Executive directors HITES
Mr. LIANG Zhichao DRBLE - - 3,120 - 3,120
Ms. CHEN Wuyou resigned on ~~ BElE&H(R-Z-=%
28 April 2023) MAZT/\BEHE) - 79 - 4 83
Mr. XIAQ Yi (appointed on SRl e 2
21 August 2023) NAZ+—BEZT) - 87 - 4 o1
Independent non-executive Wi FHTEE
directors
Mr. CHEUNG Ting Pong (resigned  RERLE(R-F-=F
on 17 October 2023) +ATHET) 95 - - - 95
Mr. ZHEN Jian ek 120 - - - 120
Ms. ZHAO Honggin BIERL 120 - - - 120
Ms. CHAN Wai Yan (appointed on - REBL+(R-T-=F
17 October 2023) TATLREZME) % - - - 25

360 166 3,120 8 3,654
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE
11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 11. EEML ()
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-_Z-_—_+-_A=1+—HItFE
Pension
Salaries and scheme Total
Fees allowances contributions remuneration
ek Rike
fikn 28 STEIfR il
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FET THET THT
Executive directors RITES
Mr. LIANG Zhichao REBAE - - - -
Ms. CHEN Wuyou BrEzL - 240 12 252
Independent non-executive directors BIEHITES
Mr. CHEUNG Ting Pong REAEE 120 - - 120
Mr. ZHEN Jian mgkE 120 - - 120
Ms. ZHAQ Honggin (appointed on LIRS G
11 October 2022) (R=BZZF
+A+—REZM) 23 - - 23
Ms. XIE Yanbin (resigned on AT
11 October 2022) (N=Z==F
TA+—RBE) 97 - - 97
360 240 12 612

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
no emolument was paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

There were no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022. None of the directors of the
Company and chief executive officer of the Company agreed
to waive or waived any emoluments in the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

REBEE_T-_=FK=_F__F+=-H
=+—HIFE TEEBRERAESE
NEMRME  (EARESNMALREER
LRI EEMAREENEE - HEA
KEBIEHFHE -

REE_E =R -_FT-_—F+_-A
—t+—BHILFE TESFFERETAL
BNEXRERETMHNE - ARFE
ERRRRITBHER B ER ZMEHN
BHE_ZE_=FA_F-_—_F+_A
=t+—HIFEHEAENE -

FRATESOME TR IR EEERN
NERANEESEHRERRS o LB
VHEATEENHMEIZREREAR
BIEEMIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED Fli
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

12. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Five highest paid individuals

One director was included in the five highest paid individuals
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
Nil), details of whose remuneration are disclosed above.
The remuneration of the four (2022: five) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of
the Company are as follows:

NANCIAL STATEMENTS
12. BRAGRAEREFAL

IEREFHFAL
AEFEHE_ZE-_=F+_A=+—H

LFEEZhLERRHFALEE—RES
(ZZ——F: ®) EFMHFBIONE

YHE NE(ZEZ—F  A%)BEe
FAT(WIERRREFRITHAE) 2
SHEN T

2023 2022

—ZE== —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TET FHEIT

(Re-presented)

(&S

Salaries and other benefits %ﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂ?@f 1 3,334 2,935
Pension scheme contributions BRIRSET IR 47 54
3,381 2,989

The number of these highest paid individuals where
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

HeB T BENZESRHFALTZA
g

Number of individuals

AB
2023 2022
—ZE== —E-—F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 3 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7cE
1,500,000/ 7T 1
4 5

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals and senior management as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the five highest paid individuals and senior
management waived or agreed to waive any emolument
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company, its chief executive officer, senior management
and the five highest paid individuals as a discretionary
bonus.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

13. DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid, declared or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2022: Nil).

14. LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

13.

14,

Ba

@i_v__inL A=+—BItFE
BERAAQAREBERBERMN - TR
ERRE  amEPREMERRTMH
E(ZZE=F : &) -

=10

REBEREEE

RAEHER A EERE Tii*i«%%ﬁ‘%
P& BN K BEE SR IR A TN 8RR E

Loss BiR
2023 2022
=== B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Re-stated)
(geE5)
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ZANA & B AL EREE
the Company (5,635) 4,172)
Less: loss for the year from discontinued ~ Jil : &4 IHE & EEER
operation [E518 2,121 2,198
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic ~ Fhat B E KL %1% 2 T
and diluted loss per share for continuing ~ EARESEEBME 2
operations E518 (3,514) (1,974)
Number of shares K& E
2023 2022
—E-=F —ECF
’000 000
TB% T
Weighted average number of ordinary METEEREA NS
shares for the purpose of calculating R = 2 EmAR i
basic and diluted loss per share I 1,126,396 419,688

(a)  Basic loss per share
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of calculating basic loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 has been
adjusted/restated to reflect the share consolidation
and effect of bonus element in rights issue on 16
February 2023 and 23 April 2023, respectively.

(b)  Diluted loss per share
The calculation of diluted loss per share is the same as
basic loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 as there were no potential ordinary
shares during both years.

(@) HREFEE
REEHE—_E-_=ER T
FH+-_A=+—HIFESKRER
EiEmE 2B mEFIHe 7
AR &3 Uk —T ==
FZ_A+ABRZZE-ZFIA
T =B RETROE R
KFFBDHIFE ©

b) HREEEE
g‘l’ @i—;:_fﬁ&—g::
T+ A=+ —RILFESREEE
Tﬁﬂiﬂx%ﬁ)@ﬂ%*ﬁﬁ Ft’jﬁﬂ
EAFEREE ST
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B BRERMITE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B

E-T-CFE+-A=+—HIEFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I &ERR =R ERA S

From continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing
and discontinued operations attributable to the owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

SERBIR(E)
REARAEERORILEE RS
AR FE ARAR S B EGERE K
I 25 2 iR B R IR A T RS
oy

2023 2022
ot St —TCCF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Loss for the year attributable to owners et E &R EA KL #EE 18
of the Company for the purpose of Mma 2 AREIERA
calculating basic and diluted loss per JEIEFAEE
share (5,635) 4,172)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations.

From discontinued operation

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operation is HK
cents 0.19 per share (2022: HK cents 0.52 per share)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 based on the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
from the discontinued operation of HK$2,121,000 (2022:
HK$2,198,000) and the denominators detailed above
for both basic and diluted loss per share from continuing
operations.

PR D & 8 E R A R = X7
ZBBREARLEEERN D BEF -

KREHEORILESER

ERARAEB AEBEERIGCEERS
FRNEEAE2,121,0008 T (T —4F :
2,198,000/ 0) K | Nl S B A & %
B2 BREAREBESENST  HE
—TE-=F+-A=+t—HIFE
RIEEBEBNEREAREEAFK0.19
BN ZE==F : %0.5278(L) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% - BRERE®E
Plant and
Office Leasehold Motor machinery and
equipment  improvement vehicles equipment Total
MERBR
TN HRkE e RikfE -1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T THr Fix ThEr
Cost: B
As at 1 January 2022 WZEZZF-f-H 581 - 4,126 36,727 41,434
Additions NE - 303 - - 303
Exchange alignment A% - - - (2,925) (2,925)
As at 31 December 2022 i S3
and 1 January 2023 TZA=T-8R
“ET-=F-f-H 581 308 4,126 33,802 38,812
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-FRBAR (59) - - - (59)
Exchange alignment AR - - - (799) (799)
As at 31 December 2023 RIBZZE
+ZA=1+-H 522 303 4,126 33,003 37,954
Accumulated depreciation: RHNE:
As at 1 January 2022 WZE-ZF—-F—H 517 - 4,126 3,198 7,841
Charge for the year ERZH 29 4 - 3,301 3,334
Exchange alignment [E R - - - (349) (349)
As at 31 December 2022 RZB-—f
and 1 January 2023 FTZA=T-8k
“2-=%-f-H 546 4 4,126 6,156 10,832
Charge for the year FRLH 2 4 - 3,148 3,174
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FNBAT (46) - - - (46)
Exchange alignment [E 5 R - - - (159) (159)
As at 31 December 2023 RZBZZE
+ZR=+-H 522 8 4,126 9,145 13,301
Net book value: RESE:
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=%
+ZA=+-A - 295 - 23,858 24,153
As at 31 December 2022 WZE-Z%
+-A=1-H 35 299 - 27,646 27,980
The above items of property, plant and equipment, after Lt - BREREREEE (KT RE%
taking into account the residual values, are depreciated on BEB)IZUTFELERRAEGEFE
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: E -
Office equipment 20% LN 20%
Leasehold improvement Over lease term HERE RIEEIR
Motor Vehicles 25%-30% BN 25%-30%
Plant and machinery and ~ 10% I EYS NS L] 10%
equipment
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. (FHESE
HK$’000
FHT
Cost: 5% 3
As at 1 January 2022 W-ZE-_—F#—HF—H 2,499
Additions NE 1,875
Termination of leases MmERIE (1,348)
As at 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 and R-ZE_—_F+_A=+—H"
31 December 2023 —ETo=F—-HA—-Bk
—_E_=F+-HA=+—H 3,026
Accumulated depreciation: FEHINE -
As at 1 January 2022 R -—F—HF—H 1,006
Charge for the year FRZH 1,193
Termination of leases MERIE (1,348)
As at 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 WR-E-_—_F+—-_A=+—8HK
—E-=F—H—H 851
Charge for the year FRZH 1,333
As at 31 December 2023 R-E-_=%¢+-"A=+—H 2,184
Net book value: IRmEPBE :
As at 31 December 2023 BW-E_=f+"A=+—H 842
As at 31 December 2022 R —F+=-A=+—H 2,175
Lease liabilities of HK$885,000 (2022: HK$2,255,000) are

recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$842,000
(2022: HK$2,175,000) as at 31 December 2023. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Details of total cash outflow of leases for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 were set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Expense related to short-term lease in respect of rented
premises is disclosed in Note 9.

For both years, the Group leases properties for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of one to two years (2022: one to two years). Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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HE&ESSS008 T(ZT - —F
2%ﬂm@ﬂﬁﬁmﬁmﬁ%%§§
842,000 L (ZE = =4 : 2,175,000/
TL) e RINEARBNHEHEEEFOER
= 9I\’fﬂ,%j5% TR 224k - 7
BEETSEMNMERER -

BHE 2 _=Fk-_F-_—_F+=A
Tt HLEFERBEEMNRBERHEZ
HEHRGARERER °

SRR £ T 0 AR AR OB SR B O
W -

RREFE  AEEHREDEARE
B HEAHUN—EMF( T -_—_F :
—EWF)ZETEFHIT - MEERTY
FEERERE FER - BIESENEER
T A o P EE TE R HA K 5T 4 1 T J g ER
MOEER  AEBERSYNTEET
EETE A HIR B EITRO R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

17.

18.

INVENTORIES 17. &8
2023 2022
—EBE=H —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FET
Wine products B
- Raw materials — R 95,617 144,604
— Finished goods — RUPpK in 3,229 171
98,846 144,775
TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. HHEWRIA
2023 2022
—EBZ=H —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FBT
Trade receivables =) A& e 112,760 29,652
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses & : TEH{Z :.EJEE?E%?‘% (1,530) (635)
111,230 29,017

At 1 January 2022, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$13,696,000.

The Group’s credit term with its customers for construction
and ancillary services is, in general, 7 to 30 days. For
customers of sales of wine products, invoices are due upon
within 180 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management.

The ageing analysis of the gross amount of trade receivables
based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RZZE-_—HF—H—HB REARFPAEY
2 & 5 EWFRIEA13,696,0008 7T ©

AEBEREZMEERBHETEETPH
ERM—RRTEIOR  HHOEREMEH
ENEP - BEMBORANEIH - AEH
BAR R E R EEEKE - 2 RER
B BB -

REZAM2IME 5 RRFRBER
BREEDHTINT -

2023 2022

—g-= —TCCF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Current to 30 days EIHAZ 30K 82,329 14,881
31-60 days 31-60K 15,063 3,564
61-90 days 61-90X 14,523 3,551
91-180 days 91-180& 845 6,795
181-365 days 181-365K = 861
112,760 29,652
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
l\\/T\ = /\ﬁf%i&% MT D_II_

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. HHEKRIA ()
As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s trade RZE_=F+=-_A=+—0 " 2ER
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying AEENEZREWFIEA R RRE A
amount of HK$837,000 (2022: HK$302,000) which are past £837,000/8 7t (= F = =4 : 302,000/8
due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, TE)EAqﬁl?zi AEE m R EFA - R
HK$NIl (2022: HK$302,000) has been past due 90 days Eer - TET(ZET 24 : 302,000
or more and is not considered as in default because the /%TE) E@HI0KRs A £ B IR RE
Group considers good cooperation relationships with these X EARAEERAEZEEBARTLE
debtors exist and with good repayment record. The Group RITAEBEBERTHRLT - A5H
does not hold any collateral over these balances. W Z ST A EEAR -
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for HE-_T-=-FRk-_FT=-=F+=A8
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are set out in = +—HIEFEZEZERFIBERET
Note 29(b). HFFIBER I EE29(0) ©
19. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 19. BHRE AR
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Contract assets: EREE
Construction services E % AR % 43,350 6,131
Retention receivables ERIRE S 2,545 2,545
45,895 8,676
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses J& : TEEAZ B E BB HE (1,008) (16)
44,887 8,660
Contract liabilities: aHaE
Construction services R RS 135 599

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights
to consideration for work completed but not yet billed
because the rights are conditional on the Group’s future
performance. The contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables when the rights become unconditional.
The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advanced
consideration received from customers, for which revenue is
recognised based on the progress of the provision of related
services.

The balance of contract assets and contract liabilities are
expected to be recovered/settled within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=EAN VAT X =5
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

19. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

19. EHRE AR(H)

(Continued)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract assets recognised are as follows:

Construction contract works

The Group’s contract works include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period
once milestones are reached. A deposit is typically payable
up front and this has resulted in a contract liability at early
stages of the project.

The terms of some construction contracts stipulate that the
customers withhold a portion of total contract sum (usually
5%) and will be settled in accordance with the terms of the
respective contracts. The terms and conditions in relation
to the release of retention vary from contract to contract.
The amount of retention monies is included in contract
assets until the end of the retention period as the Group’s
entitlement to this final payment is conditional on the
Group’s work satisfactorily passing inspection.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are set out in
Note 29(b).

Movement in the gross amount of contract assets balances
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as
follows:

HEERANEESHBRTEN K
SARNE S/ UNNE

BRAaHIE
AEEANTREBEEZRAFER DM
BANSRONHRARR(—BERER) - %
E—RATEY MO EBRBNHEL
BHAE-

BOERAONGRATATPANES
MBS EN— B CBERE%)  MAH
FARRBERESONIRTETEE -
B R AR & IR R R E R &
HWME - RESSHEHABGNEERSR
REMER - TARAEEHREFTZ
AN R MR T A S B 8 T2 BRI 38

HEe_ZT-_=Fk-_FT-_—_F+=-A
=t HIEFEZANEERBET G
BEAMIFE29(b) °

BHE 2 -_=FKk=-_F-_—_F+=A
Z+—HLFE  AHNEEHGEED
ZEmT

Contract assets aHEE
HK$’000
FET
As at 1 January 2022 W-ZZE-_—_#—H—H 3,406
Transfers from the contract assets to REVNEEERETE
trade receivables FEM R IB (861)
Retention receivables recognised BHERZERRES 6,131
As at 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZBE-_—F+—-A=+—HK
—E-=4—HF—H 8,676
Transfers from the contract assets to REVNEEEREES
trade receivables FEW R IB (6,131)
Unbilled revenue recognised ERER 2 RARKE 43,350
As at 31 December 2023 R-E-=%+=-BA=+—H 45,895
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

19. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)
Construction contract works (Continued)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for gross

19. EHRE AR(H)

BREeHIEGE)
NZE-=ZFKR _T--_F+_-A4

amount of contract assets as at 31 December 2023 and =1+—8 WEGEENEERLTEN
2022 is as follows: TEETEFFE L HE T ¢
2023 2022
== —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FHET
Within one year —FR 45,895 8,676

The increase in contract assets in 2023 was the result of a
slower issuance of progress billings to the customers for the
construction services delivered before the year end.

Movement in the contract liabilities balances during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

R CFRNEENENEARER
AR MEEERBAEFPEHERRE
HREENE o

ai_f__iﬁ—g::¢+_ﬂ
Z+t—HIFE AHEEEGNES

LU
Contract liabilities AR
HK$'000
FAT
As at 1 January 2022 RZE_—_F—HF—H 6,295
Consideration received from customers during FANEREFPREBADERLEZS
the year over the amounts of revenue recognised 599
Revenue recognised during the year that was FARBRW R GTAFVEHAaRE)
included in contract liability at beginning of year (6,295)

As at 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023

Consideration received from customers during

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8K
—E-=%F—H—H 599

=

FABKREFPREBBCHEARGEER

the year over the amounts of revenue recognised 135
Revenue recognised during the year that was FARBRW R GTAFVEHAaRE)

included in contract liability at beginning of year (599)
As at 31 December 2023 w-—=-=%¢+=-A=+—H 135
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of HEHERANBGESEENTEN—R
contract liabilities recognised are as follows: TG -
When the Group receives a deposit before the contract AEBEAN IR TANWEIZSR

work commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at

BEANNBELEANERE  BEEMRE

the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the
project exceeds the amount of the deposit. It is common
practice on the Group’s construction contracts to require a
deposit before work commences.

The decrease in contract liabilities in 2023 was mainly due
to the decrease in advances received from customers in
relation to the provision of construction services at the end
of the reporting period.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

-

Hz—ZT—=

FHZA=+t—HLFE

20. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

20. #& - WARER A WERRE

RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
—E-=H k=St
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Deposits s 418 521
Prepayments (Note (i) TERTFIB(A7523) 157,450 71,362
Other receivables (Note (i) E A WGRIE (B () 7,873 7,873
VAT recoverable AIU B ETR 2,668 3,249
168,409 83,005
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses & : T8 8= & B 18 74
(Note (i) (Bt &t (i) (7,899) (7,899)
160,510 75,106
Notes: Bt

(i)

(i)

As at 31 December 2023, prepayments mainly comprised prepaid
cost for procurement of raw materials for consumer goods business
of approximately HK$159,170,000 (2022: HK$71,261,000).

As at 31 December 2023, other receivables with gross amount of
HK$7,869,000 (2022: HK$7,869,000) was advanced to independent
third parties. Based on the past due status of the debtors, the
directors of the Company consider that a debtor is credit-impaired.
Allowance for expected credit loss of HK$7,869,000 (2022:
HK$7,869,000) has been recognised.

Details of impairment assessment of deposits and other receivables
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are set out in Note
29(b).

(i)

(iii)

RZZZ=F+=ZA=+—H FENZEE
ERIERH B B B TS B R MR B A
Z XA %9159,170,0008 T (—Z T = — 4 :
71,261,000/ 7T) °

RZZE-_=ZF+=-_A=Z+—8 " HiE
W FRIE 42 587,869,000 TT (B = — 4 ¢
7,869,000/ 70) AMBNE =7 285 o 1B
BEBEANGHER  AAREERAES
ADHIBEERME - CHABHEEHER
157,869,000/ 7T (—Z — — £ : 7,869,000/%5
JT) °

HE-_ =K -"FT-—"F#+-_f=+—

B I FE 2 S RH b R R B R (B R 1 5
IR MIEE29(b) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

21.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances comprise cash at banks and cash
on hand held by the Group. Bank balances earn interests at
floating rate based on daily bank deposit rates and is placed
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Included in cash and bank balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position are mainly the following
amounts denominated in currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate:

21.

B & B R ITHEER
ReRRITEBBERITRESRAEE
FR/AENRE - ROTEHRETER

TERMRLOF SRR E - A7
BT R B8 4O S 58 RAFERTT o

HAGARBRRENES RRTES
B TR B2
5b 2 SR RHE 2 3R -

2023 2022

=== T4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHEIT

RMB AR - 11
At 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank balances and RNR-_E-_=F+-"A=+—H  x&EH

cash denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB32,434,000 (2022: RMB24,960,000), equivalent to
approximately HK$35,681,000 (2022: HK$28,123,000).
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies as
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set
out in Note 29(b).

DARBTEMNRITEBRIIRSH A A
R#32,434,000t(ZF=2F : ARK
24,960,0007T) -+ HEE K 4735,681,000/8
TT(ZZF = —4 :28,123,000/87T) - AR
MTEERERKEMER - 2HRA
R H IR oM 52 o i A R L0 3 50
BIRIEOI R AEME - SiERSESIEHATE -

IRITEE SRR E AR IB R M FE29(b) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

22,

23.

TRADE PAYABLES

22, BHEMREA

2023 2022

—EBE=H —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET F#T

Trade payables B SR RIA 26,648 36,853

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice

BHRNFEENEZBHZREDNT

date is as follows: RN
2023 2022
== —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Current to 30 days BIHAZ30K 25,012 30,160
31-60 days 31-60K = -
61-90 days 61-90K = -
Over 90 days NP 1,636 6,693
26,648 36,853
The credit period on purchases of certain goods and BEETEMERB 2 EEHA0E30X
services is within 0 to 30 days. PAR o

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER

23. BRI RAEMEMRIR

PAYABLES
2023 2022
—EB=H —E - F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEXT FET
Other payables E M 3RIE 400 524
Accrued expenses JERTRIZ
— Accrued staff cost —EEFB IR 4,821 1,000
— Accrued expenses (note (i) — RIS (B7a20) 5,595 4,342
Interest payable FERTFE 5,295 3,738
16,111 9,604
Note: Kzt -
[0) Accrued expenses [0) itk
As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group's accrued expenses RZZZ=F+=ZA=+—8 " fFAXEEH

mainly comprise (i) accrued design consultancy fee to a vendor
amounting to approximately HK$1,324,000 (2022: HK$1,324,000)
and (ji) accrued placement commission to a placing agent amounting
to approximately HK$1,268,000 (2022: HK$548,000).

TR EZRE()AE S OB RFTER
491,324,000 T (Z T Z4F :
BL)RHARERENEFESHESY
1,268,000/ C(=Z = —4F :548,000/& T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

24. OTHER BORROWINGS 24, HthfER
2023 2022
—=E== —E-fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Current: RNES
Borrowings from RE A THER
— China Golden Holdings Limited —hREEBRAA
(“China Golden”) (Note (i)) (T D4 /?I\r(/)) 37,500 40,000
- Chance Achieve Limited —BETBR AR
(“Chance Achieve”) (Note (i) (TBETTD( /Wuf(//)) 30,000 -
- Big Fame International (HK) Limited —REER(HB)BRAH
(“Big Fame”) (Note (i) (% %J)(ﬂ/f&(m)) 4,494 705
— Kiu Hung International Holdings Limited ~ — & BB ISR AR A
(“Kiu Hung International”) (Note (iv)) ([EHEBRR L) (B /?}‘r(/v)) 1,657 1,031
73,651 41,736

Notes: Bt -

0] The borrowing from China Golden, an independent third party, is 0] REBUE=T7FHOETREILNR ﬁfﬁ
unsecured. The original maturity was due in June 2023, and extended FEMAR=—T_= E A )5] WELERE
to April 2024, The effective interest rate for the year ended 31 ZHFENA  HEZT_=F+=-A= Jr*
December 2023 was 12% per annum (2022: 12% per annum). %5@*) W@T‘JIFEHZ% TECCFE

5£12%) ©

(ii) The borrowing from Chance Achieve, an independent third party, is (ii) REBIE=TTHEETNERRBERFEA
unsecured and repayable on 5 January 2024. The effective interest R-_Z-_FE—-ARAEE HE2_T-=
rate for the year ended 31 December 2023 was 6% per annum (2022: FH+ZA=T—HILEFENERFIEE%
N/A). (ZZ=—F : ~EA) -

(i) The borrowing from Big Fame, an independent third party, is (il REBLE=ZFRENEBERASEEMREAR
unsecured and repayable on 6 January 2024. The effective interest —EoNE-ARNHER -HEZZT-_F
rate for the year ended 31 December 2022 was 3% per annum (2022: TZAET-—BUEFENERFNERI%
5% per annum). (ZT==F : FFE5%) °

(v)  The borrowing from Kiu Hung International, an independent third (iv) REBUE=HBEEBEENERAEIKRE
party, is unsecured and repayable on 3 January 2024. The effective ERZTZNF-—A=HEE HE=-ZT
interest rate for the year ended 31 December 2022 was 3% per ZZFF+Z A=+ —BUEFENERFMNE
annum (2022: 5% per annum). B3% (T4 : FFIE5%) ©

25. LEASE LIABILITIES 25. HRAR
2023 2022
=== TE-fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAET

Analysed as DT

— Current — e 885 1,370

— Non-current Vi) - 885

885 2,255

Lease liabilities payable ENHEEAE

— Within one year ——FR 885 1,370

— More than one year but not ——F LA BT EBIBRE

exceeding two years - 885
885 2,255
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities ERREEAENEEERMNENTF

range from 4.61% to 12.25% (2022: from 4.61% to

12.25%).

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE-T=-=

FH-A=+—HIEFE
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. lB®&
Number of Number of
Ordinary Ordinary
Shares Shares Nominal
of HK$0.01 of HK$0.02 value
SRMmEC.1ET SRME.2ET
BEEREE HEEREE fE
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000
i i} Fr
Authorised: BE
As at 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 W-Z-~F—H—H -
and 1 January 2023 “E--F+-R=+-HR
—E-=%-F—H 1,000,000 - 10,000
Share consolidation (note (i) Ikt & bt (Arat) (1,000,000) 3,000,000 50,000
As at 31 December 2023 RZ2-=%+-A=1+—-H - 3,000,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid: SRITRARE :
As at 1 January 2022 RZBE-_—_#—Hf—H 720,000 - 7,200
Shares issued under placing agreement  RIFECERHD BITR (W)
(note (i) 144,000 - 1,440
As at 31 December 2022 and RZBZZFFZA=+—HR
1 January 2023 e = 864,000 - 8,640
Share consolidation (note (i) RiAat(hzn) (864,000) 432,000 -
Issue of shares under rights issue (note (i) 1RIEEREITIAD (H:2 () - 864,000 17,280
As at 31 December 2023 RZE_=%+-A=+-H - 1,296,000 25,920
Notes: Wi
0] On 5 August 2022, the Company completed a share placing for an 0] RZZZZFNARAB AARZKAE
aggregate for 144,000,000 shares at a placing price of HK$0.145 %A A L& A ££144,000,000 8% & 15 -
per share to independent investors. The gross proceeds from the EEAFR01458 T - BEEAMBRIE
placing was approximately HK$20,880,000, the net proceeds was #9 /20,880,000 7T+ FT 15 3B F
approximately HK$20,671,000 and HK$19,231,000 was recognised 20,671,000 7¢ + 119,231 OOO/%EE&HX
as share premium. Details of the placement are set out in the MEEER REFBHARAQTAHAE=
Company’s announcements dated 21 July 2022 and 5 August 2022. T _FHAZ+-BRZZE-_=_FNAR
=EopN=K
(i) As the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 15 (i) EARAARRZEZZF+-A+RAETH
December 2022, ordinary resolutions in respect of (a) the share REFRNARE L BEHE@QEEMREBITR
consolidation of every two issued and unissued ordinary shares of RETERABECOIETHAARERRE
the Company at par value of HK$0.01 consolidated into one ordinary PtA—REREE.02E LM L A MK
share at par value of HK$0.02 each; (b) increase in the authorised A6 (b) & AN A B #95% TE B AN B3 10,000,000
share capital of the Company from HK$10,000,000 divided into 7 7T (9 41,000,000,000 B 38 5 A% 17 ) 35 AN
1,000,000,000 Existing Shares to HK$60,000,000 divided into 2 60,000,0007% 7T (% 4 6,000,000,000 % 27
6,000,000,000 Existing Shares (or 3,000,000,000 consolidated B ) (& & O 4 %44 3,000,000,000
Shares after the Share consolidation becoming effective. On 14 REHRD)HEBRAZRERLE R=F
February 2023, the authorised share capital of the Company became Z=FZA+WMAE - AREEERAEER
HK$60,000,000 consisting of 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 60,000,000/ 7T+ B iEEFREEO.0278 JTH
HK$0.02 each. 3,000,000,0000% & i@ A% °
(i)~ Subject to the share consolidation and the increase in authorised (iil R & OF I bﬂxfmﬂxzﬁixﬁfé(ﬁﬂf z
share capital having become effective (i.e. 14 February 2023), a rights Z=FZA+MEA) ARRIBRREDBEBIES
issue of two rights shares for every one consolidated share was BE—ke Hh1ﬁ?§§*ﬁﬁﬁxﬁiﬂxﬂﬂﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁ
approved by the shareholders of the Company. 864,000,000 rights EITHAR - FAREE0.02/8 7T #Y864,000,000
shares of HK$0.02 each were issued and allotted on 14 April 2023 at RN R ZF == A +0 B RET
issue price of HK$0.14 per rights share. The net proceeds amounted BEREE014B T HRMR N TIAEITR
to approximately HK$118,960,000. The net proceeds from the Bl 2 o TS FIBFREA 118,960,000/ 7T °
subscription were used for the general working capital of the Group REFSNEFEAELAEEN —REESL
and for development of the Group’s consumer goods business as CRERNEBENEBEEMNEY  EHA
detailed in the Company’s announcement on 14 April 2023. ZHARNARZE=_=FNA+HHENAL
(iv) All the shares issued ranked pari passu in all respects with the (iv) BB BITIRMOMMAE T EMREE DT

existing shares in issue.

,T/'\ =

EET -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 27. MEERIEETE

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 13 August
2015 (“Share Option Scheme”), the Company may grant
share options to any directors, employees, consultants,
customers, suppliers of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interests who, in the sole discretion of the board,
have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group so as to provide incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the success of the Group’s
operation.

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must
not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares
in issue from time to time. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the date of listing of the shares unless
the Company obtains the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting for refreshment.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding)
granted in any 12-month period to (i) each eligible
participant must not exceed 1.0% of the total number of
shares in issue; and (i) a substantial shareholder of the
Company or an independent non-executive director must
not exceed 0.1% of the total number of shares in issue and
not exceed HK$5.0 million in aggregate value.

The exercise price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

The Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 12 August 2025 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

From 8 September 2015 (date of Listing) to 31 December
20283, no share option was granted by the Company under
the Share Option Scheme.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” in Directors’
Report.
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EZ22ENBR/EIHHARE
BEERZERFELERMOANEEEMKE
REIANEEFH TR RENEAER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. EXEBER

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to fund its construction business and wine
business, provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. There was no change in the Group’s
approach to capital management during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
calculated by dividing its total other borrowings (being the
interest-bearing liabilities of the Group) by total equity.

AEEBEAERZEZAREREAS
BREEENRED  EMARERT R
BEEBRHEES - SEREHRDR -
REMMEEEERENS  REFR
BENER - UREE R o

AEEEBMEHECREREANG
B NEREFUKFESA SRR
= AR O R E R E AN RN E
B2 ARG TE  WRELER
MBI HEREBELRAE - BER
KABRENGRE  AEEAESHAER
BRSNS - MBRRREE AR
TTHIRR

AR B A R R MR SN ER A IO B AR
BR-BEZF-_-_FR-FT-C
TZA=+—BLHFE  ARENER
BEANRFIE -

AEBEEREEABLXERERN &
ERELXRTNIREAEMER(BIAEE
Mt B REIRAEERSAE -

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

—E-=F —EoF

+=-R=+—H +=-—HA=1—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#ET FHET

Other borrowings (Note 24) HAbER(Hat24) 73,651 41,736
Total equity FEL %N 363,471 248,416
Gearing ratio EEBRELE 20.3% 16.8%
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-T=

(a)

=FE+RA=+—RIFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 290. #FTH
Categories of financial instruments (a) £MIAZEB
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Financial assets: SMEE :
At amortised cost big: 37BN 152,056 82,002
2023 2022
== —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FET
Financial liabilities: eMEE
At amortised cost big- £ [N 111,589 87,193
Financial risk management objectives and (b) HMERBREEREBERBKEK

(b)

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits, other receivables, cash and
bank balances, trade payables, accrued expenses and
other payables and other borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to other borrowings and lease liabilities. Besides, the
Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to cash and bank balances (see Note 21 for
details of the bank balances). No sensitivity analysis
is provided as the Group considers that the impact
from the exposure to cash flow interest rate to be
insignificant.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did
not hold any other assets and liabilities which are
exposed to interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

rEBzIESMTIABREESE
WA ~ e~ MBI - 1R
T RRITES  BHREMNFIA
JE T B S2 B L B A SR OE e H At
B - M TAZFBERSMER
Be-mZEeRmIARMzARE
EAEREE - SNERER - EERR
ERBESER - BEZERRZ
BERESIINT - NREEEEEEE
REEZEFRR - RN AX
WERBUEE N

2 0 B3
AEENAFEMNXRREERE
EREBERERRR - HH - K
SEmEERER S MRITERE N
RenENXER(BRRITHER
BE B R 2N E21) - ARASE
ERARERENEERAFEL
PEX - A ERHGRREDIT -

R _=FK=-_F-_—_F+-HA
=1+—H  AEBEYARFEEMAE
BEHEERNEMEEREE -

A& B B A I AR A R E K
Ko A EREERNXER -
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

153 N\

20. &R T A (I8)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MEBERREREEEHRRBEK(E)
policies (Continued)
Currency risk A3
The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong representing REBFEERFELE  BRE
39.4% of total revenue (2022: representing 55.6% H39.4% (T - —&F : ANEM

of total revenue), primarily with respect to the HK$.
The directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk from its monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is minimal
since HK$ is pegged to USS$. The Group is exposed
to foreign currency risk arising from deposits, other
receivables, cash and bank balances and accruals
and other payables which are denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) held by or owned by a Group
entity whose functional currency is not RMB. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

55.6%) EZ W KEIT c MRETT
BZEILHME - ARBIESRALRE
BLAETAENEEEERAEM
EE R INER R R IRE o A&
HEEDEEBWIEARBE(TAR
DA EEERBIBEIEBHA
AR ENES - HtElsk
H - Re RIRITEBUANIESTER
Ko B At S FROIE T EE A A9 AN R
% o NGB B AT E SNSRI
F oA BEREERIMNER -
WA AT ERE B hERINE
BB o

AEBERHE A HAINETENE
KEELEBAEREENT

2023 2022
ot i e S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Monetary assets: BWEE:
RMB AR - 11
2023 2022
—E=F S
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FHET
Monetary liabilities: B¥aR:
RMB AREE 600 600
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Hope Life International Holdings Limited U&&EISIZRHRA S

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% increase and decrease in the HK$ against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts
their translation at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. A negative number below
indicates a decrease in post-tax profit/increase in
post-tax loss where the HK$ weaken 5% against
the relevant currency. For a 5% strengthening of the
HK$ against the relevant currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit/loss and total
comprehensive income/loss, and the balances below
would be positive.

(b)

20. &R T A (I8)

MR EE B Rk R E(E)

b LB (48)
TRAJASEE BT A ARBING
ZER TR T BE% < BRRE o
RARREEEEABREINEE,
SR EEMNIERBBELLE -
ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁttfﬁgiiﬁ%ﬂi?—f%/\
BE R 2 - MRESNE
BREREERIINEHEERHEE - I
R EAR 5L 5% 2 I1 S [ = 5 B i) B
ZAE - TXAHKRBTTAER
EREESRRERBE TR,
FRIR BRI N - BRI AR
E¥THES% © H 5 A /EE?E&E
mis, EERAREN T B RRAE
R - T XSG 2R -

Loss/profit after tax

RREER &7
2023 2022
ot g 2 —TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
RMB AR (30) (29)
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

165\

20. &R T A (I8)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MEBERREREEEHRRBEK(E)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERRERAEET

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank
balances, trade receivables, contract assets, deposit
and other receivables. The carrying amounts of these
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

ZKEIE’M*EJ—L IKPKE%ETT
B BHRUGRIA  BREE &

& M E A FEUGK IE' ° siﬁ,ﬁ%ﬁfﬁ—ﬂ’]ﬁﬁ
ﬁﬁﬁ%zﬁglﬁdﬁimﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
MERAEEE

Bank balances RiT4
In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk MERIRITHIRESME - ARR D
is considered to be low as the counterparties are HFAEERINERT  AtEER

reputable banks. The existing counterparties do not
have defaults in the past. Therefore, expected credit
loss rate of cash at bank is assessed to be close to
zero and no provision was made as of 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for all trade receivables and contract
assets. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables and contract assets have been assessed
based on individual credit risk characteristic and past
due status. The Group has also identified the key
economic variables impacting credit risk and expected
credit loss. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, trade receivables
and contract assets that are individually significant
have been separately assessed for impairment.
The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the
background and reputation of the customers,
historical settlement records and past experience.

ERERERE - BEXZHEHFB
EWEEL - FAik - RTINS HTE
HEEBEEREXTHARLT  HE
—EZFR-ZTE-__F+=H
=+ — B REHREE -

EEEMELHEZENRTRLE
HEE
AEBRABCETREEMBR

EEAFESRMRENTAIERER
TE%?‘% CRERIAFHABE S
EUKERGHNEEER2HE
HERERRE - RITERBEER
EiE - BHRIGAERENEED
RBAE R 215 B B4 5 K g B R
NEtHE - ARBECREZEEER
R R IEHMEEERN E BEEE
e HERTAANABEA SN
EVRTRE EHYL o

RZEZ=FR-T-__F+=A
=+—8  @EANEXNEZ S ERK
HNAHNEED BB MREE - &K
SEREEFHESLESE - BT
EEE N BERKER - THTAE
Uk SRIE R AT U 115 -
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (Continued)

Majority of the Group’s revenue is earned from
individual customers in relation to construction and
ancillary services and sales of wine products. The
Group’s trade receivables arise from construction and
ancillary services and sales of wine. As at the end of
the year, the top five debtors and the largest debtor
accounted for approximately 98.7% and 42.0%
(2022: 96.8% and 26.6%) of the Group’s gross trade
receivables balance, respectively. In view of the history
of business dealings with the debtors and the sound
collection history of the receivables due from them,
management believes that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding receivable
balance due from these debtors saved for the debtor
related to the impaired trade receivable disclosed in
the below. Management makes periodic assessment
on the recoverability of the trade and other receivables
based on historical payment records, the length of
overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors
and whether there are any disputes with the debtors.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. For construction and ancillary services,
trade receivables are due within 7 to 30 days from
the date of billing. For customers of sales of wine
products, invoices are due upon within 180 days.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

(b)

20. &R T A (I8)

MR EE B Rk R E(E)
125 55 1 B 5 i (A 135 (4D

EEAVELNE ZENKTERS
HIEE ()
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

20. &R T A (I8)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MEBERREREEEHRRBEK(E)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 15 6 B Bk (B AT 4 (48)
(Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets arising from EEAAELRE Z LKA,
contracts with customers (Continued) HIEE ()
The Group measures loss allowances for trade REENSENR2HEHEEEEDN
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal TR EEFRWGHERANEE
to lifetime ECL, which is calculated using probability EIERME  ZEBEFERAEABERE
of default model. As the Group’s historical credit loss A HE AR ASENBEEES
experience does not indicate significantly different BEBRURBRATEINRARTS
loss patterns for different customer segments within WBEBEAFEEEEZE  AltE
the same industry, the loss allowance based on past RBHRENBERHE I ISELRE
due status is not further distinguished between the BN TREFPETBE—FED -
Group’s different customer bases.
Trade receivables B 5 EUGRIA
Oto 31to 61 to 181 to
30 days 60days 180days 365 days Total
0E30X 31F60X 61F180X 181E365K #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TEL THET THET
At 31 December 2023 R-BZZ=%§
+ZRA=+-AH
Expected credit loss rate (%) ~ TAEEEEIBR (%) 1.35% - 0.94% - 1.35%
Gross carrying amount RE%E 111,915 - 845 - 112,760
Lifetime ECL LHRBEEEHE (1,522) S 8 - (1,530)
110,393 - 837 - 111,230
At 31 December 2022 R-EZZH
+=A=+-H
Expected credit loss rate (%) ~ TEEEEBIEE (%) 0.3% - - 64.9% 2.1%
Gross carrying amount RmaE 28,791 - - 861 29,652
Lifetime ECL L HRHEESE (76) - - (559) (635)
28,715 - - 302 29,017

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
estimated default rates of debtors within the same
industry over the expected life of the debtors and

ERFEREIRRATREBARE
BATEH FHREH R MER - Apt
BHRBZRARE N AR ESHA

are adjusted for forward-looking information such
as real GDP growth, inflation rate, interest rate and
logit that is available without undue cost or effort.
The contract assets have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same
type of contracts. The Group therefore concluded that
the loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for contract assets.

) (A0 A
EE BEE « FIERUB)EH
BE - AMAEARRE —EUA
4R S EIEA IR K AR
B - Bl ARERAE K
BRI E RS O AE ORI
AiEE
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Deposits and other receivables

The credit quality of the deposits and other
receivables have been assessed with reference to
historical information about the counterparties default
rate and financial position of the counterparties. The
Group recognised the allowance for expected credit
losses by assessing the credit risk characteristics of
other receivables, discount rate and the likelihood of
recovery and considering the prevailing economic
conditions.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

R TR (&)
(b) MIEBREEBHERBRE)

15 5 . B e Gk (L (68D

e REMERHE

e hEMRIGANEEERD
SERBRGHFENERRIHYH
FHBAHRABEERETTAE
AR BB S E UGN E

B R AR R R UL E IR R
AREMERD & B8 B AR - B
m‘ﬁﬁﬂfﬁiﬁaﬁéﬁ

AEBNABEERBIFRFEE
AT R -

Trade receivables Other financial

Internal credit and contracts assets at
rating Description assets amortised cost
BHEEREAR R ArIEZ
M BB (E S AT R fiii i aEE Hth&pEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL —not ~ 12-month ECL
[ and does not have any past-due amounts  credit-impaired ~ 12{@ A FEHiZE
RSEFENRRIK - B EE(TEE] FHIFRHREE (2]
x| EE-WIHEEE
IE
Doubtful There have been significant in credit Lifetime ECL —not  Lifetime ECL — not
PN risk since initial recognition through credit-impaired credit-impaired
information developed internally or HEHEER 2HEEE
external resources EBE-WIHEEE EiE-WIEEE
BBANBEAFHERRINEGEER VERIE] DENIE!
EERRE B KRR AREZIL M
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
E518 credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
BEBRTREEREERE ZHTEEIEE 2HFEEEE
BiE—EERE BiE—EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is Amount is
84 debtor is in severe financial difficulty and written off written off
the Group has no realistic prospect of BEMEEEeE CAMEEEeE
recovery
BEBETEBAGRRES MG RE -

AR B ERR LI U 0 SRR R AT BE
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets and contract assets, which

29. £#MT R (&)
(b) MBEBEEEBHRERBEGE)

15 5 . B e Gk (L (68D

TRAVAKEERMEERENE
ENEERR  HAXXEHEER

are subject to ECL assessment:

As at 31 December 2023

ERRHY -
R-B_=%+"A=+—H

Gross carrying
Internal credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
ABE TR 12BA 2 MFHEEER EE#E
HK$'000
THT
Financial assets at
amortised costs
BBERFHE
ZEMEE
Trade receivables Low risk (note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 111,915
(note 18) BER(Hite) 2 HEHEEBR(THEERE)
BHRKFIA
(H1218) Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 845
R P HEHEEBR(THFEERE)
Deposits and other Low risk (note (b)) 12-month ECL 422
receivables RRB(H72b) 12HAEHEESE
(note 20)
BeREM Loss (note (c)) Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 7,869
A BR(WH) rHEHEEBR(EERE)
(Hrz#20)
8,291
Cash and bank balances  Low risk 12-month ECL 40,434
(note 21) il 12HAESHEERE
Re RRTHH
(Hizte1)
Other item
HtigR
Contract assets Low risk (note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 45,895
(note 19) ERB(HiztE) 2 HEHEEBR(THFEERE)
BRBEWIEH19)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

20. &R T A (I8)

MG mEEE B RRRE(E)

15 5 . B e Gk (LM (468D

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H

Gross carrying
Internal credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
R ER TR 12 S HAHERGR EEEE
HK$'000
TET
Financial assets at
amortised costs
RERNEHE
ZEMEE
Trade receivables Low risk (note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 28,791
(note 18) EER(Hite) P HEHEEBBR(IHFEERE)
BHRKFIA
(Hiit18) Loss (note (c)) Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 861
EB(Hc) 2HEBEEHE(EERE)
29,652
Loan receivables Loss (note (c)) Lifetime ECL (credit- impaired) 10,054
FERER BR(WHc) 2 HEREEER(EERA)
Deposits and other Low risk (note (b)) 12-month ECL 525
receivables BRI (A20) 12EABHEERE
(note 20)
BeREM Loss Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 7,869
FENIE B 2 HEREEER(EERE)
(Hizteo)
8,394
Cash and bank balances  Low risk 12-month ECL 52,490
(note 21) ERR 12EAEHEERE
Be RBTHH
(Hrzte1)
Other item
HftEHE
Contract assets Low risk (note () Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 8,676
(note 19) NEN A i) PHEBEEBECIEEERE)
BHEEHE19)
Notes: Kt
(@)  For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has @ HESEUTIARSNEEMS @ &

applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL.

(b) For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the (b)
Group uses the latest available financial and other information
about the borrowers/debtors to assess whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. As at 31
December 2023 and 2022, these balances are either not past
due or do not have fixed repayment.

(© During the year ended 31 December 2021, a debtor of other (©
receivable of amount HK$7,869,000 had been transferred to
lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) as the debtor has failed to repay
the principal and interest.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I &ERR =R ERA S
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RALEERREEMS - NEEE
RBEBERANBEEANSHASH
%&Hﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁmgﬂkmzém
IRFERB ARG - RZT =4
:E::¢+ H:+*E ﬁ##
i ) A B B g 4 [ T R

tA=t+—HALF
AL e ZK%&%J
&Y 3 IE7,869,00078
2 BEBEEBE(EER

iﬂ

e

s
g;

T

mll
P

EI]

I o e B 5‘&?
B
e
H >
Yt
m@

Sl



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/T\ 7”%% i& i‘% Fﬁ uf

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
The closing loss allowances for loan receivables,
trade receivables, contract assets, and deposit and
other receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:

20. &R T A (I8)
(b)

15 5 . B e Gk (L (68D

MR EE B Rk R E(E)

RZE-=ZFR-_FE-__F+-A
=+t—8 EREXR-
B ANEENRIES REMEIK
FIEMEIR BB R E ) 1B

B 5 WK

HHERRT -
Other Other
financial financial
assets at assets at
Loan Loan amortised  amortised
receivables  receivables cost cost
(credit-  (not credit- Trade Contract (ot credit- (credit-
impaired)  impaired)  receivables assets  impaired)  impaired) Total
it e
HECZEN  RESEE
BER SHEE HEZEM
Bk (kR RAENK (B%  SMEE
(EEHE) #E) BE AMEE GREEE) (REEE) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fir Tir T Fir Fin Tk Fir
(Note 18) (Note 19) (Note 20) (Note 20)
(hite)  (Witr9) (W) (o)
At1 January 2022 R=%--F-F-H 10,661 330 53 24 499 3774 15,341
Increase/(decrease)inloss ~ EAREHEAL
allowance recognised in EE%%M/
profit or loss during the (RD)%8
year, net 607) (330) 582 €] (18 3,644 3,263
At31 December 2022and  RZFZZ
1 January 2023 TZA=+-RR
“ZZ=E-f-H 10,004 - 635 16 481 7418 18,604
Witten off s (10,054) - - - - - (10,054)
Increase inloss alowance  FARBEEAL
recognised in profitorloss %2 %ﬁmﬂ
during the FE
year, net - - 895 992 - - 1,887
At 31 December 2023 S ——2
+ZA=1-H - - 1,530 1,008 481 7418 10,437

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period greater than 1 year

past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented
as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written

off are credited against the same line item.

= A I # E A TR RS EA U B 5K
HE - B 5 RUGIE T M - &
BIESENEHSE R E A 2
PR BRE(ETERE) BB ARER
AEBSEREE - ARERS
BE1FEZHRRIDAREELGL
NE/

B 5 W IR R R E R IR N 208
MAZFIREEBEFE - 252
WH RO S B A B AR W B R AR —

oo/

¥B17HEHE -
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s liquidity risk management includes
maintaining flexibility by keeping sufficient cash and
cash equivalents generated from operations. The
Company regularly reviews its major funding positions
to ensure that it has adequate financial resources in
meeting its financial obligations.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivatives financial
liabilities which are included in the maturity analysis
provided internally to the key management personnel
for the purpose of managing liquidity risk. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table reflects the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows.

(b)

20. &R T A (I8)

MR EE B Rk R E(E)

ARE R & W R
AEBEERRDE ARE SRS
EEM - HOARRREEELN
RAEREZEETRESMNN - #
REBFR R NEITHHEL -

TRHAVAKEITE SR A G
BRITANIHE  YEMARERE
mBESRRMEANBREETER
EEABMIEOMF - BLIEOTE
SREEMS @ ZRARRNRAE
B ERKEEARNRZE RN
CRBEZRMERRERE - LK
BRMNEEAZHERE -

Weighted
average
effective Total Total
interest Within 1to5 undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year years cash flows  amounts
RUH
miEgFEy RenE
BRFIE —£R —EIif #E FERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TERT FT#ERT TET TET
As at 31 December 2023 H-Z=-=%
+=RA=+-H
Non-derivative financial FTEEMAR
liabilities
Trade payables BHRMAFE - 26,648 - 26,648 26,648
Accrued expenses and other BRI R E b
payables FER IR - 11,290 - 11,290 11,290
Other borrowings HinfEmR 8.80 80,136 - 80,136 73,651
Lease liabiliies HEaRE 4.61 902 - 902 885
118,976 - 118,976 112,474
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-T=

=FE+RA=+—RIFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

29. @M T R(E)

Financial risk management objectives and (b) MEBERREREEEHRRBEK(E)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEESEE(IE)
Weighted
average
effective Total Total
interest Within 1to5  undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year years cash flows amounts
ARUH
EFH Beneg
BRFIE —¥R  —ZhF gy EEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THT T THT THT
As at 31 December 2022 RZEZZ
+=B=+—H
Non-derivative financial ETESMAR
liabilities
Trade payables B RN - 36,853 - 36,853 36,853
Accrued expenses and other  JEFTBIS R E
payables SR - 8,604 - 8,604 8,604
Other borrowings HinfEs 11.71 43,896 - 43,896 41,736
Lease liabilities HEAR 5.99 1,450 902 2,352 2,255
90,803 902 91,705 89,448
Fair value of financial instruments (c) &MIAZATE

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their

fair values.

EERRNEAVBRRAR LS
REEMERAGBECREERER

FEHRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\\/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE-T-=

FH-A=+—-HILFE

B MG HRR M T

= <=
30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. PRIBAFIE¥ES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the end of the REAREZMB AR ZFFBWOT -
reporting period are as follows:
Proportion of
ownership interest
Class of Issued and and voting rights
share/ fully paid held by the Company Principal
Place of registered share capital/ Directly Directly  Indirectly  Indirectly  activities and
Name of Subsidiary incorporation capital held registered capital 2023 2022 2023 2022  place of operation
FR¥sRR {7 BERITREE FRRRBRARERR R AR LG
L gl 2 y4:3 ] EE BE & i
G NGES S A 3L it B % #F ZBCZF -“T-o-F ZBIZE —T--F IERBREEDS
% % % %
LCL Interior Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 200,000 shares - - 100 100 Provision of design,
) LK of HK$1 each fitting-out and decoration
200,0008% services, Hong Kong
BRABTRG RERE - EERES
s - B&

Royal China Decoration Hong Kong Ordinary 10,000 shares - - 100 100 Provision of design,
Engineering Limited BE TER of HK$1 each fitting-out and decoration

SREHTIRERATF 10,0008 services, Hong Kong

BRABTRG RERE - EERES
s - B&

Hong Kong Zhong Niang ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 6,000,000 share - - 100 100 Production and sales of food
Group Winery Company ~ &/8 LK of HK$1 each and beverage product,
Limited 6,000,000/% Hong Kong

BRETBEEEEERAR BRABTRG EEREERS

REER &8

Greater Bay Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share = - = 100 Provision of money lending
Finance Limited 9 TER of HK$1 each services, Hong Kong
EHBERDR 1IRE R B TRG REHERS - B8

IRERBEERAR PRC Registered ~/RMB200,000,000 - - 100* 100 Production and sales of food
(Jiangxi Luxin Jiuye Co. Fai -/ \R¥% and beverage product,
Ltd) 200,000,0007T PRC

EERHERM
HHER  H

IRTEEEERAF PRC Registered ~/RMB50,000,000 - - 70 70*  Production and sales of food
(Jiangxi Zhongniang A Fai -/ AR% and beverage product,
Jiuye Co. Ltd.)* 50,000,0007C PRC

ig&iﬁg R
ﬁﬂéuu ! ‘:P
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at ER - BEMNBRARZFTEMNELE

the end of the year. The above table lists the subsidiaries of
the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

# The entity is wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.
A The entity is partially foreign owned enterprises established in the
PRC.

The English name is for identification purpose only.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group which has material non-controlling
interest:

Place of

establishment/ Proportion of

30. MWL)

TREINABERFEREENANEE
FEEMBRRFE

registration and ownership interests Profit allocated Accumulated
principal place held by the non- to non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary of business controlling interests interests interests
i EmieE  ERRESEEZ SEEIRK
MELTRE REESXMNE BAEERLH EImas REtIERRiE R
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
8T To-HF ZBIZE T_F ZBIZHE T —F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FHET
Jiangxi Zhongniang PRC
Jiuye Co. Ltd.
(“Jiangxi Zhongniang”)
IETEEXARLAR  F
(DI 30% 30% 4,714 2,791 9,050 4,460

Summarised financial information in respect of Jiangxi
Zhongniang that has material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below,
prepared in accordance with the significant accounting
policies of the Group, represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.

BB SRR B S 2 T 78 BB B
BEREINT o« AT B ER (R
BASEXEZSRRAER)LEREER
LIRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. MEBAFFIE(E)
(Continued)
Jiangxi Zhongniang LT RER
Financial information of statement of profit or loss BReEMEf2EalkaxiBEH
and other comprehensive income
2023 2022
—E-C=HE —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T FAET
Revenue e 177,505 84,308
Expenses and taxation FIsZ R B8 (161,791) (75,005)
Profit for the year F Na 15,714 9,303
Profit for the year attributable to: FRRAEGHEE
Equity holders of the Company KAEIRERFEEA 11,000 6,512
Non-controlling interests of the Group REEFEEAR R 4,714 2,791
15,714 9,303
Other comprehensive loss attributable to N2 BB ARG E M2 E
owners of the Company [E518 (290) (529)
Other comprehensive loss attributable to A% HERS S E 2
non-controlling interests g (124) (228)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FREMETEEIE (414) (757)
Total comprehensive income attributable N2 1A A (S 2 E Uk
to owners of the Company 1ERE 10,710 5,983
Total comprehensive income attributable  FEFE MRS B (L 2 E W 25
to non-controlling interests Pk 4,590 2,563
Total comprehensive income for the year  FRZE MRS 4E5E 15,300 8,546

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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nﬂ:

HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE
30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. MEBAFFIE(E)
(Continued)
Jiangxi Zhongniang (Continued) L BRER ()
Financial information of statement of financial position MHERRERHEEE
2023 2022
—EZ=f —E__F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Non-current assets ERBNVEE 23,859 27,652
Current assets MENVEE 147,234 127,634
Current liabilities mEIAE (140,926) (140,419
Net assets BEFE 30,167 14,867
Equity attributable to: RS FEIREE -
Equity holders of the Company KAEIRERFEEA 21,117 10,407
Non-controlling interests of the Group REE TR RS 9,050 4,460
Total equity AR 30,167 14,867
Financial information of statement of cash flows RaRERVEEH
2023 2022
—2_= S S
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#T FAT
Net cash inflow from operating activites A& & EE) 2 IR &R A F5E 4,184 1,169
Net cash outflow from investing activites & EE) 2R &R HEE - -
Net cash inflow from financing activites ~ BIEEE 2 IR &R AFEE - 20,880
Net cash inflow BERNFEE 4,184 22,049
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

31. XAFZHBRARR FEREH

(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) FLFZHMERIE
Company
2023 2022
—=-= —E-
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE THET T
Non-current assets ERBDEE
Interests in subsidiaries RHBA ﬂZ% i —* =
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JEYWTE A BIEIE 336,763 205,235
336,763 205,235
Current assets RBEE
Deposit, prepayments and e ENRER
other receivables H Y GRIE 56 56
Cash and bank balances We RIRTT4s 9 43
65 99
Current liabilities nBAR
Accrued expenses FEETFISZ 12,477 6,189
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI EPNGIE ¢ 102,941 102,941
Other borrowings HMER 67,500 40,000
182,918 149,130
Net current liabilities mENARBE (182,853) (149,031)
Total assets less current BEERADAER
liabilities 153,910 56,204
Net assets EERE 153,910 56,204
Equity e
Share capital &N 26 25,920 8,640
Reserves i 31(b) 127,990 47,564
Total equity attributable to FOTRE AR,
owners of the Company HiER 153,910 56,204

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 28 March 2024 and signed on its behalf

R-ZTF-MFE=ZA-+\BEE=S
SHERRETERLTHUATESAK

by: xEE:

XIAO Yi LIANG Zhichao
& ZER

Director Director

EFE EF

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company

31. XAFZHBRARR FEREH
(#)

(b) FELTFZGEREE

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
Bfpi{E L4y ] ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
As at 1 January 2022 RZE_—_F—HF—H 213,133 (175,134) 37,999
Proceeds from placing Bl & FT5 50 IE 19,440 - 19,440
Share issue costs H%ﬁé’”‘ﬁﬁk$ (209) - (209)
Loss and total comprehensive 4 A &8 & 2 M &8
loss for the year k] - (9,666) (9,666)
As at 31 December 2022 i —
and 1 January 2023 +ZA=+—8K
—E-=F—H—H 232,364 (184,800) 47,564
Proceeds from rights issue MRS TS FIE 103,680 - 103,680
Share issue costs {47 B A TR AR (2,000) - (2,000)
Loss and total comprehensive & A &8 & 2 HE51E
loss for the year k] - (21,254) (21,254)
As at 31 December 2023 N_—E”=
+=B=+—H 334,044 (206,054) 127,990
Note: Wit

The balance represents an amount of less than HK$1,000.

32. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
entered into new lease agreements for the use of leased
properties for two years. On the lease commencement, the
Group recognised HK$1,875,000 of right-of-use assets and
HK$1,846,000 of lease liabilities.

e DIN,000/8 7T

32. EBHBRERH
REBEEZ_ZT-__F+ZH=1T—HLHF
B AEERFERAEMEI L AW
FrHAERZH - RNHEERKE K&
B 21,875,000 T2 EREEE R
1,846,000 T2 HEAE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—ALEFE

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 33. EERMARXS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BEEVBRERIEFREZR S REH
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the 9\\ ' Zﬁ’iléﬁifaﬂﬁpﬁﬁiux—l—iji

Group had entered into the following material transactions
with related parties.

(a) Key management personnel compensation (@) EEEBARFHH
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEEBEAEMNE  BENTES
including amounts paid to the directors and certain of RETERHES 2 RB (M
the highest paid employees, as disclosed in Notes 11 1 R12FTH ) ST
and 12 are as follows:

2023 2022

—E=f —E-fF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT F#T

(Re-presented)

(ggE5l)

Fees BE 360 360
Salaries and other benefits e RHEAMET] 3,500 3,175
Performance related bonuses FIRABRAIEAL 3,120 -
Pension scheme contributions  iER& 5tEI4E 5k 55 66
7,035 3,601

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 34. B EHELEMNERHIE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest Lease Other
payable liabilities  borrowings Total
ERFE HEAH Hib gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FAT FHT FAT
As at 1 January 2022 N ——
—A—H 250 1,537 40,000 41,787
Accrued interest FEEHF 2 4,933 113 - 5,046
Addition of lease liabilities HEBELM - 1,846 - 1,846
Financing cash (outflow)/inflow EEEEE (GRH),/RA (1,445) (1,241) 1,736 (930)
As at 31 December 2022 and RZ-ZT_—
1 January 2023 TZA=+—AkK
—ZE-=F—HF—H 3,738 2,255 41,736 47,729
Accrued interest JEETHIE 6,329 68 - 6,397
Financing cash (outflow)/inflow EVEIRS GRH),/HA 4,772 (1,438) 31,915 25,705
As at 31 December 2023 W-EZ=%F
+=RA=+—AH 5,295 885 73,651 79,831

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I &ERR =R ERA S
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
=T =F+_A=t+—BIEE

35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 19 January 2024, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with CNI Securities Group Limited, pursuant
to which the Company appointed CNI Securities Group
Limited as its placing agent to procure not less than six
placees who are independent third parties to subscribe
for up to 259,200,000 placing shares at the placing price
of HK$0.105 per placing share on a best effort basis in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the placing
agreement.

The placing was completed on 15 March 2024. An
aggregate of 259,200,000 placing shares have been
successfully placed to not less than six placees. The net
proceeds from the placing were approximately HK$26.8
million.

The Company intends to apply the proceeds from the
Placing for the repayment of the Group’s interest-bearing
borrowing with principal amount of HK$30 million and its
interest.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEH&RER
RZZTEZWMF—A+H » RAAFHESF
Bt FBFEBEBRAFZREEH
B ARBZERREIESTESE
BERARAERERE  BRIEKEW
FERERARIEHIERNEERETDR
NEERAABBYE=ZH)RERZ
259,200,000 L E M (D - BB EEB AER
B ERZ150.1058 7T ©

REEN _ZE_NF=ZA+RHHEZK °
& $£259,200,000% Ac & I 9 B A D L &
FARLRINBEREA - BERFTSHIE
SFEEM) AE26.8EBETT °

RRAREEREMSEIAREEERE
Bt SIERASFEI0A BB T REFE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LY pY

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=+-HLFE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EC-= —To—E keSS “E-TF —ENE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FEr THL T T
(Re-presented)
Results ] (&E7)
Revenue Iz 293,151 190,652 247,170 113,182 86,305
Profit/(loss) before BRATERATET
income tax (B18)
— from continuing - REHE
operations ) 6,690 3,897 8,950 (8,332) (2,895)
— from discontinued -REBLLE
operation =S (2,121) (2,198) - (1,841) 11,842
Income tax (expense)/credit  FIEH (F%) /B R (5,490) (3,080) (2,079) 52 (742)
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ FR(E5iE) BF (921) (1,381) 6,871 (10,121) 8,205
Attributable to: FE{k iR -
Owners of the Company /NSIE DN (5,635) 4,172) 4,987 (10,107) 8,205
Non-controlling interests FEEl S 4,714 2,791 1,884 (14) -
(Loss)/profit for the year  FEX(EH#),/BF (921) (1.381) 6,871 (10,121) 8,205
As at 31 December
®+=RA=+-H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=f —E-C T —ZE-EF —Z-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n TET TET FET FET
Assets &
Non-current assets FEREBEE 24,995 30,155 35,086 104,374 6,573
Current assets NBEE 455,907 310,048 282,843 159,176 147,887
Total assets AERE 480,902 340,203 317,929 263,550 154,460
Liabilities =15
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - 885 977 532 1,381
Current liabilities mEaE 117,431 90,902 72,990 40,450 14,156
Total liabilities affes 117,431 91,787 73,967 40,982 15,537
Net assets HESE 363,471 248,416 243,962 222,568 138,923
Capital and reserves BERGE
Share capital P A 25,920 8,640 7,200 6,000 5,000
Reserves & 328,501 235,316 234,865 216,582 133,923
Equity attributable to /NSE PN
owners of the Company [E{E R 354,421 243,956 242,065 222,582 138,923
Non-controlling interests R 9,050 4,460 1,897 (14) -
Total equity #ia 363,471 243,416 243,962 202,568 138,923

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]






	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER

